
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: December 14, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
Regular City Council Meeting 

December 14, 2021, at 6:00 PM 
City Council Chambers 

231 W. Evergreen Avenue, Palmer 
www.palmerak.org 

AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. ROLL CALL

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Approval of Consent Agenda

a) Action Memorandum 21-067: Approving the Cancellation of the December 28, 2021,
Regular Meeting

b) Action Memorandum 21-069: Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Leighton Lee to the
Airport Advisory Commission with Term Ending December 31, 2024

c) Action Memorandum 21-070: Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Ryan Richard to the
Parks and Recreation Advisory Board with Term Ending December 31, 2024

d) Action Memorandum 21-071: Confirming Casey Peterson and Josh Tudor to the Planning
and Zoning Commission with Terms Ending December 31, 2024

e) Information Memorandum 21-006: Notice of Intent to Award General Counsel Legal
Services

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings
a) November 9, 2021, Special and Regular Meetings

E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS

F. REPORTS
1. City Manager’s Report
2. Mayor’s Report
3. City Clerk’s Report
4. City Attorney’s Report

G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

H. PUBLIC HEARINGS
1. Resolution 21-039: Designating Authorized Signatures for Check Signing Affecting Any and All

Disbursements of the City Monies and Designating City Representatives Who are Authorized and
Empowered to Execute and Deliver All Documentation and Instructions on City Investment Accounts

2. Resolution 21-040: Authorizing the City Manager to Suspend the February 1, 2022, Late Fee for
Business License Applications Due to the Implementation of Online Business License and Sales Tax
Platform

3. Resolution No. 22-001: Adopting the 2022 City of Palmer Employee Pay Plan (2nd Public Hearing)
4. Resolution No. 22-002: Adopting the 2022 Fee Schedule for the City of Palmer for the Fiscal Year

Beginning January 1, 2022, and Ending December 31, 2022 (2nd Public Hearing)

Mayor Steven J. Carrington 
Deputy Mayor Pamela Melin 
Council Member Richard W. Best 
Council Member Sabrena Combs 
Council Member Brian Daniels 
Council Member Pamela Melin 
Council Member Jill Valerius 

City Attorney Michael Gatti 
City Manager John Moosey 
City Clerk Shelly M. Acteson 

1

..................................................................................................Page  3

.......................Page  5

...........Page  7

.............................Page  9

..............................................................................................................Page 11

..................................................Page 17

.........................................................................................................................Page 27

................Page 55

http://www.palmerak.org/


__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: December 14, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Agenda Page 2 of 2 

5. Resolution No. 22-003: Adopting the 2022 Fine Schedule for the City of Palmer for the Fiscal Year
Beginning January 1, 2022, and Ending December 31, 2022 (2nd Public Hearing)

6. Resolution No. 22-004: Adopting the Five-Year Capital Improvement Program for the Fiscal Year
Beginning January 1, 2022, and Ending December 31, 2022 (2nd Public Hearing)

7. Resolution No. 22-005: Adopting a Budget for the City of Palmer, Alaska for the Fiscal Year
Beginning January 1, 2022, and Ending December 31, 2022, and Appropriating Monies (2nd Public
Hearing)

I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

J. NEW BUSINESS
1. Action Memorandum 21-068: Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a New Lease Agreement

with Lazy Mountain Hangar, LLC, on Lease Lot 21, Block 3, Palmer Municipal Airport for the Purpose
of Constructing a New Aircraft Hangar

2. Action Memorandum 21-072: Approving Mayor Carrington’s resignation Council seat, declaring it
vacant, and begin the process of filling the seat, Based on PMC 2.04.065

3. Discussion of PMC 2.30.010, Board of Economic Development composition

K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE

L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION

M. EXECUTIVE SESSION

N. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

O. ADJOURNMENT

Tentative Future Palmer City Council Meetings 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting 
Type Time Notes 

Jan 11 Regular 6pm 
Jan 25 Regular 6pm 
Feb 08 Regular 6pm 
Feb 22 Regular 6pm 
Mar 08 Regular 6pm 
Mar 22 Regular 6pm 
Apr 12 Regular 6pm 
Apr 26 Regular 6pm 
May 10 Regular 6pm 
May 24 Regular 6pm 
Jun 14 Regular 6pm 

2

................Page 69

................Page 83

........................................................................................................................Page 89

..............................................................................Page 93

..........................Page 143
.......................Page 145



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-067 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 21-067 

 
Subject:  Approving the Cancellation of the December 28, 2021, Regular Council Meeting 
 
Agenda of: November 24, 2020 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Denied 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor Carrington via City Clerk 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 
  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ (500.00) 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
√ Creates a saving in the amount of: $ (500.00) 
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-02-10-6013 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

3



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-067 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 None 

 
Summary Statement:  
 
Traditionally, the City Council has not held the second meeting in December. Currently there is no 
legislation scheduled for the December 28, 2021, meeting. Palmer Municipal Code 2.04.080 states “A 
regular meeting may be canceled by the council…”. 
 
 

4



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-069 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 21-069 

 
Subject:  Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Leighton Lee for Appointment to the Airport Advisory 
Commission with Term Ending December 31, 2024 
 
Agenda of: December 14, 2021 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor Carrington via City Manager’s Office 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     
  Airport     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 750.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 750.00/year 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 03-01-10-6059 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

5



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-069 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 None 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Airport Advisory Commission (AAC) is a seven-member board with two seats expiring December 31, 
2021. 
 
Public notice of this recruitment was posted on the City’s website, published in The Frontiersman, 
advertised in the Chamber’s weekly e-newsletter, and posted on the City of Palmer’s social media sites. 
 
One application was received, as noted below.  
 
Applicant was: 
 

1. Leighton Lee (currently serving) 
 
The applicant met code requirements and after review, Leighton Lee is nominated for reappointment to 
fill one of the vacant seats. 
 
Original applications are retained in the City Manager’s Office.   
 
Mayor’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 21-069. 

6



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-070 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 21-070 

 
Subject:  Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Ryan Richard for Appointment to the Parks and 
Recreation Advisory Board with Term Ending December 31, 2024 
 
Agenda of: December 14, 2021 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor Carrington via City Manager’s Office 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     
  Airport     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 
  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 750.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 750.00/year 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-19-90-6059 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

7



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-070 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 None 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board is a seven-member board with two seats expiring December 31, 
2021. 
 
Public notice of this recruitment was posted on the City’s website, published in The Frontiersman, 
advertised in the Chamber’s weekly e-newsletter, and posted on the City of Palmer’s social media sites. 
 
One application was received, as noted below.  
 
Applicant was: 
 

1. Ryan Richard (currently serving) 
 
The applicant met code requirements and after review, Ryan Richard is nominated for reappointment to 
fill one of the vacant seats. 
 
Original applications are retained in the City Manager’s Office.  
 
Mayor’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 21-070 

8



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-070 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Action Memorandum No. 21-071 

 
Subject:  Confirming the Mayor’s Nomination of Joshua Tudor and Casey Peterson for Appointment to 
the Planning and Zoning Commission with Terms Ending December 31, 2024 
 
Agenda of: December 14, 2021 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mayor Carrington via City Manager’s Office 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     
  Airport     

 
  

 

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 1,500.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
√ Creates expenditure in the amount of: $ 1,500.00 
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
√ Budgeted Line item(s): 01-01-12-6059 
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

9



____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-070 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 None 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The Planning and Zoning Commission is a seven-member board with two seats expiring December 31, 
2021. 
 
Public notice of this recruitment was posted on the City’s website, published in The Frontiersman, 
advertised in the Chamber’s weekly e-newsletter, and posted on the City of Palmer’s social media sites. 
 
Two applications were received, as noted below.  
 
Applicants were: 
 

1. Joshua Tudor (currently serving) 
2. Casey Peterson (currently serving) 

 
The applicants met code requirements and after review, Joshua Tudor and Casey Peterson are nominated 
for reappointment to fill one of the vacant seats. 
 
Original applications are retained in the City Manager’s Office.   
 
Mayor’s Recommendation:  
 
To approve Action Memorandum No. 21-071. 

10



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: IM No. 21-006 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Information Memorandum No. 21-006 

 
Subject:  NOTICE OF INTENT TO AWARD – City of Palmer General Counsel Legal Services 
 
Agenda of: December 14, 2021 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Mr. John Moosey, City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 

 

 
  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

11



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: IM No. 21-006 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
 
Notice Letter – Birch, Horton, Bittner, & Cherot 
Notice Letter – Dillon & Findley, P.C. 
Notice Letter – Jermain, Dunnagan, & Owens P.C. 
Notice Letter – Sarah Heath Law, LLC 
 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Per AM 21-063 and in accordance with Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) 3.21.210, the City entered discussions with 
the most qualified proposer, Sarah Heath, LLC, and discussions resulted in a fair and reasonable contract.  
 
December 3, 2021, in accordance with PMC 3.21.90, notice of intent to award was sent to all responding 
proposers. 
 

12



13



14



15



16



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 

  
City of Palmer, Alaska 

City Council Minutes 
Special Meeting 

November 9, 2021 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A special meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on November 9, 2021, at 6:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 
Pamela Melin 
Richard W. Best  
Sabrena Combs 

Steve Carrington, Deputy Mayor 
Brian Daniels 
Jill Valerius  (on Zoom)

Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

John Moosey, City Manager 
Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney (On Zoom) 
 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 

Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda as presented 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Best 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
E. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (3 minutes per person) 
 

Brenda Shelden: 
• Spoke in favor of funds to support the renovation of the tennis courts. 

 
Matt Ketchum: 

• Spoke in support of the tennis court renovation project. 
 
Susan Brunner: 

• Advocated for funds financial support of consistently utilized tennis courts.  
 
Christie Wyzykowski: 

• Emphasized the importance of tennis as a lifelong sport for individuals and requested support for 
the tennis court renovation project. 

 
F. NEW BUSINESS 

17



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Special Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 

1. Committee of the Whole: Presentation of the 2022 Budget (Note: action may be taken by the 
Council following Committee of the Whole) 
a. City of Palmer Budget 
b. City of Palmer Pay Plan 
c. City of Palmer Fee Schedule 
d. City of Palmer Fine Schedule 
e. City of Palmer Capital Improvement Program 

 
Main Motion: To Enter Into Committee of the Whole 

Moved by: Combs 
Seconded by: Melin 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
Chad Cameron, Fire Chief, Palmer Fire and Rescue provided on overview of the 2022 proposed budget for 
the department. 
 
Dwayne Shelton, Chief of Police, provided an overview of the 2022 proposed budget for the department. 
 
Frank Kelly, Airport Superintendent, provided an overview of the 2022 proposed budget for the department. 
 
A brief question and answer period followed each presentation. 
 
G. RECORDS OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
Budget summary provided by Chief Cameron. 
 
H. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
I. ADJOURNMENT 

 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 6:59 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 
_______________________________ 
Edna DeVries, Mayor 
 
 

18



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 4 

City of Palmer, Alaska 
City Council Minutes 

Regular Meeting 
November 9, 2021 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on November 9, 2021, at 7:00 p.m. in the Council 
Chambers, Palmer, Alaska. Mayor DeVries called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

Edna DeVries, Mayor 
Pamela Melin 
Richard W. Best  
Sabrina Combs 

Steve Carrington, Deputy Mayor 
Brian Daniels 
Jill Valerius (on Zoom)

Staff in attendance were the following: 
 

John Moosey, City Manager 
Shelly M. Acteson, CMC 

Michael Gatti, City Attorney (on Zoom) 
 

 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was performed. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
 

Main Motion: To Approve the Agenda and Consent Agenda, without the Minutes 
Moved by: Combs 

Seconded by: Melin 
Vote: Unanimous 

Action: Motion Carried 
 
E. COMMUNICATION AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS  
 

1. Mayor Devries read and presented a proclamation declaring November 27, 2021, as Small Business 
Saturday. 

2. Ailis Vann, Executive Director, Palmer Chamber of Commerce, provided a brief overview of the 
Chamber’s recent activities and upcoming events. 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
a. Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing to November 23, 2021, for Ordinance No. 21-019: 

Amending Palmer Municipal Codes 2.04.080, 2.20.080, 2.22.080, 2.25.080, and 2.30.080 to 
modify the start time of meetings from 7:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m. 

b. Introduction and Setting a Public Hearing to November 23, 2021, for Ordinance No. 21-020: 
Amending the Palmer Municipal Code 3.16 Sales Tax, To Create Certain Uniform Provisions for 
the Collection and Remittance of Sales Tax in Alignment with the Alaska Remote Sellers Sales 
Tax Code PMC 3.16.300, Alaska Remote Sellers Sales Tax Code Adopted by Reference 

2. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meetings 
a. September 14, 2021, Regular Meeting 

19



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 4 

3. Julie Estey, senior Director of External Affairs & Strategic Initiatives, Matanuska Electric Association, 
presented an update on the Lucas Street Substation Project. 

 
F. REPORTS 

1. City Manager’s Report 
 

City Manager Moosey reported the following: 
• Reminded Council of upcoming Veteran’s Day activities. 
• Trash would be picked up on Friday due to the holiday. 
• Alaska Municipal League Conference; and 
• COVID in-home test kits available at the library. 

 
City Manager Moosey requested Council clarification regarding how and when the Council would like 
the Report from the law firm concerning the alleged release of previous confidential and privileged 
reports on Facebook.  Council discussed the issue and agreed to allow City Manager Moosey to include 
the Report, if it’s completed in the packet for the November 23 Council Meeting. 
 

2. City Clerk’s Report 
 

City Clerk Shelly Acteson reported the following: 
• Thanked Interim City Clerk Nichole Degner for her help during the transition. 

 
3. Mayor’s Report 

• Mayor DeVries notes she would start as the newly elected Borough Mayor on November 22, 2021; 
and 

• Noted she had negotiated a viable contract for legal services with Heath Law, LLC, and Council 
would bring an action memorandum forward during the next meeting to approve the contract 

 
Main Motion: To Direct the City Manager to Provide Legislation during the next meeting 

to Sign and Execute a Professional Service Agreement with Heath Law, 
LLC for Legal Services  

Moved by: Carrington 
Seconded by: Melin 

Vote: Unanimous 
Action: Motion Carried 

 
4. City Attorney’s Report 

Attorney Gatti had no comments. 
 
G. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

Mike Coons: 
• Commented on his distrust with local and national elections. 
• Spoke in favor of utilizing the hand count method during the past election and voter integrity. 
• Requested that Council stand with Senator Shower and push for SB39. 

 
Jack Snodgrass: 

• Provided Council with a memo explaining a potential problem with the City’s recent RFP approval 
process during the selection of legal services. 

 
Jackie Goforth: 

• Spoke of the importance of Resolution 21-10, Code of Ethics. 
• Requested that Council adhere to the requirements of the resolution. 

20



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 3 of 4 

Michelle Kruger: 
• Stated that several Council members had violated the City Code of Ethics: 
• Read a recall petition summary statement. 

 
H. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
I. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
J. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Committee of the Whole: Presentation of the 2022 Budget 
 
The Council did not enter into Committee of the Whole 
 
Discussion ensued regarding the public request for City funds to maintain and upgrade to the tennis courts 
and the ball fields. 
 
K. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
City Clerk reported the following document was Placed on the Table: 

• Memo from Jack Snodgrass. 
 
L. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 

Mike Coons: 
• Quoted the City Code of Ethics and requested Council act for alleged violations by Council 

members through censure or recall. 
 

Jackie Goforth: 
• Read Facebook posts aloud, citing Council member comments. 
• Commented on the number of genders, and Rules for Radicals number 8. 

 
Erik Anderson: 

• Recommended that Council allocate additional funds for more streetlights, roads, infrastructure 
needs. 

• Consider different revenue streams for future City projects, including purchasing an additional 
Zamboni. 

 
Sam Dinges, Executive Director, Palmer Museum: 

• Thanked the Council for continued support for the Museum/Visitor Center. 
 
M. EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
The Council did not hold an Executive Session. 
 

N. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

Council Member Valerius: 
• Thanked the Fire Chief and the other presenters. 
• Wished Mayor DeVries good luck in her new position as the Mat-Su Borough Mayor. 

 
Council Member Daniels: 

• Thanked the Fire Chief Shelton and the other presenters for their thorough presentations. 
• Congratulated Mayor DeVries on her new position.  

 

21



 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: November 9, 2021, City Council Regular Meeting Minutes Page 4 of 4 

Council Member Melin: 
• Expressed appreciation to all the meeting attendees and presenters. 
• Congratulated Mayor DeVries. 
• Thanked the audience for participating. 
• Requested Council support to hold the members of the Council who violated the Open Meetings 

Act (OMA) accountable through the City Code of Ethics document. Council Member Best seconded 
the motion and requested that the issue be brought forth after January 1, 2022. 

 
Discussion followed between the Council and the City Attorney regarding Council Member Melin’s 
request. 
 
Council member Combs: 

• Thanked the presenters 
• Requested Council support to remain on the Alaska Municipal League’s (AML) Executive Board of 

Directors as Secretary/Treasurer and noted the AML Conference starts next week. Council 
Member Valerius offered support of Combs’ request. 

 
Council Member Best objected and requested a Council vote on Council Member Combs’ request to 
remain on the AML Board. 
 
Discussion followed between the Council and the Attorney about the best path forward regarding 
Combs’ request.  
 
Main Motion: To Allow Council Member Combs to Continue to Represent the City of 

Palmer on the AML Board of Directors  
Moved by: Requested by Combs 

Seconded by: Objection raised by Best 
Vote: No – 4, Yes-3; Valerius, Daniels, and Combs in favor 

Action: Motion Failed 
 

Council Member Best: 
• Asked for the Council member currently the subject of recall petition to submit their resignations. 

 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:54 p.m. 
 
Approved this ____ day of _____________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 
 _______________________________ 
 Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 
_______________________________ 
Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
 

22



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-039 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 21-039 

 
Subject:  Designating Authorized Signatures for Check Signing Affecting Any and All Disbursements of the City 
Monies and Designating City Representatives Who are Authorized and Empowered to Execute and Deliver All 
Documentation and Instructions on City Investment Accounts 
 
Agenda of: December 14, 2021 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Gina Davis, Finance Director 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 

 

 
  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

23



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-039 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Resolution No. 21-039 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
The City of Palmer has a new mayor, Steve Carrington. 
 
This resolution will allow Mayor Steve Carrington to become a check signer on the general checking account, 
Palmer construction account and manage City investments to maximize City investment earnings while maintaining 
safety and liquidity in accordance with the City’s Investment Policy. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 21-039 
 
 

24



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-039 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 21-039 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Designating Authorized Signatures for Check Signing 
Affecting Any and All Disbursements of City Monies and Designating City Representatives Who Are 
Authorized and Empowered to Execute and Deliver All Documentation and Instructions on City 
Investment Accounts 

 
WHEREAS, Steve Carrington was appointed Mayor of the City of Palmer on November 23, 2021; and 
 
WHEREAS, John Moosey was appointed by the Council to serve as City Manager on June 15, 2020; and 
 
WHEREAS, Gina Davis was hired as the City of Palmer Finance Director on April 24, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, Michele Tefft was hired as the City of Palmer Finance Manager on July 17, 2017. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby designates authorized signatures 

for check signing affecting any and all disbursements of City monies. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby makes effective 

December 14, 2021, two of the following signatures will be placed on each check and the following individuals 
are authorized and empowered to execute and deliver all documentation and instruction on City Investment 
Accounts: 

 
1. Steve Carrington 
2. John Moosey 
3. Gina Davis 
4. Michele Tefft 

 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Steve Carrington, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: Manager Moosey 

Date: December 14, 2021 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

25



26



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-040 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer  
Resolution No. 21-040 

 
Subject:  Authorizing the City Manager to Suspend the February 1, 2022, Late Fee for Business License 
Applications Due to the Implementation of Online Business License and Sales Tax Platform 
 
Agenda of: December 14, 2021 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Gina Davis, Finance Director 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 

 

 
  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 1,000.00 
 

This legislation (√): 
√ Creates revenue in the amount of: $ Loss in Revenue 
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

27



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-040 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s): 
1. Resolution No. 21-040 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
City of Palmer business license for annual business license holders expires on 12/31 of each year. The City allows 
businesses to renew their City business license without accruing late fees until January 31 of the new calendar 
year. Starting on February 1 of the new calendar year, a $25.00 late fee is assessed for business licenses not 
renewed prior to February 1. Annually the City collects close to $1,000 in business license penalty and interest in 
the month of February. 
 
The implementation of the City’s Online Business License and Sales Tax software is after the close of the 
12/31/2021 calendar year. There is a two-week period before we can actually start using the online system, which 
will be mid-January. It would be beneficial to give our businesses ample time to get registered in the online system 
and apply for their 2022 business license. Allowing City businesses to not incur a late fee until March 1, 2022, 
would allow for both businesses and staff to become more familiar with the online system. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Resolution No. 21-040 
 
 

28



 

City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 21-040 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 
 

Resolution No. 21-040 
 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Authorizing the City Manager to Suspend the February 1, 
2022, Late Fee for Business License Applications Due to the Implementation of Online Business 
License and Sales Tax Platform 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer business licenses expire as of the end of the calendar year; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has a grace period through January 31, for businesses to renew their annual business 

license without incurring a late fee; and 
 
WHEREAS, the implementation of online business license and sales tax filing platform will occur mid-

January and the City would like to extend the grace period for renewal of business license for 2022 through 
February 28, 2022. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby suspends the February 1 late 
fee for annual business license applications. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby extends the grace 

period for renewing the City’s 2022 annual business license to February 28, 2022. This resolution is to take effect 
on January 1, 2022. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this ____ day of ___________, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Steve Carrington, Mayor 

 
_____________________________ 
Shelly M. Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: Manager Moosey 

Date: December 14, 2021 
Action:  

Vote:  
Yes: No: 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  

29



30



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-001 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Resolution No. 22-001 

 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Adopting the City of Palmer Employee Pay 
Plan 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Palmer wishes to approve the attached pay plan for the 
compensation of employees; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby amends its 
employee compensation pay plan by adopting the attached “City of Palmer Pay Plan-January 1, 
2022” with effective date of the pay plan to be January 1, 2022. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Shelly Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by:  City Manager Moosey 

Date: October 19, 2021 
Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

31



   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  C

IT
Y 

O
F 

PA
LM

ER
 P

AY
 P

LA
N

 --
  J

an
au

ry
 1

, 2
02

2
 

 
 

 
St

ep
s

 
Lo

ng
ev

ity
 S

te
ps

*
LE

VE
L

Le
ve

l C
la

ss
ifi

ca
tio

n 
by

 Jo
b 

Ti
tle

1
2

3
4

5
6

7
8

9
A

B
C

D
E

F
1

 
Ho

ur
ly

11
.7

3
12

.1
7

12
.6

1
13

.0
7

13
.5

7
14

.0
6

14
.5

8
15

.1
2

15
.6

9
16

.1
9

16
.7

2
17

.2
7

17
.8

5
18

.4
4

19
.0

5
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y

93
8.

40
97

3.
60

10
08

.8
0

10
45

.6
0

10
85

.6
0

11
24

.8
0

11
66

.4
0

12
09

.6
0

12
55

.2
0

12
95

.2
0

13
37

.6
0

13
81

.6
0

14
28

.0
0

14
75

.2
0

15
24

.0
0

An
nu

al
24

,3
98

   
  

25
,3

14
   

  
26

,2
29

   
  

27
,1

86
   

  
28

,2
26

   
  

29
,2

45
   

  
30

,3
26

   
  

31
,4

50
   

  
32

,6
35

   
   

33
,6

75
   

   
 

34
,7

78
   

   
 

35
,9

22
   

 
37

,1
28

   
   

 
38

,3
55

   
   

39
,6

24
   

   
2

Se
as

on
al

 A
re

na
 A

tt
en

da
nt

Ho
ur

ly
13

.2
8

13
.7

6
14

.2
8

14
.8

0
15

.3
6

15
.9

2
16

.5
2

17
.1

5
17

.7
9

18
.3

8
18

.9
8

19
.6

1
20

.2
5

20
.9

3
21

.6
3

Ja
ni

to
r/

 L
ig

ht
 M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y

10
62

.4
0

11
00

.8
0

11
42

.4
0

11
84

.0
0

12
28

.8
0

12
73

.6
0

13
21

.6
0

13
72

.0
0

14
23

.2
0

14
70

.4
0

15
18

.4
0

15
68

.8
0

16
20

.0
0

16
74

.4
0

17
30

.4
0

Li
br

ar
y 

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 

An
nu

al
27

,6
22

   
  

28
,6

21
   

  
29

,7
02

   
  

30
,7

84
   

  
31

,9
49

   
  

33
,1

14
   

  
34

,3
62

   
  

35
,6

72
   

  
37

,0
03

38
,2

30
   

   
 

39
,4

78
   

   
 

40
,7

89
   

 
42

,1
20

   
   

 
43

,5
34

   
   

44
,9

90
   

   
Se

as
on

al
 G

ro
un

ds
ke

ep
er

s /
 L

T 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
3

Li
br

ar
y 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t
Ho

ur
ly

14
.8

0
15

.3
6

15
.9

2
16

.5
2

17
.1

5
17

.7
9

18
.4

6
19

.1
6

19
.8

8
20

.5
4

21
.2

2
21

.9
3

22
.6

6
23

.4
2

24
.2

1
Re

ce
pt

io
ni

st
  &

 C
as

hi
er

 (P
T)

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y
11

84
.0

0
12

28
.8

0
12

73
.6

0
13

21
.6

0
13

72
.0

0
14

23
.2

0
14

76
.8

0
15

32
.8

0
15

90
.4

0
16

43
.2

0
16

97
.6

0
17

54
.4

0
18

12
.8

0
18

73
.6

0
19

36
.8

0
An

nu
al

30
,7

84
   

  
31

,9
49

   
  

33
,1

14
   

  
34

,3
62

   
  

35
,6

72
   

  
37

,0
03

   
  

38
,3

97
   

  
39

,8
53

   
  

41
,3

50
   

   
42

,7
23

   
   

 
44

,1
38

   
   

 
45

,6
14

   
 

47
,1

33
   

   
 

48
,7

14
   

   
50

,3
57

   
   

4
Ad

m
in

 A
ss

ist
an

t: 
 L

ib
ra

ry
Ho

ur
ly

16
.3

0
16

.9
1

17
.5

5
18

.2
1

18
.9

0
19

.6
1

20
.3

5
21

.1
3

21
.9

3
22

.6
6

23
.4

1
24

.2
1

25
.0

2
25

.8
6

26
.7

3
El

ec
tio

n 
W

or
ke

r
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y

13
04

.0
0

13
52

.8
0

14
04

.0
0

14
56

.8
0

15
12

.0
0

15
68

.8
0

16
28

.0
0

16
90

.4
0

17
54

.3
8

18
12

.8
0

18
72

.8
0

19
36

.8
0

20
01

.6
0

20
68

.8
0

21
38

.4
0

 
An

nu
al

33
,9

04
   

  
35

,1
73

   
  

36
,5

04
   

  
37

,8
77

   
  

39
,3

12
   

  
40

,7
89

   
  

42
,3

28
   

  
43

,9
50

   
  

45
,6

14
   

   
47

,1
33

   
   

 
48

,6
93

   
   

 
50

,3
57

   
 

52
,0

42
   

   
 

53
,7

89
   

   
55

,5
98

   
   

5
Ad

m
in

 A
ss

t -
 P

ub
lic

 S
af

et
y,

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

,
Ho

ur
ly

17
.8

6
18

.5
4

19
.2

4
19

.9
7

20
.7

3
21

.5
2

22
.3

3
23

.1
9

24
.0

7
24

.8
9

25
.7

2
26

.5
9

27
.4

8
28

.4
1

29
.3

7
Co

m
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t,M
ay

or
 C

ou
nc

il 
Cl

er
k

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y
14

28
.8

0
14

83
.2

0
15

39
.2

0
15

97
.6

0
16

58
.4

0
17

21
.6

0
17

86
.4

0
18

55
.2

0
19

25
.6

0
19

91
.2

0
20

57
.6

0
21

27
.2

0
21

98
.4

0
22

72
.8

0
23

49
.6

0
Ci

ty
 M

an
ag

er
, R

ec
ep

tio
ni

st
 &

 C
as

hi
er

An
nu

al
37

,1
49

38
,5

63
40

,0
19

41
,5

38
43

,1
18

44
,7

62
46

,4
46

48
,2

35
50

,0
66

51
,7

71
   

   
 

53
,4

98
   

   
 

55
,3

07
   

 
57

,1
58

   
   

 
59

,0
93

   
   

61
,0

90
   

   
Co

m
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t S
pe

ci
al

ist
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 W

or
ke

r, 
Se

as
on

al
 A

re
na

 S
pe

ci
al

ist
Se

as
on

al
 A

re
na

 O
pe

ra
tio

ns
 A

ss
ist

an
t

Gr
ou

nd
sk

ee
pe

r F
or

em
an

, L
ib

ra
ry

 A
ss

ist
an

t
6

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Te

ch
ni

ci
an

 I,
 D

isp
at

ch
er

 I
Ho

ur
ly

19
.4

1
20

.1
4

20
.9

0
21

.7
0

22
.5

3
23

.3
8

24
.2

8
25

.2
1

26
.1

7
27

.0
6

27
.9

7
28

.9
1

29
.8

9
30

.9
0

31
.9

5
Ev

id
en

ce
 &

 R
ec

or
ds

 C
us

to
di

an
 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y
15

52
.8

0
16

11
.2

0
16

72
.0

0
17

36
.0

0
18

02
.4

0
18

70
.4

0
19

42
.4

0
20

16
.8

0
20

93
.6

0
21

64
.8

0
22

37
.6

0
23

12
.8

0
23

91
.2

0
24

72
.0

0
25

56
.0

0
Li

b 
Sr

vs
 C

oo
rd

in
at

or
, W

/W
W

 O
pe

ra
to

r I
An

nu
al

40
,3

73
41

,8
91

43
,4

72
45

,1
36

46
,8

62
48

,6
30

50
,5

02
52

,4
37

54
,4

34
56

,2
85

   
   

 
58

,1
78

   
   

 
60

,1
33

   
 

62
,1

71
   

   
 

64
,2

72
   

   
66

,4
56

   
   

So
lid

 W
as

te
 C

ol
le

ct
or

, M
ec

ha
ni

c 
I

7
Bu

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r, 

Di
sp

at
ch

er
 II

Ho
ur

ly
20

.9
4

21
.7

4
22

.5
7

23
.4

2
24

.3
3

25
.2

7
26

.2
2

27
.2

3
28

.2
8

29
.2

4
30

.2
3

31
.2

5
32

.3
1

33
.4

1
34

.5
4

Eq
ui

pm
en

t O
pe

ra
to

r, 
 M

ec
ha

ni
c 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y
16

75
.2

0
17

39
.2

0
18

05
.6

0
18

73
.6

0
19

46
.4

0
20

21
.6

0
20

97
.6

0
21

78
.4

0
22

62
.4

0
23

39
.2

0
24

18
.4

0
25

00
.0

0
25

84
.8

0
26

72
.8

0
27

63
.2

0
Po

lic
e 

O
ffi

ce
r I

, S
up

po
rt

 S
er

vi
ce

s S
pe

ci
al

ist
An

nu
al

43
,5

55
45

,2
19

46
,9

46
48

,7
14

50
,6

06
52

,5
62

54
,5

38
56

,6
38

58
,8

22
60

,8
19

   
   

 
62

,8
78

   
   

 
65

,0
00

   
 

67
,2

05
   

   
 

69
,4

93
   

   
71

,8
43

   
   

U
til

ity
 M

et
er

 R
ea

de
r &

 L
ab

or
er

 
W

/W
W

 O
pe

ra
to

r I
I

8
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 II

Ho
ur

ly
22

.4
7

23
.3

2
24

.2
2

25
.1

4
26

.1
1

27
.1

2
28

.1
6

29
.2

4
30

.3
7

31
.4

0
32

.4
6

33
.5

6
34

.6
9

35
.8

7
37

.0
9

De
pu

ty
 C

ity
 C

le
rk

 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y

17
97

.6
0

18
65

.6
0

19
37

.6
0

20
11

.2
0

20
88

.8
0

21
69

.6
0

22
52

.8
0

23
39

.2
0

24
29

.6
0

25
12

.0
0

25
96

.8
0

26
84

.8
0

27
75

.2
0

28
69

.6
0

29
67

.2
0

 
An

nu
al

46
,7

38
48

,5
06

50
,3

78
52

,2
91

54
,3

09
56

,4
10

58
,5

73
60

,8
19

63
,1

70
65

,3
12

   
   

 
67

,5
17

   
   

 
69

,8
05

   
 

72
,1

55
   

   
 

74
,6

10
   

   
77

,1
47

   
   

9
Di

sp
at

ch
 S

up
er

vi
so

r, 
Fi

re
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
O

ffi
ce

r
Ho

ur
ly

24
.0

1
24

.9
4

25
.8

8
26

.8
8

27
.9

2
29

.0
1

30
.1

3
31

.3
0

32
.5

1
33

.6
1

34
.7

5
35

.9
4

37
.1

5
38

.4
2

39
.7

3
Fi

re
 T

ra
in

in
g 

Co
or

di
na

to
r

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y
19

20
.8

0
19

95
.2

0
20

70
.4

0
21

50
.4

0
22

33
.6

0
23

20
.8

0
24

10
.4

0
25

04
.0

0
26

00
.8

0
26

88
.8

0
27

80
.0

0
28

75
.2

0
29

72
.0

0
30

73
.6

0
31

78
.4

0
Pa

rk
s &

 F
ac

ili
ty

 M
an

ag
er

An
nu

al
49

,9
41

51
,8

75
53

,8
30

55
,9

10
58

,0
74

60
,3

41
62

,6
70

65
,1

04
67

,6
21

69
,9

09
   

   
 

72
,2

80
   

   
 

74
,7

55
   

 
77

,2
72

   
   

 
79

,9
14

   
   

82
,6

38
   

   
Po

lic
e 

O
ffi

ce
r I

I, 
U

til
iti

es
 F

or
em

an
10

Li
br

ar
y 

Di
re

ct
or

Ho
ur

ly
25

.5
3

26
.5

2
27

.5
4

28
.6

0
29

.7
1

30
.8

5
32

.0
5

33
.2

9
34

.5
9

35
.7

6
36

.9
9

38
.2

4
39

.5
5

40
.9

0
42

.3
0

Po
lic

e 
De

te
ct

iv
e 

Se
rg

ea
nt

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y
20

42
.4

0
21

21
.6

0
22

03
.2

0
22

88
.0

0
23

76
.8

0
24

68
.0

0
25

64
.0

0
26

63
.2

0
27

67
.2

0
28

60
.8

0
29

59
.2

0
30

59
.2

0
31

64
.0

0
32

72
.0

0
33

84
.0

0
Po

lic
e 

Se
rg

ea
nt

An
nu

al
53

,1
02

55
,1

62
57

,2
83

59
,4

88
61

,7
97

64
,1

68
66

,6
64

69
,2

43
71

,9
47

74
,3

81
   

   
 

76
,9

39
   

   
 

79
,5

39
   

 
82

,2
64

   
   

 
85

,0
72

   
   

87
,9

84
   

   
11

Ai
rp

or
t S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t
Ho

ur
ly

27
.0

7
28

.1
1

29
.1

9
30

.3
1

31
.4

9
32

.7
1

33
.9

8
35

.3
0

36
.6

7
37

.9
2

39
.2

1
40

.5
5

41
.9

3
43

.3
6

44
.8

4
Co

m
m

an
de

r, 
Fi

na
nc

e 
M

an
ag

er
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y

21
65

.6
0

22
48

.8
0

23
35

.2
0

24
24

.8
0

25
19

.2
0

26
16

.8
0

27
18

.4
0

28
24

.0
0

29
33

.6
0

30
33

.6
0

31
36

.8
0

32
44

.0
0

33
54

.4
0

34
68

.8
0

35
87

.2
0

Hu
m

an
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

M
an

ag
er

An
nu

al
56

,3
06

58
,4

69
60

,7
15

63
,0

45
65

,4
99

68
,0

37
70

,6
78

73
,4

24
76

,2
74

78
,8

74
   

   
 

81
,5

57
   

   
 

84
,3

44
   

 
87

,2
14

   
   

 
90

,1
89

   
   

93
,2

67
   

   
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t
12

Di
re

ct
or

s:
 C

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
Ho

ur
ly

33
.9

2
35

.2
4

36
.6

1
38

.0
3

39
.5

1
41

.0
5

42
.6

5
44

.3
2

46
.0

4
47

.6
2

49
.2

6
50

.9
4

52
.7

0
54

.5
1

56
.3

8
Fi

na
nc

e,
 P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y

27
13

.6
0

28
19

.2
0

29
28

.8
0

30
42

.4
0

31
60

.8
0

32
84

.0
0

34
12

.0
0

35
45

.6
0

36
83

.2
0

38
09

.6
0

39
40

.8
0

40
75

.2
0

42
16

.0
0

43
60

.8
0

45
10

.4
0

Fi
re

 C
hi

ef
, P

ol
ic

e 
Ch

ie
f

An
nu

al
70

,5
54

73
,2

99
76

,1
49

79
,1

02
82

,1
81

85
,3

84
88

,7
12

92
,1

86
95

,7
63

99
,0

50
   

   
 

10
2,

46
1

   
  

10
5,

95
5

  
10

9,
61

6
   

  
11

3,
38

1
   

 
11

7,
27

0
   

 

*P
ay

 In
cr

em
en

ts
 fo

r L
on

ge
vi

ty

St
ep

 A
W

he
n 

an
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 re
ac

he
s s

te
p 

A,
 B

 o
r C

 o
f t

he
ir 

as
si

gn
ed

 p
ay

 le
ve

l, 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 sh

al
l r

em
ai

n 
at

 st
ep

 A
, B

 o
r C

 fo
r t

w
o 

(o
r m

or
e)

 y
ea

rs
. W

he
n 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
om

pl
et

es
 tw

o 
(o

r m
or

e)
 y

ea
rs

 a
t s

te
p 

A,
 B

, o
r C

 th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 m
ov

es
 to

 st
ep

 B
, C

 o
r D

 o
f t

he
 P

ay

St
ep

 B
Pl

an
 a

nd
 is

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r t

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 st

ep
 B

, C
 o

r D
; p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 re
ce

iv
ed

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l r

at
in

g 
of

 "s
at

is
fa

ct
or

y"
 o

r h
ig

he
r o

n 
hi

s o
r h

er
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 e

va
lu

at
io

n 
an

d 
w

or
ke

d 
co

nt
in

ou
sl

y 
as

 a
 re

gu
la

r f
ul

lti
m

e 
or

 p
ar

t-
tim

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
.

St
ep

 C
  

St
ep

 D
W

he
n 

an
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 re
ac

he
s s

te
p 

D 
or

 E
 o

f t
he

ir 
as

si
gn

ed
 p

ay
 le

ve
l, 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 sh
al

l r
em

ai
n 

at
 st

ep
 D

 o
r E

 fo
r t

hr
ee

 (o
r m

or
e)

 y
ea

rs
. W

he
n 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
om

pl
et

es
 th

re
e 

(o
r m

or
e)

 y
ea

rs
 a

t s
te

p 
D 

or
 E

, t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 m

ov
es

 to
 st

ep
 E

 o
r F

 o
f t

he
 P

ay
 P

la
n

St
ep

 E
an

d 
is

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r t

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 st

ep
 E

 o
r F

; p
ro

vi
de

d 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 re

ce
iv

ed
 a

n 
ov

er
al

l r
at

in
g 

of
 "s

at
is

fa
ct

or
y"

 o
r h

ig
he

r o
n 

hi
s o

r h
er

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
n 

an
d 

w
or

ke
d 

co
nt

in
ou

sl
y 

as
 a

 re
gu

la
r f

ul
lti

m
e 

or
 p

ar
t-

tim
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

.

St
ep

 F
W

he
n 

an
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 re
ac

he
s t

he
 e

nd
 o

f t
he

 p
ay

 sc
al

e 
(s

te
p 

F)
, t

he
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 is
 n

o 
lo

ng
er

 e
nt

itl
ed

 to
 a

 st
ep

 in
cr

ea
se

.

N
ot

e:
Em

pl
oy

ee
s i

n 
lo

ng
ev

ity
 a

re
 p

ro
hi

bi
te

d 
fr

om
 sk

ip
pi

ng
 st

ep
s a

nd
 m

us
t r

em
ai

n 
at

 e
ac

h 
st

ep
 a

s i
nd

ic
at

ed
.

 
Co

un
ci

l A
pp

ro
ve

d:
  1

2/
14

/2
02

1
 

Im
pl

em
en

t: 
01

/0
1/

20
22

32



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
 o

f 2
1 

 
    

St
ep

s 
(L

ev
el

 1
) 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
11

.7
3 

12
.1

7 
12

.6
1 

13
.0

7 
13

.5
7 

14
.0

6 
14

.5
8 

15
.1

2 
15

.6
9 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
93

8.
40

 
97

3.
60

 
10

08
.8

0 
10

45
.6

0 
10

85
.6

0 
11

24
.8

0 
11

66
.4

0 
12

09
.6

0 
12

55
.2

0 
An

nu
al

 
24

,3
98

 
25

,3
14

 
26

,2
29

 
27

,1
86

 
28

,2
26

 
29

,2
45

 
30

,3
26

 
31

,4
50

 
32

,6
35

 
 

*L
on

ge
vi

ty
 I

nc
re

m
en

ts
 

  
A 

B 
C 

D 
E 

F 
Ho

ur
ly 

16
.1

9 
16

.7
2 

17
.2

7 
17

.8
5 

18
.4

4 
19

.0
5 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
12

95
.2

0 
13

37
.6

0 
13

81
.6

0 
14

28
.0

0 
14

75
.2

0 
15

24
.0

0 
An

nu
al

 
33

,6
75

 
34

,7
78

 
35

,9
22

 
37

,1
28

 
38

,3
55

 
39

,6
24

 
     

 

33



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
 o

f 2
1 

 
 

Le
ve

l (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 2

 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Ic
e 

Ar
en

a 
At

te
nd

an
t 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
4 

@
 .0

5 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
2 

@
 .5

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Ic
e 

Ar
en

a 
At

te
nd

an
t:

 
1.

20
 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Ja

ni
to

r/
Li

gh
t M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

2 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Ja
ni

to
r/

Li
gh

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

: 
2 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Li

br
ar

y 
Te

ch
ni

cia
n 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
4 

@
 .5

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

9 
@

 .0
75

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Li

br
ar

y 
Te

ch
ni

ci
an

: 
2.

67
5 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Gr

ou
nd

sk
ee

pe
r/

Li
gh

t M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
4 

@
 .3

0;
 2

@
 .4

0;
 2

@
 .3

5 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

G
ro

un
ds

ke
ep

er
: 

2.
70

 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f F

TE
 fo

r 
th

is
 L

ev
el

: 
8.

57
5 

         

34



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 3
 o

f 2
1 

 
   

St
ep

s 
(L

ev
el

 2
) 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
13

.2
8 

13
.7

6 
14

.2
8 

14
.8

0 
15

.3
6 

15
.9

2 
16

.5
2 

17
.1

5 
17

.7
9 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
10

62
.4

0 
11

00
.8

0 
11

42
.4

0 
11

84
.0

0 
12

28
.8

0 
12

73
.6

0 
13

21
.6

0 
13

72
.0

0 
14

23
.2

0 
An

nu
al

 
27

,6
22

 
28

,6
21

 
29

,7
02

 
30

,7
84

 
31

,9
49

 
33

,1
14

 
34

,3
62

 
35

,6
72

 
37

,0
03

 
  

*L
on

ge
vi

ty
 I

nc
re

m
en

ts
 

  
A 

B 
C 

D 
E 

F 
Ho

ur
ly 

18
.3

8 
18

.9
8 

19
.6

1 
20

.2
5 

20
.9

3 
21

.6
3 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
14

70
.4

0 
15

18
.4

0 
15

68
.8

0 
16

20
.0

0 
16

74
.4

0 
17

30
.4

0 
An

nu
al

 
38

,2
30

 
39

,4
78

 
40

,7
89

 
42

,1
20

 
43

,5
34

 
44

,9
90

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

       

 
 

35



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 4
 o

f 2
1 

 
 

Le
ve

l (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 3

 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Re
ce

pt
io

ni
st

 &
 C

as
hi

er
 P

T 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
@

 .5
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Re
ce

pt
io

ni
st

 &
 C

as
hi

er
 P

T:
 

.5
0 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Li

br
ar

y 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Li
br

ar
y 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t:
 

1 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  T
ot

al
 N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r t

hi
s 

Le
ve

l: 
1.

50
 

 
  

 
 

St
ep

s 
(L

ev
el

 3
) 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
14

.8
0 

15
.3

6 
15

.9
2 

16
.5

2 
17

.1
5 

17
.7

9 
18

.4
6 

19
.1

6 
19

.8
8 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
11

84
.0

0 
12

28
.8

0 
12

73
.6

0 
13

21
.6

0 
13

72
.0

0 
14

23
.2

0 
14

76
.8

0 
15

32
.8

0 
15

90
.4

0 
An

nu
al

 
30

,7
84

 
31

,9
49

 
33

,1
14

 
34

,3
62

 
35

,6
72

 
37

,0
03

 
38

,3
97

 
39

,8
53

 
41

,3
50

 
 

*L
on

ge
vi

ty
 I

nc
re

m
en

ts
 

  
A 

B 
C 

D 
E 

F 
Ho

ur
ly 

20
.5

4 
21

.2
2 

21
.9

3 
22

.6
6 

23
.4

2 
24

.2
1 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
16

43
.2

0 
16

97
.6

0 
17

54
.4

0 
18

12
.8

0 
18

73
.6

0 
19

36
.8

0 
An

nu
al

 
42

,7
23

 
44

,1
38

 
45

,6
14

 
47

,1
33

 
48

,7
14

 
50

,3
57

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

36



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 5
 o

f 2
1 

 
 

Le
ve

l (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 4

 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Ad
m

in
ist

ra
tiv

e 
As

sis
ta

nt
: L

ib
ra

ry
 P

T 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
@

 .7
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

As
si

st
an

t:
 

.7
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 L

ev
el

: 
.7

0 
 

St
ep

s 
(L

ev
el

 4
) 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
16

.3
0 

16
.9

1 
17

.5
5 

18
.2

1 
18

.9
0 

19
.6

1 
20

.3
5 

21
.1

3 
21

.9
3 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
13

04
.0

0 
13

52
.8

0 
14

04
.0

0 
14

56
.8

0 
15

12
.0

0 
15

68
.8

0 
16

28
.0

0 
16

90
.4

0 
17

54
.3

8 
An

nu
al

ly
 

33
,9

04
 

35
,1

73
 

36
,5

04
 

37
,8

77
 

39
,3

12
 

40
,7

89
 

42
,3

28
 

43
,9

50
 

45
,6

14
 

 
*L

on
ge

vi
ty

 I
nc

re
m

en
ts

 
 

A 
B 

C 
D 

E 
F 

Ho
ur

ly 
22

.6
6 

23
.4

1 
24

.2
1 

25
.0

2 
25

.8
6 

26
.7

3 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

18
12

.8
0 

18
72

.8
0 

19
36

.8
0 

20
01

.6
0 

20
68

.8
0 

21
38

.4
0 

An
nu

al
 

47
,1

33
 

48
,6

93
 

50
,3

57
 

52
,0

42
 

53
,7

89
 

55
,5

98
 

           

37



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 6
 o

f 2
1 

 
 

Le
ve

l (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 5

 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Ad

m
in

ist
ra

tiv
e 

As
sis

ta
nt

 –
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t, 
Pu

bl
ic 

Sa
fe

ty
, P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
, 

M
ay

or
 C

ou
nc

il 
Cl

er
k,

 C
ity

 M
an

ag
er

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
4 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
@

 .5
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Ad
m

in
is

tr
at

iv
e 

As
si

st
an

t:
 

4.
50

 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Li
br

ar
y 

As
sis

ta
nt

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Li

br
ar

y 
As

si
st

an
t:

 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Re

ce
pt

io
ni

st
 &

 C
as

hi
er

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Re

ce
pt

io
ni

st
 &

 C
as

hi
er

: 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Ar

en
a 

Op
er

at
io

ns
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

1 
@

 .5
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Ar

en
a 

O
pe

ra
tio

ns
: 

.5
0 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Ar

en
a 

Sp
ec

ia
lis

t 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
1 

@
 .5

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Ar
en

a 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t:

 
.5

0 

38



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 7
 o

f 2
1 

 
 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Gr

ou
nd

sk
ee

pe
r F

or
em

an
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

G
ro

un
ds

ke
ep

er
 F

or
em

an
: 

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 W
or

ke
r 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

2 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

2 
@

 .2
5 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 W

or
ke

r:
 

2.
50

 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

pe
cia

lis
t 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

pe
ci

al
is

t:
 

1 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

th
is

 L
ev

el
: 

12
.0

0 
 

St
ep

s 
(L

ev
el

 5
) 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
17

.8
6 

18
.5

4 
19

.2
4 

19
.9

7 
20

.7
3 

21
.5

2 
22

.3
3 

23
.1

9 
24

.0
7 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
14

28
.8

0 
14

83
.2

0 
15

39
.2

0 
15

97
.6

0 
16

58
.4

0 
17

21
.6

0 
17

86
.4

0 
18

55
.2

0 
19

25
.6

0 
An

nu
al

ly
 

37
,1

49
 

38
,5

63
 

40
,0

19
 

41
,5

38
 

43
,1

18
 

44
,7

62
 

46
,4

46
 

48
,2

35
 

50
,0

66
 

 
*L

on
ge

vi
ty

 I
nc

re
m

en
ts

 
  

A 
B 

C 
D 

E 
F 

Ho
ur

ly 
24

.8
9 

25
.7

2 
26

.5
9 

27
.4

8 
28

.4
1 

29
.3

7 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

19
91

.2
0 

20
57

.6
0 

21
27

.2
0 

21
98

.4
0 

22
72

.8
0 

23
49

.6
0 

An
nu

al
 

51
,7

71
 

53
,4

98
 

55
,3

07
 

57
,1

58
 

59
,0

93
 

61
,0

90
 

 

39



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 8
 o

f 2
1 

 
 

    
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
  L

ev
el

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 6

 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Ac
co

un
tin

g 
Te

ch
ni

cia
n 

I 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
3 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 1

: 
3 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Di

sp
at

ch
er

 I 
(p

ro
ba

tio
n 

18
 m

on
th

s 
th

en
 II

) 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
D

is
pa

tc
he

r 
1:

 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Li

br
ar

y 
Se

rv
ice

s 
Co

or
di

na
to

r 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Li

br
ar

y 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Co

or
di

na
to

r:
 

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Ev
id

en
ce

 a
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

 C
us

to
di

an
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Ev
id

en
ce

 a
nd

 R
ec

or
ds

 C
us

to
di

an
: 

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

W
at

er
 a

nd
 W

as
te

 W
at

er
 O

pe
ra

to
r I

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
4 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 F

ul
l-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r W

at
er

 a
nd

 W
as

te
 W

at
er

 O
pe

ra
to

r 
I:

 
5 

40



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 9
 o

f 2
1 

 
  

 
 

   
 

 
 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
So

lid
 W

as
te

 C
ol

le
ct

or
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

So
lid

 W
as

te
 C

ol
le

ct
or

: 
1 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 L

ev
el

: 
12

 
     

St
ep

s 
(L

ev
el

 6
) 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
19

.4
1 

20
.1

4 
20

.9
0 

21
.7

0 
22

.5
3 

23
.3

8 
24

.2
8 

25
.2

1 
26

.1
7 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
15

52
.8

0 
16

11
.2

0 
16

72
.0

0 
17

36
.0

0 
18

02
.4

0 
18

70
.4

0 
19

42
.4

0 
20

16
.8

0 
20

93
.6

0 
An

nu
al

ly
 

40
,3

73
 

41
,8

91
 

43
,4

72
 

45
,1

36
 

46
,8

62
 

48
,6

30
 

50
,5

02
 

52
,4

37
 

54
,4

34
 

 
*L

on
ge

vi
ty

 I
nc

re
m

en
ts

 
  

A 
B 

C 
D 

E 
F 

Ho
ur

ly 
27

.0
6 

27
.9

7 
28

.9
1 

29
.8

9 
30

.9
0 

31
.9

5 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

21
64

.8
0 

22
37

.6
0 

23
12

.8
0 

23
91

.2
0 

24
72

.0
0 

25
56

.0
0 

An
nu

al
 

56
,2

85
 

58
,1

78
 

60
,1

33
 

62
,1

71
 

64
,2

72
 

66
,4

56
 

     
 

41



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
0 

of
 2

1 
 

  
Le

ve
l (

Ba
se

d 
on

 th
e 

Cl
as

si
fic

at
io

n 
Pl

an
):

 7
 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Bu

ild
in

g 
In

sp
ec

to
r 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Bu
ild

in
g 

In
sp

ec
to

r:
 

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Di
sp

at
ch

er
 II

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
5 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

3 
@

 .1
5 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

D
is

pa
tc

he
r 

II
: 

5.
45

 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t O
pe

ra
to

r 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
3 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
1 

@
 .5

 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t O
pe

ra
to

r:
 

3.
50

 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

M
ec

ha
ni

c 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
2 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
M

ec
ha

ni
c:

 
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

  J
ob

 T
itl

e:
 

Po
lic

e 
Of

fic
er

 I 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
2 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r P
ol

ic
e 

O
ff

ic
er

 I
: 

2 
 

 

42



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
1 

of
 2

1 
 

 

 
  

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

@
 .5

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Su

pp
or

t S
er

vi
ce

s 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t:

 
.5

0 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Ut
ilit

y 
M

et
er

 R
ea

de
r/

La
bo

re
r 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

U
til

ity
 M

et
er

 R
ea

de
r/

La
bo

re
r:

 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
W

at
er

 &
 W

as
te

 W
at

er
 O

pe
ra

to
r I

I 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r W
at

er
 &

 W
as

te
 W

at
er

 O
pe

ra
to

r I
I:

 
1 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 L

ev
el

: 
17

.0
5 

         
  

43



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
2 

of
 2

1 
 

      
St

ep
s 

(L
ev

el
 7

) 
 

1 
2 

3 
   

   
 4

 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
20

.9
4 

21
.7

4 
22

.5
7 

23
.4

2 
24

.3
3 

25
.2

7 
26

.2
2 

27
.2

3 
28

.2
8 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
16

75
.2

0 
17

39
.2

0 
18

05
.6

0 
18

73
.6

0 
19

46
.4

0 
20

21
.6

0 
20

97
.6

0 
21

78
.4

0 
22

62
.4

0 
An

nu
al

ly
 

43
,5

55
 

45
,2

19
 

46
,9

46
 

48
,7

14
 

50
,6

06
 

52
,5

62
 

54
,5

38
 

56
,6

38
 

58
,8

22
 

 
*L

on
ge

vi
ty

 I
nc

re
m

en
ts

 
  

A 
B 

C 
D 

E 
F 

Ho
ur

ly 
29

.2
4 

30
.2

3 
31

.2
5 

32
.3

1 
33

.4
1 

34
.5

4 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

23
39

.2
0 

24
18

.4
0 

25
00

.0
0 

25
84

.8
0 

26
72

.8
0 

27
63

.2
0 

An
nu

al
 

60
,8

19
 

62
,8

78
 

65
,0

00
 

67
,2

05
 

69
,4

93
 

71
,8

43
 

 
 

             
  

44



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
3 

of
 2

1 
 

  
 

 
St

ep
s 

(L
ev

el
 8

) 
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
8 

9 
Ho

ur
ly 

22
.4

7 
23

.3
2 

24
.2

2 
25

.1
4 

26
.1

1 
27

.1
2 

28
.1

6 
29

.2
4 

30
.3

7 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

17
97

.6
0 

18
65

.6
0 

19
37

.6
0 

20
11

.2
0 

20
88

.8
0 

21
69

.6
0 

22
52

.8
0 

23
39

.2
0 

24
29

.6
0 

An
nu

al
ly

 
46

,7
38

 
48

,5
06

 
50

,3
78

 
52

,2
91

 
54

,3
09

 
56

,4
10

 
58

,5
73

 
60

,8
19

 
63

,1
70

 
 

*L
on

ge
vi

ty
 I

nc
re

m
en

ts
 

  
A 

B 
C 

D 
E 

F 
Ho

ur
ly 

31
.4

0 
32

.4
6 

33
.5

6 
34

.6
9 

35
.8

7 
37

.0
9 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
25

12
.0

0 
25

96
.8

0 
26

84
.8

0 
27

75
.2

0 
28

69
.6

0 
29

67
.2

0 
An

nu
al

 
65

,3
12

 
67

,5
17

 
69

,8
05

 
72

,1
55

 
74

,6
10

 
77

,1
47

 
  

 

Le
ve

l (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 8

 
 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

Te
ch

ni
cia

n 
II

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Ac

co
un

tin
g 

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
 I

I:
 

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

De
pu

ty
 C

ity
 C

le
rk

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
@

 .7
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

D
ep

ut
y 

Ci
ty

 C
le

rk
: 

.7
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f F
TE

 fo
r 

th
is

 L
ev

el
: 

1.
70

 

45



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
4 

of
 2

1 
 

 

 
 

Le
ve

l (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 9

 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Pa
rk

s 
& 

Fa
cil

ity
 M

an
ag

er
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r P

ar
ks

 &
 F

ac
ili

ty
 M

an
ag

er
: 

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Di
sp

at
ch

 S
up

er
vi

so
r 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

D
is

pa
tc

h 
Su

pe
rv

is
or

: 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Fi

re
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
Of

fic
er

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Fi

re
 P

re
ve

nt
io

n 
O

ff
ic

er
: 

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Fi
re

 T
ra

in
in

g 
Co

or
di

na
to

r 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Fi

re
 T

ra
in

in
g 

Co
or

di
na

to
r:

 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Po

lic
e 

Of
fic

er
 II

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
8 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

2 
@

 .2
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r P

ol
ic

e 
O

ff
ic

er
 I

I:
 

8.
40

 

46



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
5 

of
 2

1 
 

 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Ut

ilit
y 

Fo
re

m
an

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
U

til
ity

 F
or

em
an

: 
1 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 L

ev
el

: 
13

.4
0 

 
 

 
St

ep
s 

(L
ev

el
 9

) 
 

1 
2 

3 
4 

5 
6 

7 
8 

9 
Ho

ur
ly 

24
.0

1 
24

.9
4 

25
.8

8 
26

.8
8 

27
.9

2 
29

.0
1 

30
.1

3 
31

.3
0 

32
.5

1 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

19
20

.8
0 

19
95

.2
0 

20
70

.4
0 

21
50

.4
0 

22
33

.6
0 

23
20

.8
0 

24
10

.4
0 

25
04

.0
0 

26
00

.8
1 

An
nu

al
ly

 
49

,9
41

 
51

,8
75

 
53

,8
30

 
55

,9
10

 
58

,0
74

 
60

,3
41

 
62

,6
70

 
65

,1
04

 
67

,6
21

 
 

*L
on

ge
vi

ty
 I

nc
re

m
en

ts
 

  
A 

B 
C 

D 
E 

F 
Ho

ur
ly 

33
.6

1 
34

.7
5 

35
.9

4 
37

.1
5 

38
.4

2 
39

.7
3 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
26

88
.8

0 
27

80
.0

0 
28

75
.2

0 
29

72
.0

0 
30

73
.6

0 
31

78
.4

0 
An

nu
al

 
69

,9
09

 
72

,2
80

 
74

,7
55

 
77

,2
72

 
79

,9
14

 
82

,6
38

 
          

 
 

47



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
6 

of
 2

1 
 

 

Le
ve

l (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 1

0 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Li
br

ar
y 

Di
re

ct
or

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Li

br
ar

y 
D

ir
ec

to
r:

 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Po

lic
e 

De
te

ct
iv

e 
Se

rg
ea

nt
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r P

ol
ic

e 
D

et
ec

tiv
e 

Se
rg

ea
nt

: 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Po

lic
e 

Se
rg

ea
nt

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
2 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r P
ol

ic
e 

Se
rg

ea
nt

: 
2 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 T

ot
al

 N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 L

ev
el

: 
4 

 
St

ep
s 

(L
ev

el
 1

0)
 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
25

.5
3 

26
.5

2 
27

.5
4 

28
.6

0 
29

.7
1 

30
.8

5 
32

.0
5 

33
.2

9 
34

.5
9 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
20

42
.4

0 
21

21
.6

0 
22

03
.2

0 
22

88
.0

0 
23

76
.8

0 
24

68
.0

0 
25

64
.0

0 
26

63
.2

0 
27

67
.2

0 
An

nu
al

ly
 

53
,1

02
 

55
,1

62
 

57
,2

83
 

59
,4

88
 

61
,7

97
 

64
,1

68
 

66
,6

64
 

69
,2

43
 

71
,9

47
 

 
*L

on
ge

vi
ty

 I
nc

re
m

en
ts

 
  

A 
B 

C 
D 

E 
F 

Ho
ur

ly 
35

.7
6 

36
.9

9 
38

.2
4 

39
.5

5 
40

.9
0 

42
.3

0 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

28
60

.8
0 

29
59

.2
0 

30
59

.2
0 

31
64

.0
0 

32
72

.0
0 

33
84

.0
0 

An
nu

al
 

74
,3

81
 

76
,9

39
 

79
,5

39
 

82
,2

64
 

85
,0

72
 

87
,9

84
 

 
 

48



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
7 

of
 2

1 
 

 

Le
ve

l (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 1

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Ai
rp

or
t S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Ai

rp
or

t S
up

er
in

te
nd

en
t:

 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
 S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t:
 

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

Co
m

m
an

de
r 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Co
m

m
an

de
r:

 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Fi

na
nc

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

Fi
na

nc
e 

M
an

ag
er

: 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Hu

m
an

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 M

an
ag

er
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

H
um

an
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 M
an

ag
er

: 
1 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 L

ev
el

: 
5 

49



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
8 

of
 2

1 
 

       
St

ep
s 

(L
ev

el
 1

1)
 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
27

.0
7 

28
.1

1 
29

.1
9 

30
.3

1 
31

.4
9 

32
.7

1 
33

.9
8 

35
.3

0 
36

.6
7 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
21

65
.6

0 
22

48
.8

0 
23

35
.2

0 
24

24
.8

0 
25

19
.2

0 
26

16
.8

0 
27

18
.4

0 
28

24
.0

0 
29

33
.6

0 
An

nu
al

ly
 

56
,3

06
 

58
,4

69
 

60
,7

15
 

63
,0

45
 

65
,4

99
 

68
,0

37
 

70
,6

78
 

73
,4

24
 

76
,2

74
 

 
*L

on
ge

vi
ty

 I
nc

re
m

en
ts

 
  

A 
B 

C 
D 

E 
F 

Ho
ur

ly 
37

.9
2 

39
.2

1 
40

.5
5 

41
.9

3 
43

.3
6 

44
.8

4 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

30
33

.6
0 

31
36

.8
0 

32
44

.0
0 

33
54

.4
0 

34
68

.8
0 

35
87

.2
0 

An
nu

al
 

78
,8

74
 

81
,5

57
 

84
,3

44
 

87
,2

14
 

90
,1

89
 

93
,2

67
 

                     
 

50



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 1
9 

of
 2

1 
 

   

Le
ve

l (
Ba

se
d 

on
 th

e 
Cl

as
si

fic
at

io
n 

Pl
an

):
 1

2 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Ch
ie

f o
f P

ol
ice

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Ch

ie
f o

f P
ol

ic
e:

 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Di

re
ct

or
 o

f C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t:

 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Di

re
ct

or
 o

f F
in

an
ce

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
D

ir
ec

to
r 

of
 F

in
an

ce
: 

1 
Jo

b 
Ti

tle
: 

Di
re

ct
or

 o
f P

ub
lic

 W
or

ks
 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Fu
ll-

Ti
m

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

1 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Pa

rt
-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

O
n-

Ca
ll 

Po
si

tio
ns

 (
Ba

se
d 

on
 fu

ll-
tim

e 
eq

ui
va

le
nc

y 
(F

TE
))

: 
0 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Se
as

on
al

 P
os

iti
on

s:
 

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f P

os
iti

on
s 

fo
r 

D
ir

ec
to

r 
of

 P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

: 
1 

Jo
b 

Ti
tle

: 
Fi

re
 C

hi
ef

 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
1 

N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
 (

Ba
se

d 
on

 fu
ll-

tim
e 

eq
ui

va
le

nc
y 

(F
TE

))
: 

0 
N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
Fi

re
 C

hi
ef

: 
1 

51



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
0 

of
 2

1 
 

 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f P
os

iti
on

s 
fo

r 
th

is
 L

ev
el

: 
5 

 
St

ep
s 

(L
ev

el
 1

2)
 

 
1 

2 
3 

4 
5 

6 
7 

8 
9 

Ho
ur

ly 
33

.9
2 

35
.2

4 
36

.6
1 

38
.0

3 
39

.5
1 

41
.0

5 
42

.6
5 

44
.3

2 
46

.0
4 

Bi
-w

ee
kl

y 
27

13
.6

0 
28

19
.2

0 
29

28
.8

0 
30

42
.4

0 
31

60
.8

0 
32

84
.0

0 
34

12
.0

0 
35

45
.6

0 
36

83
.2

0 
An

nu
al

ly
 

70
,5

54
 

73
,2

99
 

76
,1

49
 

79
,1

02
 

82
,1

81
 

85
,3

84
 

88
,7

12
 

92
,1

86
 

95
,7

63
 

 
*L

on
ge

vi
ty

 I
nc

re
m

en
ts

 
  

A 
B 

C 
D 

E 
F 

Ho
ur

ly 
47

.6
2 

49
.2

6 
50

.9
4 

52
.7

0 
54

.5
1 

56
.3

8 
Bi

-w
ee

kl
y 

38
09

.6
0 

39
40

.8
0 

40
75

.2
0 

42
16

.0
0 

43
60

.8
0 

45
10

.4
0 

An
nu

al
 

99
,0

50
 

10
2,

46
1 

10
5,

95
5 

10
9,

61
6 

11
3,

38
1 

11
7,

27
0 

  
 

52



20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 A

do
pt

ed
 b

y 
R

es
ol

ut
io

n 
N

o.
 2

2-
00

1 
 

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
__

__
 

20
22

 C
ity

 o
f P

al
m

er
 E

xp
an

de
d 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

  
 

 
   

   
   

   
   

  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Pa
ge

 2
1 

of
 2

1 
 

 

Su
m

m
ar

y 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Fu

ll-
Ti

m
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
67

.0
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Pa
rt

-T
im

e 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

 4
.9

0 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
O

n-
Ca

ll 
Po

si
tio

ns
: 

 1
.7

3 
To

ta
l N

um
be

r o
f A

ut
ho

ri
ze

d 
Se

as
on

al
 P

os
iti

on
s:

 
 5

.7
0 

To
ta

l N
um

be
r o

f A
ut

ho
ri

ze
d 

Te
m

po
ra

ry
 F

ul
l-T

im
e 

Po
si

tio
ns

: 
 1

.0
0 

 
 

* 
Pa

y 
In

cr
em

en
ts

 fo
r L

on
ge

vi
ty

 
St

ep
 A

 
St

ep
 B

 
St

ep
 C

 

W
he

n 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 re

ac
he

s 
st

ep
 A

, B
 o

r C
 o

f t
he

ir 
as

sig
ne

d 
pa

y 
le

ve
l, 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 s
ha

ll 
re

m
ai

n 
at

 s
te

p 
A,

 B
 o

r C
 fo

r t
w

o 
(o

r 
m

or
e)

 y
ea

rs
. W

he
n 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
om

pl
et

es
 tw

o 
(o

r m
or

e)
 y

ea
rs

 a
t s

te
p 

A,
 B

 o
r C

, t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 m

ov
es

 to
 s

te
p 

B,
 C

 o
r D

 o
f 

th
e 

Pa
y 

Pl
an

 a
nd

 is
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r t
he

 in
cr

ea
se

 in
di

ca
te

d 
in

 s
te

p 
B,

 C
 o

r D
; p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 re
ce

iv
es

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l r

at
in

g 
of

 
"s

at
isf

ac
to

ry
" o

r h
ig

he
r o

n 
hi

s 
or

 h
er

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
n.

 T
o 

be
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r t
he

 p
ay

 in
cr

ea
se

, t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 m

us
t h

av
e 

w
or

ke
d 

co
nt

in
uo

us
ly 

as
 a

 re
gu

la
r f

ul
l o

r p
ar

t-t
im

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
.  

   

  St
ep

 D
 

St
ep

 E
 

W
he

n 
an

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 re

ac
he

s 
st

ep
 D

 o
r E

 o
f t

he
ir 

as
sig

ne
d 

pa
y 

le
ve

l, 
th

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
 s

ha
ll 

re
m

ai
n 

at
 s

te
p 

D 
or

 E
 fo

r t
hr

ee
 (o

r 
m

or
e)

 y
ea

rs
. W

he
n 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 c
om

pl
et

es
 th

re
e 

(o
r m

or
e)

 y
ea

rs
 a

t s
te

p 
D 

or
 E

, t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 m

ov
es

 to
 s

te
p 

E 
or

 F
 o

f t
he

 
Pa

y 
Pl

an
 a

nd
 is

 e
lig

ib
le

 fo
r t

he
 in

cr
ea

se
 in

di
ca

te
d 

in
 s

te
p 

E 
or

 F
; p

ro
vi

de
d 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

 re
ce

iv
es

 a
n 

ov
er

al
l r

at
in

g 
of

 
"s

at
isf

ac
to

ry
" o

r h
ig

he
r o

n 
hi

s 
or

 h
er

 p
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 e
va

lu
at

io
n.

 T
o 

be
 e

lig
ib

le
 fo

r t
he

 p
ay

 in
cr

ea
se

, t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 m

us
t h

av
e 

w
or

ke
d 

co
nt

in
uo

us
ly 

as
 a

 re
gu

la
r f

ul
l o

r p
ar

t-t
im

e 
em

pl
oy

ee
.  

   

  
  St

ep
 F

 
W

he
n 

an
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 re
ac

he
s 

th
e 

en
d 

of
 th

e 
pa

y 
sc

al
e 

(s
te

p 
F)

, t
he

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 is

 n
o 

lo
ng

er
 e

nt
itl

ed
 to

 a
 s

te
p 

in
cr

ea
se

.  
No

te
: 

Em
pl

oy
ee

s 
in

 lo
ng

ev
ity

 a
re

 p
ro

hi
bi

te
d 

fro
m

 s
kip

pi
ng

 s
te

ps
 a

nd
 m

us
t r

em
ai

n 
at

 e
ac

h 
st

ep
 a

s 
in

di
ca

te
d.

  
 

53



54



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-002 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Resolution No. 22-002 

 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Adopting the 2022 Fee Schedule for the City 
of Palmer for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2022 and Ending December 31, 
2022, 
 

WHEREAS, portions of the Palmer Municipal Code refer to fees “established in the current, 
adopted budget”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Fee Schedule establishes the fees for 2022 and becomes a part of the 

current, adopted budget. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby, through the 
budget process, adopts the attached fee schedule for a period of one (1) year, that being from 
January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2022.  
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Shelly Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager Moosey 

Date: October 19, 2021 
Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

55



 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

City of Palmer 
 
 
 
 

2022 Fee Schedule 
 
 

(Adopted by Resolution No. 22-002) 
 
 
 

56



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 2 

Table of Contents 
 
Airport Fees ......................................................................................................................................... 3 
Animal Control Fees ........................................................................................................................ 3 
Appeals ........................................................................................................................................... 4 
Application Filing Fees (Filing fees are nonrefundable) .................................................................. 4 
Building Inspector Inspection Services and Fees ........................................................................... 4 
Building Permit Fees Based on Total Valuation .............................................................................. 4 
Business Licenses ........................................................................................................................... 5 
Community Center (Railroad Depot) Rental ................................................................................... 6 
Community Center (Railroad Depot) Rental Miscellaneous Fees .................................................... 6 
Election Fees .................................................................................................................................. 6 
Equipment Rental ........................................................................................................................... 7 
False Alarms…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..8 
Fire Equipment Items…………………………………………………………………………………………………8 
Fire Training Center Rental Fees………………………………………………………………………………8 
Fire Training Ground Items…………………………………………………………………………………….9 
Miscellaneous…………………………………………………………………………………………………………….9 
MTA Events Center…………………………………………………………………………………………………….9 
Neighborhood Park Development Fee Schedule ........................................................................... 10 
Palmer Public Library Fees ............................................................................................. 10 
Permits ............................................................................................................................................. 11 
Public Information Requests ........................................................................................................ 11 
Sales Tax .............................................................................................................. 11 
Special Assessments ..................................................................................................................... 12 
Utilities ......................................................................................................................................... 12 
 

57



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 3 

 

Airport Fees 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron A (1-27, T1-T9) 33’x44’ Transient (per day) $ 5 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron A (1-27, T1-T9) 33’x44’ Monthly 

Apron C (6-33, 39-45) 33’x44’ Monthly 
$ 30 

Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron A (1-27, T1-T9) 33’x44’ Quarterly 
Apron C (6-33, 39-45) 33’x44’ Quarterly 

$ 85 

Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron A (1-27, T1-T9) 33’x44’ Annual  
Apron C (6-33, 39-45) 33’x44’ Annual 

$ 310 

Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron B (1-39)  $ 30 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron B (1-39)  $ 85 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron B (1-39)  $ 310 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron C (1-5, 34-38) 60’X61’ Monthly $ 50 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron C (1-5, 34-38) 60’X61’ Quarterly $ 145 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Apron C (1-5, 34-38) 60’X61’ Annual $ 550 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(1-2,T10) 75’x75’ Transient (per day) $ 50 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(1-2,T10) 75’x75’ Quarterly $ 275 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(1-2,T10) 75’x75’ Annual $ 1,050 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(3-6,T11)100’x100’ Transient (per day) $ 85 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(3-6,T11)100’x100’ Quarterly $ 500 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron(3-6,T11)100’x100’ Annual $ 1,950 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron (7, T12)100’x120’ Transient (per day) $ 100 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron (7, T12)100’x120’ Quarterly $ 600 
Aircraft Tie Down Space Large Aircraft Apron (7, T12)100’x120’ Annual $ 2,350 
Rotary Aircraft Tie Down Space Helipad (1-3) 60’ Circle Transient (per day) $ 25 
Rotary Aircraft Tie Down Space Helipad (1-3) 60’ Circle Transient Monthly $ 110 
Rotary Aircraft Tie Down Space Helipad (1-3) 60’ Circle Transient Quarterly $ 315 
Rotary Aircraft Tie Down Space Helipad (1-3) 60’ Circle Transient Annual $ 1,210 
Aircraft Impoundment Fee $ 400 
Storage fee for impounded aircraft (per month) $ 200 
Airport Lease Application Fee $ 500 
Fuel Flowage Fee (per gallon delivered) $ .05 
*All Tie Down Spaces add 3% sales tax including transient rate. 
Transient rate is for stay greater than 4 hours per day on airport grounds. 
Rates are not pro-rated. 

  

 

Animal Control Fees 
Animal license – dog/cat (three-year license – expires three years from date of issue) $ 10 

Lost tag – animal license (expires three years from original issue date) $ 2.50 
Animal impound (per animal) $ 30 
Dangerous/vicious animal registration (one-time fee) $ 25 

 
  

58



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 4 

Appeals 

Appeal to hearing officer regarding a decision of the Planning and Zoning Commission: 
Nonrefundable application filing fee $ 3,000300 
Deposit for preparation of the appeal record $ 500 

 

Application Filing Fees (Filing fees are nonrefundable) 
Mobile home park $ 500 
Large Retail Establishment $ 500 
Conditional Use Permit $ 500 250 
Variance Request $ 500 250 
Planned Unit Development (PUD) $ 500 250 
Zone Change/Palmer Municipal Code Text Amendment $ 500 250 
Accessory Dwelling Unit $ 100  50 
Short Term Rental and Annual Renewal $ 75 

 
Building Inspector Inspection Services and Fees 

Inspections outside normal business hours (per hour)* $ 125 
Re-inspection fees assessed under provisions of Section 305.8 of the 97 UAC (per 
hour)* $ 100 

Inspection for which no fee is specifically indicated (per hour)* $ 100 
For use of outside consultants for plan check and inspections, – actual costs** $  

* Or the total hourly cost to the jurisdiction, whichever is the greatest. There is a two hour minimum and 
this cost shall include supervision, overhead, equipment, hourly wages and fringe benefits of the employees 
involved. 
** Actual costs include administrative and overhead costs 
 

Building Permit Fees Based on Total Valuation 
Total Valuation:  Fee: Additional Fee 

$1 to $500 $ 26  

$501 to $2000 $ 26 for the first $500 plus $3.40 for each additional $100, 
or fraction thereof, to and including $2000 

$2001 to $25,000 $ 77 for the first $2000 plus $15.59 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $25,000 

$25,001 to $50,000 $ 435.50 for the first $25,000 plus $11.25 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000 

$50,001 to $100,000 $ 716.75 for the first $50,000 plus $7.80 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $100,000 

$100,001 to $500,000 $ 1,106.75 For the first $100,000 plus $6.24 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $500,000 

$500,001 to 
$1,000,000 $ 3,602.75 For the first $500,000 plus $5.28 for each additional 

$1,000, or fraction thereof, to and including $1,000,000 

$1,000,001 and up $ 6,242.75 for the first $1,000,000 plus $4.06 for each additional 
$1,000, or fraction thereof 

  

59



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 5 

 
Business Licenses 

Business License:  
Annual license $ 25 
Biennial license $ 50 

State Fair License (duration of Fair – not transferable to annual license) $ 25 
Special Event License (duration of the special event up to three days 
(not transferable to annual license) $ 10 

Door to Door Solicitors License (non-refundable annual fee) $ 50 
 
Business License – failure to apply before business opens: $ 25 

 
Business License – late filing fee:  

Through February 1 $ 25 
Additional fee on March 1 (not to exceed $50) $ 25 
State Fair vendors failure to apply for a business license by the first day of the 
Fair. $ 25 

State Fair vendors additional fee on September 7 $ 25 
 
Business License – failure to display business license: $ 25 

 
Door to Door Solicitors License Reprint – full application process $ 50 
Copy of Business License list $ 25 

 
  

60



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 6 

 

Community Center (Railroad Depot) Rental 

Rental Period ---------- 8 am to Midnight      Rental Rate Security 
Deposit 

Daily: Monday through Thursday      $   255 225 
Daily weekend: Friday through Sunday      $   305 275 

    $   150 
    $   150 

Recurring Use      Rental Rate Security 
Deposit 

Minimum rental of 15 calendar days per year: 
Monday through Thursday     $   195 165 
Friday through Sunday     $   220 190 

 
    $   150 
    $   150 

 
* If use drops below number required for rate assessed due to cancellations, rental fee will be 
assessed from applicable rental period stated above. 

 

***CANCELLATION POLICY*** 
 If 45 or more days notice Full Refund rental rate and deposit 
 If less than 45 days notice City keeps deposit and one day rental 
 If rental 3 consecutive days or more Cancel 60 days in advance – Full refund 
 If rental 3 consecutive days or more Cancel less than 60 days in advance – 
 City keeps deposit and one day rental 

 
Community Center (Railroad Depot) Rental Miscellaneous Fees 

Security Deposit $             150 
Screen Remote Deposit                    Included with rental $               65 
Screen Usage Fee                            Included with rental $               10 
Sound System Usage Fee                  Included with rental $               40 
Re-hanging of ceiling noise baffles (per hour basis) $               55 
Lost key fee $    150    106 
Cleaning (if more than two hours is required – per hour basis) $               75 

Note: there is a two hour minimum overtime fee for any City employee called out after work 
hours for any problems. 

 
Election Fees 

Recount ballot application deposit (per precinct) $        200 
 
 
  

61



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 7 

 

Equipment Rental 
Equipment rental and dry equipment rates when City must repair damages to City property. Labor 
costs are in addition to these rates. 

Compactor $ 35 
Compressor $ 60 
Generator $ 80 
Push Mower $ 25 
Backhoe & Attachment $ 95 
Bucket Truck $ 95 
Cement Mixer $ 45 
Chainsaw $ 30 
Cut Off Saw $ 25 
Drain Cleaner $ 50 
Dredge $ 200 
Dump/Flat Bed $ 65 
Dump Trucks (8 yard) $ 105 
Garbage Truck $ 100 
Graders $ 122 
Hot Patcher $ 75 
Jumping Jack $ 35 
Front End Loader $ 98 
Riding Mower $ 55 
Paver $ 65 
Pickup Truck $ 40 
Plow/Sand Truck (large) $ 105 
Pressure Washer $ 25 
Road Striper Power Liner $ 45 
Rototiller $ 35 
Snow Blower $ 210 
Spreader $ 25 
Steam Truck $ 95 
Street Sweeper $ 98 
Trac Star Fusion Machine  (per  hour,  4  hour  min)  monthly  price = $19,000, 
monthly fee can be pro-rated $ 115 

Trailer $ 55 
Trash Pump $ 25 
Vactor $ 95 
Water/Sewer/Maintenance Utility Trucks $ 40 
Weed Blower $ 25 
Weed Whacker $ 25 

 
  

62



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 8 

 
 
 
 

False Alarms 
False Burglar Alarm Fees (Within a 12 month period): 

First false alarm $ 0 
Second false alarm $ 0 
Third false alarm $ 75 
Fourth false alarm $ 100 
Fifth false alarm $ 125 
Sixth false alarm $ 150 
Seventh false alarm $ 175 
Eighth false alarm $ 200 
Ninth false alarm $ 225 
Tenth false alarm $ 250 
Each false alarm in excess of ten $ 300 

False Fire Alarm Fees (Within a 12 month period): 
First false alarm $ 0 
Second false alarm $ 300 
Third false alarm $ 350 
Fourth false alarm $ 400 
Each false alarm in excess of four $ 400 

 
 

Fire Equipment Items 
Fire/Rescue Apparatus, each (Includes STD Tools on Vehicle) ** (per day) $ 500 
Portable Fire Pumps ** (per hour) $  50 
Portable Tank (per day) $  50 
Fire Hose, each section (all sizes) (per day) $  20 
Self-contained Breathing Apparatus (SCBA) ** (per day) $ 100 
SCBA Spare Cylinder (includes refilling) (per day) $  25 
Additional fees will be charged for replacement of consumable items used (i.e. fuel for 
fires, wood supplies, etc.) 

 

** Additional fees will be charged for an Operator/Supply Officer of these items at the rate of 
$18 per hour. 

 
 
 

Fire Training Center Rental Fees 
Classroom, each (per day, includes A/V and restrooms) $              150 
Copy machine (per copy) $       .25 
CPR Mannequins, each (per day) $         20 
First-aid Training Kit (per day) $         10 
Airway Training Kit (per day) $         20 
Firefighting Small Classroom Props (per day) $         10 
Fire Behavior Carmody Kit (per day) $         20 
Hydrant Cutaway Large Prop (per day) $         20 
Pump Cutaway Large Prop (per day) $         20 
Training ground (per day, includes hydrant usage and field) $       100 

 

63



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 9 

Fire Training Ground Items 
Smoke house (per hour) $             50 
Smoke Generator Machine ** (per day) $             50 
Tower Building and Burn Room (per hour) $             50 
Vehicle Extrication Training Grounds (per day – approximately) $  100 
Roof Simulator ** (per hour) $ 30 
Hazmat Props (per hour) $ 20 
Live Fire Class A Exterior Props ** (per hour) $ 20 
Live Fire Class B Exterior Props ** (per hour) $ 50 
Portable Fire Extinguishers 2.5 LB (per day) $ 10 
Portable Fire Extinguishers 20 LB (per day) $ 10 
Portable Fire Extinguishers 10 LB (per day) $ 15 

 
 

Miscellaneous 
Notary fee (per act) $  10       5 

 NFS Check Fee $ 30 
Administrative fees on credit card charges of $5,000 or higher (in person or phone 
transactions only) 

 3% 
 
 

MTA Events Center 
Events Center Rental (ice covered) per day $   2,500 
Events Center Rental (dry floor) per hour, minimum 3 hours – up to 8 hours $        100 
Events Center Rental (dry floor) per day                                                                $     1,000 
Prime Ice Hour $        230 
Non-Prime Ice Hour  $        180   

 Paid Gate (Ice) Event Per Hour $        255 
Curling per hour  $        180   

 Curling Stone Rental Monthly $       100 
Public Skate Youth (4 & under)  Helmet Mandatory $       Free 
Public Skate  $ 5 
Public Skate Senior Ages 60+ $ 4 
Public Skate Family Pass (up to 4 people, each additional is $4) $ 15 
Public Skate Senior 10 punch card (60+) $ 35 
Public Skate 10 punch card  $ 45 
Freestyle all ages $ 5 
Freestyle 5 punch card $ 25 
Skate Rental $ 3 
Skate Rental 10 punch card $ 25 
Skate Sharpen $ 7 
Skate Sharpen 10 punch card $ 60 
Shinny Hockey     (by age group, full gear required) $ 7 
Shinny Hockey 10 punch card    (by age group, full gear required) $ 60 
Stick Time         (Helmets & gloves required) $ 5 
Stick Time 10 punch card    (Helmets & gloves required)  $ 45 
Broomball      (Helmets & gloves required) $ 5 
Birthday Party (up to 15 skaters, $5 per additional skater) $        100 
Gym (daily) $ 5 
Gym (monthly) $ 25 

 

64



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 10 

Neighborhood Park Development Fee Schedule 
Dwelling Type: 

Single Family (per dwelling unit) $ 200 
Multi-family (per dwelling unit) $ 150 
Mobile home (per dwelling unit) $ 150 

 
 

Palmer Public Library Fees 
Overdue items (per day, maximum $5 per item) $             .25 

 
               

Library community room rental (per hour with two hour minimum) $              25 
 Library community room rental (nonprofit – annually, entitles renter one use per month) $            100 

Copying fee (per page) $             .25 
 Replacement library cards $               3     

 Temporary card (4 months) $              10 
 Damaged Books 

TBD = To Be Determined  
Chewed edge corner (per corner) $                2 
Defaced pages (per page or replacement cost) $                2 
Torn pages in book that cannot be repaired (replacement cost) $            TBD 
Torn pages in book that can be repaired (per page) $ 2 
Repeated dog eared pages (per book) $ 2 
Chewed spine (top or bottom) $ 2 
Rebinding (replacement cost of item plus administrative fee) $            TBD  
Water/fluid damage (replacement cost plus administrative fee) $            TBD 
Mildew (replacement cost plus administrative fee) $            TBD 
Missing barcodes and spine labels on any library item (per item) $ 1 
Missing or damaged any library item jacket or case $ 2 
Lost or Damaged book Bag (replacement cost) $            TBD 
Items returned to wrong book drop $                 1 
Administrative reprocessing fee for lost or damaged books, DVD, audios, E-Readers $ 5 

Damaged Videos/DVDs/CDs: 
Damaged video, DVD, or CD (actual cost of repair plus administrative fee)  $           TBD 
Taping over a library video (replacement cost plus administrative fee)  $           TBD 
Broken or lost case  $ 5 

 Damaged Audio Tapes: 
Replacement (actual replacement cost)  $          TBD 

Equipment: 
E-Readers (actual replacement cost)  $           TBD    

 Equipment loaned out (per day) plus $100 refundable deposit  $ 5 
Damages to equipment (actual repair cost plus administrative fee)  $           TBD      

  

 

 

Permits 
Itinerant Vendor permit $              50 
Fence permits $      26 
Non-electrical sign permit (base fee plus $1.50 per sq. ft of sign area) $ 25 

65



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 11 

Electrical sign permit (base fee plus $3 per sq. ft of sign area) $   50 
Loud equipment permit (valid for eight hours) $ 25 
Noise permit $ 25 
Water/Sewer Permits: 

Connection fee – water (new construction) $   400 
Connection fee – sewer (new construction) $ 400 
Disconnect/abandonment fee – water (back to main) $ 500 
Disconnect/abandonment fee – sewer (back to main) $ 500 

Encroachment Permit (before construction) $ 150 
Encroachment Permit (after construction) $ 250 

 
 

Public Information Requests 
Copies (per page) $    .25 
Copies of drawings, plans, books, etc. – actual cost $  
Audio recording (per meeting) $     15 
Public Safety audio recordings (per individual incident) $     20 
Police Video Recording (per individual incident) $     20 
Fire Report Copy $     20 
Charge for staff time above five hours for research/copying costs – 
actual personnel cost $        

 
 

Sales Tax 
Sales Tax Rate ($1,000 cap per item/service) 3% 

 
Sales Tax – late filing fee $ 25 

 
Sales Tax – delinquency tax interest rate – per year 15% 

 
Sales Tax – late payment penalty  

a penalty of 5% of the tax for each month late or fraction there of after the 
due date, until total penalty of 20% has been accrued. $ 

 
Sales Tax – collection upon sale – failure to collect $ 150 

 
Sales Tax – lien for tax, interest, and administration costs for penalties violation $ 150 

 
Sales Tax – PMC 3.16.260 – violation $ 150 

 
Contractor Certification of Exemption (for sales tax/per calendar year) $            250 

 
Owner/Builder Exemption (for sales tax/per calendar year) $ 30 

 
  

66



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 12 

 

Special Assessments 
Special Assessment District billing fee $          3 
Special Assessment Interest Rate    3% 
Special Assessment Penalty Rate    3% 

 
 

Utilities 
Deposit – water and sewer (new active customers) $               100 
Utility late fees (percentage of balance owed)          10% 
Service call fee $                25 
Connection/Disconnect fee  $     25 
Door tag fee for non-payment of prior months’ utility bill $     15 
Transfer Tenant Utilities to Landlord for non-payment $     15 
Miscellaneous Repair Work hourly labor rate, contact the Department of Public 
Works for material costs $     50 

After Hours/Holiday/Weekend Inspection Fee (hourly) $               125 
Online Utility Payments Convenience Fee (transaction limit - $5,000) $              2.25 

Monthly Water Rates: 
0 to 5,000 gallons (plus meter charge plus sales tax) $   19.95 19.35 
Over 5,000 gallons (plus meter charge and $0.399 $0.387 per 100 gallons plus sales tax) $   19.95 19.35 

Monthly Wastewater Rates: 
0 to 5,000 gallons (plus sales tax) $   43.60 38.95 
Over 5,000 gallons (plus $0.872 $0.779 per 100 gallons plus sales tax) $   43.60 38.95 
Dump Station Fee (per month) $               180  

Monthly Meter Charges: 
5/8” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                                 $15.40 $            14.95 
3/4” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                                 $22.20 $            21.55 
1” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                                    $39.25 $            38.10 
1 1/2” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                              $88.65 $            86.05 
2” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                                  $157.10 $          152.55 
3” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                                  $352.65 $          342.40 
4” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                                  $628.40 $          610.10 
6” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                               $1,413.90    $        1,372.70         
8” meter (plus sales tax)                                                                               $2,513.50 $        2,440.30         
Hydrant Meter Connection (3” Bulk)                                                         
(per month plus $.01 per gallon) (plus sales tax) 

$     300  $291 

Monthly Unmetered Wastewater Service Rates: 
Unmetered wastewater service flat rate, 4 inch service line (plus sales tax)  $ $50.00 45.00 
Unmetered wastewater service flat rate, 6 inch service line (plus sales tax)  $ $73.00 65.00

    
  

67



 
City of Palmer: Fee Schedule Page 13 

Summer Sewer Rates: 
Residential Rates: 

Because summer month water consumption for residential customers increases due to lawn and garden irrigation 
without a related increase in the use of sewer service, residential customers shall be charged for water actually 
used for each month of the year, but their sewer service charges for each of the billing cycles to include the months 
of May, June, July and August shall be set to the flat rate fee equivalent to 0 - 5000 gallons of waste water usage 
plus sales tax as outlined in the current fee schedule. 

Commercial Rates: 
Commercial users may install separate water meters to meter water used exclusively for irrigation purposes 
during the months of May, June, July and August, provided that the commercial customer pays for the purchase 
and installation of a separate water meter for that purpose, and such installation is approved by the utility. The 
customer shall pay fees for all water used, but the amount of water used for irrigation through an irrigation 
system water meter will be deducted from the commercial account’s total metered water consumption for the 
purpose of calculating monthly charges for sewer service. 

 
Treatment Rates: 

0 - 5000 gallons (plus sales tax) $         56.80 
Over 5001 gallons (plus $1.10 per 100 gallons) (plus sales tax) $         56.80 

Solid Waste Collection: 
Weekly refuse collection service (per month plus sales tax) 96 gallon can $             28 
Weekly refuse collection service (per month plus sales tax) 64 gallon can $             22 
Each additional container/bag 30 lb or less (per item) $ 5 
64 and 96 gallon Residential Container Replacement cost $ 100 
Oversize/special Item Collection/Disposal Fee $ 30 
Freon Removal Fee $ 25 
On-Call Dumpster (Residential Only) Monthly Fee $ 50 
On-Call Commercial Dumpster (other Dumpster Service Required) – Monthly Fee $             50 
Disconnected Utility Container Removal Fee $ 10 
Container Loss Recovery Fee $ 25 
Container Delivery/Removal fee $ 10 
Unscheduled Service Fee (different collection vehicle required) $ 40 
Three Cubic Yard Container - Residential - each dump (plus sales tax) $             30 
Four Cubic Yard Container - Residential - each dump (plus sales tax) $             38 
Eight Cubic Yard Container - Residential - each dump (plus sales tax) $             74 
Three Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for one dump per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           120 

Three Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for  two  dumps  per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           240 

Three Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for three dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           360 

Four Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for one dump per week) (plus 
sales tax) $           152 

Four Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for two dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           304 

Four Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for three dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           456  

Eight Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for one dump per week) (plus 
sales tax) $           296 

Eight Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for two dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           592 

Eight Cubic Yard Container – Commercial – Monthly fee (for three dumps per week) 
(plus sales tax) $           888 

Locking Dumpster (three or four yard includes delivery and pickup) $ 175 

68



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-003 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Resolution No. 22-003 

 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Adopting the 2022 Fine Schedule for the City 
of Palmer for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2022, and Ending December 31, 
2022 
 

WHEREAS, portions of the Palmer Municipal Code refer to fines “established in the current 
adopted budget”; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Fine Schedule establishes the fines for 2022 and becomes a part of the 

current, adopted budget. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby, through the 
budget process, adopts the attached fine schedule for a period of one (1) year, that being from 
January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2022. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Shelly Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager Moosey 

Date: October 19, 2021 
Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

69



1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

City of Palmer 
 

2022 Fine Schedule 
 

(Adopted by Resolution No. 22-003) 

  

70



2 
 

Contents 
Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 1 General Provisions ........................................... 4 

Chapter 1.08 General Penalty ............................................................................................................... 4 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Chapter 1.10 City Seal ................................................ 5 

Chapter 1.10 City Seal ........................................................................................................................... 5 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 5 Business Licenses ............................................. 5 

Chapter 5.13 Door-to-Door Solicitors .................................................................................................. 5 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 6 Animals ............................................................ 5 

Chapter 6.08 Animal Regulations ......................................................................................................... 5 

Chapter 6.12 Licensing .......................................................................................................................... 6 

Chapter 6.14 Domestic Animal Bite and Attack Incidents ................................................................ 6 

Chapter 6.24 Hindering officers prohibited ......................................................................................... 6 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 8 Health & Safety ................................................ 6  

Chapter 8.09 Prohibiting Prohibiting the Distribution of Single-Use Plastic Shopping Bags........ 6 

Chapter 8.10 Prohibiting Smoking in Places of Employment and Public Places ............................ 6 

Chapter 8.11 Marijuana Use and Prohibitions .................................................................................... 7 

Chapter 8.12 Fluoridation ...................................................................................................................... 7 

Chapter 8.16 Sewage Disposal ............................................................................................................. 7 

Chapter 8.20 Garbage Collection and Disposal .................................................................................. 7 

Chapter 8.36 Nuisances ......................................................................................................................... 7 

Chapter 8.37 Junk Vehicles ................................................................................................................... 7 

Chapter 8.38 Nuisance – Junk, Litter and Unsightly Premises ........................................................ 8 

Chapter 8.42 Fireworks .......................................................................................................................... 8 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 9 Public Peace, Morals & Welfare ........................ 8 

Chapter 9.02 Tampering with Public Notices ..................................................................................... 8 

Chapter 9.04 Impersonating an Officer .............................................................................................. 8 

Chapter 9.06 Interference with Public Justice ................................................................................... 8 

Chapter 9.12 Assault and Battery ........................................................................................................ 8 

Chapter 9.20 Alcoholic Beverages ........................................................................................................ 9 

Chapter 9.22 Gambling .......................................................................................................................... 9 

Chapter 9.24 Indecent Exposure .......................................................................................................... 9 

Chapter 9.28 Obscenity ......................................................................................................................... 9 

Chapter 9.30 Prostitution ...................................................................................................................... 9 

Chapter 9.38 Disturbing Public Assemblies ........................................................................................ 9 

71



3 
 

Chapter 9.39 Excessive Police Responses .........................................................................10 

Chapter 9.40 Trespass - Posting of Property.....................................................................10 

Chapter 9.48 Petit Larceny .................................................................................................................. 10 

Chapter 9.50 Injury to Property ......................................................................................................... 10 

Chapter 9.56 Interference with Utilities ............................................................................................ 10 

Chapter 9.58 Sale of Poison ................................................................................................................ 10 

Chapter 9.60 Sale of Unwholesome Food ......................................................................................... 11 

Chapter 9.67 Curfew Hour for Minors ............................................................................................... 11 

Chapter 9.74 Discharge of Firearms .................................................................................................. 11 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 10 Vehicles & Traffic * ...................................... 11 

Chapter 10.04 Traffic Code ................................................................................................................. 11 

Chapter 10.08 Regulation of Off-Highway Vehicles ........................................................................ 11 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 12 Streets, Sidewalks & Public Places............... 12 

Chapter 12.16 Skateboards, Rollerblades and Similar Devices ..................................................... 12 

Chapter 12.24 Park and Recreational Facility Regulations ............................................................. 12 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 14 Signs ............................................................ 12 

Chapter 14.08 Sign Regulations ......................................................................................................... 12 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 15 Buildings and Construction .......................... 12 

Chapters 15.00 through 15.70............................................................................................................ 12 

 
 
  

72



4 
 

As provided by the Palmer Municipal Code, the following fine schedule applies 
to all offenses in the Palmer Municipal Code unless a different penalty is 
specified. Citations for these offenses may be disposed of as provided in AS 
12.25.195-230, without a court appearance, upon payment of the amounts 
listed plus the state surcharge required by AS 12.55.039 and AS 29.25.074. If 
a person charged with one of these offenses appears in court and is found 
guilty, the penalty imposed for the offense may not exceed the amount listed 
for that offense in this schedule.  
 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 1 General Provisions 

Chapter 1.08 General Penalty 

Section 1.08.011 General Fine Penalties  
If no other penalty is specifically or by adoption prescribed by a particular ordinance or in this 
document, the general penalty for violation of the ordinance is: 

• $75 for the first offense. 
• $150 for the second offense of the same ordinance within 365 days of the first offense. 
• $300 for the third offense of the same ordinance within 365 days of the second offense.  

 
In accordance with AS 12.25.195 through 12.25.230, for a violation that cannot result in incarceration 
or the loss of a valuable license, a person may dispose of the citation without a court appearance by 
submitting to the clerk of court all of the following: 

1. Payment of the fine amount and the applicable surcharge listed in AS 12.55.039 and AS 
29.25.074; and  

2. A copy of the citation signed by the person indicating the person’s waiver of court 
appearance, entry of plea of no contest, and forfeiture of the fine. 

 
When the fine is forfeited, a judgment of conviction shall be entered. The fine and applicable 
surcharge paid is complete satisfaction for the offense. 
Section 1.08.013 Other Remedies 
A. The city may institute a civil action against a person, including a minor as provided in AS 

29.25.072, who violates an ordinance.  
B. A person who violates a provision of this code may be subject to injunctive relief, compensatory 

relief, and a civil penalty not to exceed $1,000 for each violation.  
C. An action to enjoin a violation may be brought notwithstanding the availability of any other 

remedy.  
D. On application for injunctive relief and a finding of a violation or threatened violation, the superior 

court shall grant the injunction.  
E. Each day that a violation of a provision of this code continues constitutes a separate violation.  
F. This section does not bar other civil remedies.  

Section 1.08.020 Penalty Surcharge 
A.  In addition to any fine or other penalty prescribed by law, a person who pleads guilty or nolo 

contendere to, forfeits bail for, or is convicted of: 
1. A violation of this code comparable to a misdemeanor offense under AS 28.33.030, 28.33.031, 

28.35.030, or 28.35.032 and adopted under AS 28.01.010 shall be assessed the maximum 
surcharge pursuant to AS 12.55.039 and 29.25.074; 

2. A misdemeanor or other violation of this code if a sentence of incarceration may be imposed 
for the misdemeanor or ordinance violation, other than a provision identified in subsection 

73



5 
 

(A)(1) of this section, shall be assessed the maximum surcharge allowable to Alaska Statutes 
12.55.039 and 29.25.074; and 

3.  A misdemeanor or a violation of this code if a sentence of incarceration may not be imposed 
for the misdemeanor or ordinance violation shall be assessed the maximum surcharge 
allowable pursuant to Alaska Statutes 12.55.039 and 29.25.074 if the fine or bail forfeiture 
amount for the offense is $30.00 or more. 

B. The surcharge shall be deposited into the general fund of the state in accordance with AS 
29.25.072.  

 
 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Chapter 1.10 City Seal 

Chapter 1.10 City Seal  

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Use of Seal without Permission 
Prohibited 1.10.020   $ 300 1.10.020 B 

 
 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 5 Business Licenses 

Chapter 5.13 Door-to-Door Solicitors  

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
License Fee and Failure to Apply 5.13.040 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 5.13: 

5.13.040 
Carrying of License Required 5.13.100 5.13.100 
Prohibitions 5.13.110 5.13.110 
  First offense: $ 75  
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  

 
 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 6 Animals 

Chapter 6.08 Animal Regulations 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Cruelty to Animals  6.08.010 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 6.08: 

6.28.010 
Animal Restrictions  6.08.020 6.28.010 
Depositing Poison  6.08.030 6.28.010 
Diseased Animals  6.08.040 First offense: $ 75 6.28.010 
Animal Noise  6.08.050 Second offense: $ 150 6.28.010 
Animal Odor  6.08.060 Third offense: $ 300 6.28.010 
Animals at Large  6.08.065    6.28.010 
Animal Annoyance  6.08.067    6.28.010 
Unattended Secure Animal  6.08.070   6.28.010 
Disposal of Dead Animal  6.08.080   6.28.010 
Confinement Requirements  6.08.090   6.28.010 
Carrying Dogs Outside of Vehicle  6.08.100   6.28.010 

74



6 
 

Chapter 6.12 Licensing  

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Registration – Dogs and cats 6.12.005 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 6.12: 

6.28.010 
Application 6.12.010 6.28.010 
Immunization 6.12.012 6.28.010 
License Transfer 6.12.018 First offense: $ 25 6.28.010 
Fees 6.12.020 Second offense: $ 50 6.28.010 
Tag and Collar 6.12.030 Third offense: $ 75 6.28.010 
Chapter 6.14 Domestic Animal Bite and Attack Incidents 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Owner Compliance 6.14.060 First offense: $ 100 6.28.010 
  Second offense: $ 200  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 6.24 Hindering officers prohibited 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Hindering Officer Prohibited 6.24.010 First offense: $ 75 6.28.010 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  

 
Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 8 Health & Safety 

Chapter 8.09 Prohibiting the Distribution of Single-Use Disposable Plastic Shopping Bags 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 

Single-Use Disposable Plastic 
Shopping Bags Prohibited 8.09.030 

First Offense:          Warning 
Second Offense:     $      100 
Third Offense:        $      300 

8.09.050 

Chapter 8.10 Prohibiting Smoking in Places of Employment and Public Places 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Smoking Prohibited 8.10.020 

Applicable to all of PMC 
Chapter 8.10: 

8.10.070 
Reasonable Distance 8.10.030 8.10.070 
Areas Where Smoking Not 
Prohibited 8.10.040 8.10.070 

Sign Posting and Other 
Requirements 8.10.050 First offense: $ 100 8.10.070 Plus required surcharges 

No Retaliation nor Waiver of Rights 8.10.060 

Second offense: $ 150 

8.10.070 Plus required surcharges, for 
a second violation with 24 

month period  

Violations and Penalties 8.10.070 

Third offense: $ 300 

8.10.070 
Plus required surcharges, for 
a third or additional violation 

within a 24 month period 
Civil penalties may not 

exceed $300 per violation 

75



7 
 

Enforcement 8.10.080  8.10.070 
Other Applicable Laws 8.10.090    8.10.070 
Chapter 8.11 Marijuana Use and Prohibitions 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Consuming in a public place 8.11.030  $ 100 8.11.030 
Marijuana oil, flammable extraction 8.11.050  $ 100 8.11.050 

 

Chapter 8.12 Fluoridation  

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Public Water System 8.12.010  $   300  1.08.011 
      
      
Chapter 8.16 Sewage Disposal 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Waste Disposal Systems Required 8.16.010  $   300 1.08.011 
      
      
Chapter 8.20 Garbage Collection and Disposal 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Garbage Disposal System Use 
Required 8.20.010 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 8.20: 

8.20.130 

Adequate Receptacles Required, 
Time Limit 8.20.050 8.20.130 

Depositing Restrictions 8.20.060 First offense: $ 75 8.20.130 
Unauthorized Dumpster and 
Container Usage 8.20.070 Second offense: $ 150 8.20.130 Third offense: $ 300 
Clean Premises Required 8.20.080    8.20.130 
Unauthorized Dumping Prohibited 8.20.090    8.20.130 
Occupant Duties – Containers 8.20.100    8.20.130 
Vehicles 8.20.110    8.20.130 
Refuse Accumulation Prohibited 8.20.120    8.20.130 
Chapter 8.36 Nuisances 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Designated – Prohibited 8.36.010 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 8.36: 
8.36.130 

Specific Acts Designated 8.36.020 8.36.130 
Acts Requiring Permit 8.36.025 First offense: $ 150 8.36.130 
Snow and Ice Removal 8.36.050 Second offense: $ 300 8.36.130 
Dumping Debris/Blocking Ditch 8.36.060    8.36.130 
Pump Locations 8.36.080    8.36.130 
Chapter 8.37 Junk Vehicles 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 

76



8 
 

Junk Vehicles Unlawful 8.37.020 First offense: $ 75 8.37.090 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 8.38 Nuisance – Junk, Litter and Unsightly Premises 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 

Final Notice to Abate Violation 8.38.060 Actual Recovery 
Cost to the City 

  1.08.011 or 
1.08.013 

Remedies 8.38.075 Actual Recover 
Cost to the City 

  1.08.011 or 
1.08.013 

Chapter 8.42 Fireworks 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Sales Prohibited 8.42.020 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 8.42: 

8.42.070 
Authorized Uses 8.42.040 8.42.070 
Permit Required 8.42.050 8.42.070 
Permissible Uses 8.42.060 First offense: $ 75 8.40.040 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  

 
 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 9 Public Peace, Morals & Welfare 

Chapter 9.02 Tampering with Public Notices 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited When 9.02.010 First offense: $ 75 9.02.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.04 Impersonating an Officer 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited When 9.04.010 First offense: $ 100 9.04.020 
  Second offense: $ 200  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.06 Interference with Public Justice 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Interfering with Officer Prohibited  9.06.010 First offense: $ 75 9.06.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.12 Assault and Battery 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited When – Definitions 9.12.010 First offense: $ 75 9.12.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  

77



9 
 

Chapter 9.20 Alcoholic Beverages 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Licensed Premises Closing Hours 9.20.010 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 9.20: 

9.20.050 
Prohibited Acts Designated 9.20.020 9.20.050 
Personal Liability 9.20.030 9.20.050 
Election Day Sales Permitted 9.20.040 First offense: $ 75 9.20.050 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.22 Gambling 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited When 9.22.010 First offense: $ 75 9.22.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.24 Indecent Exposure 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited When 9.22.010 First offense: $ 75 9.22.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.28 Obscenity 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Obscene Language Prohibited 9.28.010 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 9.28: 

9.28.050 
Selling Obscene Materials Prohibited 9.28.020 9.28.050 
Obscene Exhibitions Prohibited 9.28.030 9.28.050 

Obscene Public Writing and 
Drawing Prohibited 9.28.040 

First offense: $ 75 
9.28.050 Second offense: $ 150 

Third offense: $ 300 
Chapter 9.30 Prostitution 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited – Procuring Prohibited 9.30.020 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 9.30: 

9.30.090 
House of Ill Fame 9.30.030 9.30.090 
Aiding in Prostitution Prohibited 9.30.040 9.30.090 
Receiving Money from Prostitute 
Prohibited  9.30.50 

First offense: $ 75 
9.30.090 Second offense: $ 150 

Remaining in House of Prostitution 
Prohibited 9.30.060 Third offense: $ 300 9.30.090 

Loitering for Prostitution Purposes 
Prohibited 9.30.070    9.30.090 

Reputation Testimony Permitted 9.30.080    9.30.090 
Chapter 9.38 Disturbing Public Assemblies 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited Acts Designated 9.38.010 First offense: $ 75 9.38.020 

78



10 
 

  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.39 Excessive Police Responses 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Excessive Police Responses 9.39.010 First offense: $ 75 9.39.040 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.40 Trespass – Posting of Property 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Trespass – Posting of Property 9.40.010 First offense: $ 75 9.40.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.48 Petit Larceny 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited When 9.48.010 First offense: $ 75 9.48.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.50 Injury to Property 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Defacing Property– Injuring Animals 9.50.010 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 9.50: 

9.50.040 
Injuring Plants or Fences 9.50.020 9.50.040 
Injuring Monuments and Markers 9.50.030 9.50.40 
  First offense: $ 75 

   Second offense: $ 150 
  Third offense: $ 300  

 
Chapter 9.56 Interference with Utilities 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Pollution of Drinking Water 9.56.010 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 9.56: 

9.56.030 
Damage to Water or Utility System 9.56.020 9.56.030 
   
  First offense: $  300     

   Second offense: $ 500 
  Third offense: $ 750  
Chapter 9.58 Sale of Poison 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Selling Poison Without Label 9.58.10 First offense: $ 75 9.58.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  

79



11 
 

Chapter 9.60 Sale of Unwholesome Food 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited When 9.60.010 First offense: $ 75 9.60.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.67 Curfew Hour for Minors 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Curfew Violations 9.67.020 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 9.56: 

9.67.050 
Exceptions 9.67.030 9.67.050 
   
  First offense: $ 75 

   Second offense: $ 150 
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 9.74 Discharge of Firearms 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Prohibited When – Exceptions 9.74.010 First offense: $ 75 9.74.020 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  

 
 

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 10 Vehicles & Traffic * 

Chapter 10.04 Traffic Code 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Parking Prohibitions During Snow 
Accumulation and/or Drifting Snow 
Conditions 

10.04.050 Applicable to all of PMC 
Chapter 10.04 

10.04.050 

Towing 10.04.055 10.04.055 
No-Parking Areas – Identification 10.04.060 (B) First offense: $ 75 10.04.060 
Parking Prohibited for Longer than 
24 Hours 10.04.080 Second offense: $ 150 10.04.080 Third offense: $ 300 
Prohibiting Parking that Obstructs 
Traffic 10.04.090    10.04.090 

Prohibiting Parking in Construction 
Zones 10.04.100    10.04.100 

Chapter 10.08 Regulation of Off-Highway Vehicles  

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Operation Requirements 10.08.020 Applicable to all of PMC 

Chapter 10.08: 

10.08.100 
Equipment 10.08.030 10.08.100 
Speed and Time Restrictions 10.08.040 10.08.100 
Driver’s License Required 10.08.050 First offense: $ 75 10.08.100 
Towing 10.08.060 Second offense: $ 150 10.08.100 

80



12 
 

Parent, Guardian or Other Person 
Responsible 10.08.070 Third offense: $ 300 10.08.100 

 
* 
1. The fine amounts are doubled for motor vehicle or traffic offenses committed in a highway 

work zone or traffic safety corridor, as those terms are defined in AS 28.90.990 and 13 AAC 
40.010 (b).  

2.  An offense may not be disposed of, without court appearance, if the offense is in connection 
with a motor vehicle accident that results in the death of a person.  

Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 12 Streets, Sidewalks & Public Places 

Chapter 12.16 Skateboards, Rollerblades and Similar Devices 

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
Skateboards, Prohibition and 
Regulation 12.16.010 First offense: $ 75 12.16.020 Second offense: $ 150 
  Third offense: $ 300  
Chapter 12.24 Park and Recreational Facility Regulations  

Section Title: Section 
Citation: Fine: Fine 

Citation: 
General Rules 12.24.025 First offense: $ 75 12.24.050 
  Second offense: $ 150  
  Third offense: $ 300  

 
Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 14 Signs 

Chapter 14.08 Sign Regulations 
Section 14.08.0240 Remedies and Civil Penalties (applicable to entire chapter): 
The city or an aggrieved person may institute a civil action against a person who violates a provision 
of this title or a term, condition or limitation imposed pursuant to this title. In addition to other relief, 
a civil penalty not to exceed $300.00 may be imposed for each violation. Each day that a violation or 
an unlawful act or condition continues constitutes a separate violation. An action to enjoin a violation 
may be brought notwithstanding the availability of any other remedy. Upon application for injunctive 
relief and a finding of a violation or threatened violation, the superior court shall grant the injunction.  

 
Palmer Municipal Code (PMC) Title 15 Buildings and Construction 

Chapters 15.00 through 15.70   
All chapters within Title 15 are subject to the following 
fines: 

First offense: $ 75 15.60.020 
Second offense: $ 150 10.08.100 

  Third offense: $ 300 10.08.100 
 

81



82



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-004 Page 1 of 1 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Resolution No. 22-004 

 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Adopting the Five-Year Capital Improvement 
Program for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2022, and Ending December 31, 
2022 
 

WHEREAS, Palmer Municipal Code 3.28 defines a “Five-year capital improvement program 
as an annual update and long-range need projection of the city included as part pf the annual 
budget”. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council hereby, through the 
budget process, adopts the attached five-year capital improvement program for a period of one 
(1) year, being from January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2022. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Shelly Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager Moosey 

Date: October 19, 2021 
Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

83



Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

y
Pr

oj
ec

t
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

s

Ye
ar

 o
f 

In
iti

at
io

n/
 

Ex
ec

ut
io

n
Co

st
 E

st
im

at
e

20
21

 to
ta

l
20

21
 R

em
ai

ni
ng

20
22

 A
dd

iti
on

20
22

 T
ot

al
20

23
 A

dd
iti

on
20

24
 A

dd
iti

on
20

25
 A

dd
iti

on
20

26
 A

dd
iti

on

Pr
io

r Y
ea

rs
  O

ng
oi

ng
N

M
TA

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t A

re
na

CO
P

An
nu

al
ly

36
,1

54
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
21

,2
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
86

,2
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
40

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

25
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

N
W

at
er

 R
es

ev
oi

r R
ep

ai
r

CO
P-

W
/S

20
17

18
3,

26
5

$ 
   

   
   

   
13

8,
52

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
44

,7
44

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

44
,7

44
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
N

AD
A 

Si
de

w
al

ks
CO

P/
G

ra
nt

20
17

25
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
70

,8
12

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

70
,0

30
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
70

,0
30

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

N
St

re
et

 M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

CO
P

As
 n

ee
de

d
50

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

62
3,

77
8

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

60
9,

23
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

60
9,

23
3

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

N
Pu

bl
ic

 V
id

eo
CO

P
20

18
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

30
,4

23
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
30

,4
23

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

30
,4

23
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

N
W

/S
 L

ift
 st

at
io

n 
an

d 
w

el
l p

um
ps

CO
P-

W
/S

An
nu

al
ly

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
87

,9
92

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

77
,1

24
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
15

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
23

2,
12

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
75

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
N

W
at

er
/S

ew
er

 T
ru

ck
CO

P-
W

/S
20

18
55

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

10
,6

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
10

,6
55

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

10
,6

55
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
60

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 

N
Po

lic
e 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

An
nu

al
 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t

CO
P

An
nu

al
ly

65
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
81

,6
34

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

26
,3

67
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
13

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
15

6,
36

7
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
60

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
65

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
65

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
N

Pa
rk

 Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

CO
P

As
 n

ee
de

d
99

,1
04

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

99
,1

04
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
99

,1
04

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

N
Pu

bl
ic

 B
ui

ld
in

g 
M

ai
nt

en
an

ce
CO

P
As

 n
ee

de
d

50
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
88

,9
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

88
,9

65
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
88

,9
65

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
50

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

N

Ai
rp

or
t S

af
et

y 
- 

Av
ig

at
io

n 
Ea

se
m

en
t 

Ph
as

e 
I

CO
P

20
19

45
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
16

,6
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

2,
26

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

2,
26

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
G

ol
f C

ou
rs

e-
G

ol
f C

ar
ts

CO
P

An
nu

al
ly

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
10

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

10
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
30

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

40
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 

N
G

ol
f C

ou
rs

e 
In

fr
as

tr
uc

tu
re

CO
P

An
nu

al
ly

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

15
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
20

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

N
De

po
t u

pd
at

es
-p

ip
in

g
CO

P
20

19
15

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

3,
26

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

3,
26

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
26

2
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
Ro

ad
s-

Sa
nd

er
 tr

uc
k 

w
ith

 p
lo

w
 b

la
de

CO
P

20
20

17
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
17

5,
26

4
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

N
Tr

af
fic

 S
af

et
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

CO
P

20
20

13
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
10

5,
89

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
10

5,
89

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
10

5,
89

1
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

21

N
Ro

ad
s-

Du
m

p 
tr

uc
k 

w
ith

 
pl

ow
 b

la
de

CO
P

20
21

27
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
27

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
 

N

Ai
rp

or
t S

af
et

y 
- 

Av
ig

at
io

n 
Ea

se
m

en
t 

Ph
as

e 
II

FA
A/

CO
P

20
21

39
5,

48
2

$ 
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
  

N
Ta

xi
w

ay
 N

ov
em

be
r 

De
si

gn
 P

ro
je

ct
FA

A/
CO

P
20

21
44

6,
09

3
$ 

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  

N
G

ar
ba

ge
 T

ru
ck

CO
P

20
21

35
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
  

35
1,

92
7

$ 
   

   
   

CO
M

PL
ET

E
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
-

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

  
20

22
N

Ci
ty

 H
al

l C
op

ie
r

CO
P

20
22

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

N
Ci

ty
 H

al
l F

ol
di

ng
 

M
ac

hi
ne

CO
P

20
22

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

20
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

N
Ad

m
in

 V
eh

ic
le

s
CO

P
20

21
/2

02
2

60
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

11
,9

82
$ 

   
   

   
  

24
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

35
,9

82
$ 

   
   

   
  

N
Pa

lm
er

 T
en

ni
s C

ou
rt

s
CO

P
20

21
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
25

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
N

Fi
re

 S
up

po
rt

 V
eh

ic
le

CO
P

20
22

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

N
Fi

re
 C

om
m

an
d 

Ve
hi

cl
e 

&
 E

qu
ip

m
en

t
CO

P
20

22
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

  
N

PW
 V

eh
ic

le
s

CO
P

20
22

92
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

96
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

96
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
  

N
PW

-S
tr

ee
t S

w
ee

pe
r

CO
P

20
22

33
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
33

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
33

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
 

 
N

Li
br

ar
y 

Si
de

w
al

k
CO

P
20

22
70

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

70
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
70

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

N
Ai

rp
or

t P
lo

w
 T

ru
ck

CO
P

20
22

48
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
48

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

48
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

Pr
io

r Y
ea

r F
un

de
d 

(C
ar

ry
 o

ve
r)

   
$1

,2
26

,2
84

20
22

 R
ec

om
m

en
de

d 
ad

di
tio

na
l f

un
di

ng
  $

40
7,

46
9

84



Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

y
Pr

oj
ec

t
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

s

Ye
ar

 o
f 

In
iti

at
io

n/
 

Ex
ec

ut
io

n
Co

st
 E

st
im

at
e

20
21

 to
ta

l
20

21
 R

em
ai

ni
ng

20
22

 A
dd

iti
on

20
22

 T
ot

al
20

23
 A

dd
iti

on
20

24
 A

dd
iti

on
20

25
 A

dd
iti

on
20

26
 A

dd
iti

on

N

Ac
qu

ire
 A

vi
ga

tio
n 

Ea
se

m
en

t, 
Co

ns
tr

uc
t 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
&

 R
el

oc
at

e 
RW

16
 T

hr
es

ho
ld

FA
A/

CO
P

20
22

2,
21

8,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
13

8,
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

8,
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
 

N
Co

ns
tr

uc
t T

ax
iw

ay
 

N
ov

em
be

r, 
Ph

as
e 

1
FA

A/
CO

P
20

22
5,

62
6,

20
0

$ 
   

   
   

35
1,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

35
1,

60
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
23

N
St

or
m

w
at

er
 D

es
ig

n
CO

P
20

23
50

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

50
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

 

N
Re

pa
ir 

St
at

io
n 

3-
1 

Ba
y 

Fl
oo

r a
nd

 D
ra

in
s

CO
P

20
23

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
N

Fi
re

 E
ng

in
e

G
ra

nt
20

23
70

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

 

N
De

po
t U

pd
at

es
-

W
in

do
w

s
CO

P
20

23
60

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
60

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

N
Li

br
ar

y 
Pa

rk
in

g 
Lo

t
CO

P
20

23
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

N
St

ea
m

 T
ru

ck
 

Re
pl

ac
em

en
t

CO
P-

W
/S

20
23

30
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
28

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
 

N
Co

ns
tr

uc
t G

en
er

al
 

Av
ia

tio
n 

Ap
ro

n
FA

A/
CO

P
20

23
2,

42
3,

90
0

$ 
   

   
   

15
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

20
24

N
G

ol
f C

ou
rs

e-
 

M
ai

nt
en

an
ce

 S
he

d
CO

P
20

24
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

 

N
U

pd
at

e 
Fi

re
 c

la
ss

ro
om

 
bu

ild
in

g
CO

P
20

24
15

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

 

N

Fi
re

 S
up

po
rt

 v
eh

ic
le

 
(r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t/

eq
ui

p)
 

w
ith

 li
ft

 g
at

e
CO

P
20

24
80

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

80
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

N
Co

ns
tr

uc
t S

an
d 

St
or

ag
e 

Bu
ild

in
g

FA
A/

CO
P

20
24

1,
37

3,
70

0
$ 

   
   

   
85

,9
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

20
25

N
Pu

bl
ic

 S
af

et
y 

Bl
dg

 
U

pd
at

es
G

ra
nt

20
25

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
26

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
 

N
Pa

lm
er

  S
to

rm
w

at
er

 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
Lo

an
/G

ra
nt

20
25

5,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
50

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 
 

N
Ci

ty
 H

al
l U

pd
at

es
CO

P
20

25
15

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

15
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

 

N
Ai

rp
or

t: 
Co

ns
tr

uc
t A

RF
F 

Bu
ild

in
g 

(N
on

-F
AA

)
CO

P
20

25
2,

19
4,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

2,
19

4,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
 

 
U

na
ss

ig
ne

d

N
U

pg
ra

de
 A

irp
or

t 
Li

gh
tin

g 
an

d 
N

av
AI

DS
FA

A/
CO

P
20

26
2,

27
1,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

14
2,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
 

N
Av

ia
tio

n 
Ca

m
pg

ro
un

d
FA

A/
CO

P
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

1,
00

1,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
N

Ac
qu

ire
 B

uf
fe

r L
an

ds
FA

A/
CO

P
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

3,
03

3,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   

N

Co
ns

tr
uc

t T
ax

iw
ay

 
N

ov
em

be
r a

nd
 In

te
rin

k,
 

Ph
 2

FA
A/

CO
P

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
4,

85
7,

40
0

$ 
   

   
   

N
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

G
en

er
at

or
 

Ci
ty

 H
al

l
G

ra
nt

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
40

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

N
G

en
er

at
or

 fo
r F

ire
  S

t3
6 

(t
ra

in
in

g 
ce

nt
er

)
CO

P
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

50
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

N
N

ew
 F

ire
 e

ng
in

e 
an

d 
eq

ui
pm

en
t

CO
P

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
70

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

N
Fi

re
 B

ru
sh

 tr
uc

k 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t/
eq

ui
p

CO
P

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
16

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

N
Sn

ow
 D

um
p 

Lo
ts

CO
P

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
10

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

85



Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

y
Pr

oj
ec

t
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

s

Ye
ar

 o
f 

In
iti

at
io

n/
 

Ex
ec

ut
io

n
Co

st
 E

st
im

at
e

20
21

 to
ta

l
20

21
 R

em
ai

ni
ng

20
22

 A
dd

iti
on

20
22

 T
ot

al
20

23
 A

dd
iti

on
20

24
 A

dd
iti

on
20

25
 A

dd
iti

on
20

26
 A

dd
iti

on

N
Ro

of
 o

ve
r  

Fi
re

 c
on

ex
es

CO
P

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
55

,0
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

N
Ex

te
nd

 S
. I

nd
us

tr
ia

l t
o 

In
ne

r S
pr

in
ge

r
CO

P
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

40
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   

N
De

si
gn

 n
ew

 L
ib

ra
ry

 
bu

id
in

g
CO

P
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   

N
Pu

bl
ic

 L
ib

ra
ry

 E
xt

en
si

on
 

Ph
 II

Bo
nd

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
5,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

N
N

ew
 F

ire
 st

at
io

n
Bo

nd
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

9,
00

0,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   

N
De

si
gn

  M
us

eu
m

 p
ha

se
 

2
CO

P
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

25
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   

Y

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Ro

ad
 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

- C
ob

b 
St

re
et

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
1,

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

Y
Hi

st
or

ic
 P

al
m

er
 W

at
er

 
To

w
er

 P
ur

ch
as

e
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

10
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   

Y
Re

st
or

e 
Ra

ilr
oa

d 
Tr

ac
ks

 
to

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Pa

lm
er

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
3,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

Y
Pa

rk
 P

ro
je

ct
 W

al
k 

to
 th

e 
Fa

ir
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

30
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   

N
Ba

bb
 A

bo
re

tu
m

 
Re

st
or

at
io

n
U

nd
et

er
m

in
ed

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   

N
Sh

er
ro

d 
Ar

ea
 G

ra
ve

l t
o 

Ro
ad

 re
su

rf
ac

in
g

U
nd

et
er

m
in

ed
1,

00
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

To
ta

ls
To

ta
ls

 $
   

   
 5

8,
66

6,
72

2 
2,

36
5,

98
2

$ 
   

   
   

1,
22

6,
28

4
$ 

   
   

   
1,

66
8,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

2,
89

4,
58

4
$ 

   
   

   
1,

38
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

1,
43

0,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
3,

56
9,

10
0

$ 
   

   
   

 
60

7,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

 

20
22

 F
un

di
ng

 B
re

ak
do

w
n

1,
66

8,
30

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

ad
di

tio
na

l

 G
en

er
al

 
Fu

nd
 

97
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 $
56

7,
53

1 
fr

om
 

an
nu

al
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

 $
40

7,
46

9 
fr

om
 G

en
er

al
 

Fu
nd

 
un

as
si

gn
ed

 
ba

la
nc

e 

 A
irp

or
t F

un
d 

53
8,

30
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Fu
nd

 

 S
ol

id
 W

as
te

 
Fu

nd
 

-
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Fu
nd

 

W
/S

15
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Fu
nd

 

20
23

 F
un

di
ng

 B
re

ak
do

w
n

1,
38

1,
50

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

ad
di

tio
na

l

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d
87

5,
00

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 

 $
50

0,
00

0 
fr

om
 

an
nu

al
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

 $
37

5,
00

0 
fr

om
 G

en
er

al
 

Fu
nd

 
un

as
si

gn
ed

 
ba

la
nc

e 

W
/S

35
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 fr
om

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

fu
nd

s 

 A
irp

or
t F

un
d 

15
1,

50
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 E
nt

er
pr

is
e 

Fu
nd

 

86



Le
gi

sla
tiv

e 
Pr

io
rit

y
Pr

oj
ec

t
Fu

nd
in

g 
So

ur
ce

s

Ye
ar

 o
f 

In
iti

at
io

n/
 

Ex
ec

ut
io

n
Co

st
 E

st
im

at
e

20
21

 to
ta

l
20

21
 R

em
ai

ni
ng

20
22

 A
dd

iti
on

20
22

 T
ot

al
20

23
 A

dd
iti

on
20

24
 A

dd
iti

on
20

25
 A

dd
iti

on
20

26
 A

dd
iti

on

20
24

 F
un

di
ng

 B
re

ak
do

w
n

1,
43

0,
90

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

ad
di

tio
na

l

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d
1,

27
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 $
45

0,
00

0 
fr

om
 

an
nu

al
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

 $
82

0,
00

0 
fr

om
 G

en
er

al
 

Fu
nd

 
un

as
si

gn
ed

 
ba

la
nc

e 

W
/S

75
,0

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 fr

om
 e

nt
er

pr
is

e 
fu

nd
s 

 A
irp

or
t F

un
d 

85
,9

00
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Fu

nd
 

20
25

 F
un

di
ng

 B
re

ak
do

w
n

3,
56

9,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

ad
di

tio
na

l

G
en

er
al

 F
un

d
1,

24
0,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 $
40

0,
00

0 
fr

om
 

an
nu

al
 

co
nt

rib
ut

io
n 

 $
84

0,
00

0 
fr

om
 G

en
er

al
 

Fu
nd

 
un

as
si

gn
ed

 
ba

la
nc

e 

W
/S

13
5,

00
0

$ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

 fr
om

 e
nt

er
pr

is
e 

fu
nd

s 

 A
irp

or
t F

un
d 

2,
19

4,
10

0
$ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 E

nt
er

pr
is

e 
Fu

nd
 

87



88



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-005 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CITY OF PALMER, ALASKA 

 
Resolution No. 22-005 

 
A Resolution of the Palmer City Council Adopting a Budget for the City of Palmer, 
Alaska for the Fiscal Year Beginning January 1, 2022, and Ending December 31, 2022, 
and Appropriating Monies 
 

WHEREAS, as required in Chapter VI of the City of Palmer Municipal Charter, a public 
hearing regarding the City of Palmer Fiscal Year 2022 Budget was held on Tuesday, October 19, 
2021, and continued on Tuesday, December 14, 2021; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Palmer City Council has reviewed the budget presented by the City 

Manager for the 2022 fiscal year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Palmer City Council: 
 
Section 1. That the budget presented to the Council by the City Manager for the fiscal 

year 2021 has been reviewed by the City Council. 
 
Section 2. That money shall be appropriated from all City funds as follows: 

 
Revenues 

General Fund (01) $ 12,237,127 
Enterprise Funds  

Water/Sewer (02) $ 3,470,540 
Airport (03) $ 410,561 
Solid Waste (05) $ 792,000 
Golf Course (15) $ 633,000 

Capital  
General CIP Projects (08) $                 - 
General CIP Equipment (09) $                 - 
Road Fund (10) $                - 
Water & Sewer Projects (24) $ 155,000 
Airport CIP Projects (30) $                - 

Special Revenue Funds  
Police Grants (52) $ 122,650 
Narcotics Grant (53) $ 115,983 

Total Revenues $ 17,936,861 
 

LEGISLATIVE HISTORY 
Introduced by: City Manager Moosey 

Date: October 19, 2021 
Public Hearing: October 19, 2021 

Action:  
Vote:  

Yes: No: 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

89



_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska: Resolution No. 22-005 Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

Expenditures 
General Fund (01) $ 12,170,370 
Enterprise Funds  

Water/Sewer (02) $ 2,789,965 
Airport (03) $ 410,561          

 Solid Waste (05) $ 822,799 
Golf Course (15) $ 633,000 

 Capital Improvements  
           General CIP Projects (08) $                   - 
           General CIP Equipment (09) $                   - 
           Road Fund (10) $                   - 
           Water & Sewer Projects (24) $ 155,000 
           Airport CIP Projects (30) $                   - 
Special Revenue Funds  
Police Grants (52) $ 122,650 
Narcotics Grant (53) $ 115,983 

Total Expenditures/Expenses $ 17,220,328 
 
 
Section 3. That the rate of the tax levy for the City of Palmer, Alaska for the fiscal year 

2022 shall be fixed at 3.00 mills upon each dollar of assessed taxable real and personal property. 
The revenue from this tax levy is to be used for city purposes. 

 
Section 4. That the 2022 budget is hereby approved for all funds in the amounts and for 

the purposes as stated above. The supporting line item budget detail as presented by the 
administration and reviewed by council is incorporated as part of this budget resolution. 

 
Section 5. That the City of Palmer Fiscal Year 2022 operating budget is adopted for a 

period of one (1) year, that being from January 1, 2022, through December 31, 2022. 
 
Approved by the Palmer City Council this 14th day of December, 2021. 
 
 
 
 

_________________________ 
 Edna B. DeVries, Mayor 
 
_____________________________ 
Shelly Acteson, CMC, City Clerk 
 

90



 
2022 Proposed Budget 

 
 
 
 
 

Is available on the city’s website at 
https://www.palmerak.org/finance/page/budget-documents 

with hard copies provided at the 
meeting. 

91

https://www.palmerak.org/finance/page/budget-documents


92



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-068 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-068 

 
Subject:  To Authorize the City Manager to Execute a New Lease Agreement with Lazy Mountain Hangar, LLC on 
Lease Lot 21, Block 3, Palmer Municipal Airport for the Purpose of Constructing a New Aircraft Hangar.   
 
Agenda of: December 14, 2021 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: Frank J. Kelly, Airport Superintendent 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 

 

 
  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $ 2,284.56 
 

This legislation (√): 
X Creates revenue in the amount of: $ 2,284.56 
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
 Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
X Budgeted Line item(s): 03-00-00-3431 Land Leases  $1,660.00 
X Not budgeted  03-00-00-3431 Land Leases  $624.56 
 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

93



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-068 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1. Leasing Application Lazy Mountain Hangar, LLC 
2. Draft Lease Agreement PMA No. 22-001  
3. PMA Lease No. 22-001 Exhibit A 
4. Identity Documents LMH LLC 
5. Draft Memorandum of Lease PMA No. 22-001 

 
 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Lazy Mountain Hangar LLC would like to construct their second hangar at the Palmer Municipal Airport on lease 
lot 21 next to their original hangar on lease lot 20.  Lease lot 21 came available this summer after the City was 
forced to terminate the 2018 lease agreement due to lack of construction performance by the prior Lessee after 
three years.  The original lease lot 20 hangar is now 100% sub-leased to a current viable airport tenant.  
 
The owners of Lazy Mountain Hangar LLC will store their personal aircraft in the new hangar, plus offer much 
needed small aircraft rental storage space.  The design will be exactly the same as their hangar on lease lot 20 
and they will engage the same general contractor to construct the project.  The last project went well, and it is 
anticipated that the new construction project will follow suit. 
 
Lazy Mountain Hangar LLC was the first in line on a three-deep waiting list and have agreed to a 9.5 cents per 
foot leasing rate. 
 
   
Administration’s Recommendation:  
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-068. 
 
 
 
 
 
  

94



95



96



97



 

1 
 

City of Palmer 
231 West Evergreen Avenue 

Palmer, AK 99645 
907-745-3271 

 
 

PALMER MUNICIPAL AIPORT 
LEASE AGREEMENT No. 22-001 

 
Contents 
ARTICLE I - PREMISES, TERM AND RENTALS .............................................................................. 4 

Section 1.1 Premises and Purpose ............................................................................................... 4 

Section 1.2 Term and Renewal ..................................................................................................... 4 

Section 1.3 Rent ................................................................................................................................. 5 

Section 1.4 Rent Adjustment ......................................................................................................... 6 

Section 1.5 Determination of Fair Market Rent ...................................................................... 7 

ARTICLE II - IMPROVEMENTS ........................................................................................................... 7 

Section 2.1 Improvements ............................................................................................................. 7 

Section 2.2 Plans and Specifications .......................................................................................... 7 

Section 2.3 Conceptual Plans ........................................................................................................ 8 

Section 2.4 Final Plans ..................................................................................................................... 8 

Section 2.5 Airport Manager’s Approval .................................................................................... 9 

Section 2.6 Compliance with part 77 FAR ................................................................................. 9 

Section 2.7 Commencement of Construction .......................................................................... 9 

Section 2.8 Completion of Construction .................................................................................... 9 

Section 2.9 Liens ................................................................................................................................ 9 

Section 2.11 Performance Guarantee ......................................................................................... 9 

Section 2.12 Inspection ................................................................................................................. 10 

Section 2.13 Non-Responsibility ................................................................................................ 10 

Section 2.14 As Built Plans ........................................................................................................... 10 

Section 2.15 Improvements Subject to Reversion or Removal ...................................... 11 

Section 2.16 Alterations and Other Improvements ............................................................. 11 

Section 2.17 Pavement/Utility Services .................................................................................. 11 

ARTICLE III - USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES .......................................................................... 11 

Section 3.1 Airport Purposes ....................................................................................................... 11 

Section 3.2 Compliance with Laws ............................................................................................ 12 

98



 

2 
 

Section 3.3 Hazardous Materials ................................................................................................ 12 

Section 3.4 Americans with Disabilities Act ........................................................................... 13 

Section 3.5 Reservations and Exceptions ............................................................................... 13 

Section 3.6 Subordination of Lease to Requirements of the Federal Aviation 

Administration ................................................................................................................................... 13 

Section 3.7 Aircraft on Premises ................................................................................................ 14 

Section 3.8 Discriminatory Acts Prohibited ............................................................................ 14 

Section 3.9 Affirmative Action ..................................................................................................... 14 

Section 3.10 Maintenance of Premises .................................................................................... 15 

Section 3.11 Signs............................................................................................................................ 15 

Section 3.12 Improvements and Alterations ......................................................................... 15 

Section 3.13 Quiet Possession..................................................................................................... 17 

Section 3.14 Lessee’s option to Terminate ............................................................................. 17 

Section 3.15 Lessor’s Option to Terminate ............................................................................. 17 

Section 3.16 Right of Entry and Access ................................................................................... 17 

Section 3.17 Lessor’s Improvements ........................................................................................ 18 

Section 3.18 Aviation Easement ................................................................................................. 18 

Section 3.19 Right-of-Way and Easement .............................................................................. 18 

ARTICLE IV - TAXES, INDEMNIFICATION, AND INSURANCE .............................................. 18 

Section 4.1 Taxes, Assessments, and Utilities ....................................................................... 18 

Section 4.2 Indemnification ......................................................................................................... 19 

Section 4.3 Insurance ..................................................................................................................... 19 

ARTICLE V - ASSIGNMENT AND SECURITY INTERESTS ........................................................ 20 

Section 5.1 Assignment and Subletting ................................................................................... 20 

Section 5.2 Mortgage and Encumbrances ............................................................................... 21 

ARTICLE VI - DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT ............................................................................. 21 

Section 6.1 Default Defined.......................................................................................................... 21 

Section 6.2 Lessor Remedies on Default ................................................................................. 22 

Section 6.3 Lessor’s Failure to Enforce and Nonwaiver ..................................................... 24 

ARTICLE VII - GENERAL COVENANTS ........................................................................................... 24 

Section 7.1 Condition and Status of Premises....................................................................... 24 

Section 7.2 Risk of Loss ................................................................................................................. 25 

Section 7.3 Repair or Rebuilding ................................................................................................ 25 

99



 

3 
 

Section 7.4 Condemnation ............................................................................................................ 25 

Section 7.5 Surrender of Premises ............................................................................................ 25 

Section 7.6 Reversion or Removal of Buildings and Improvements ............................. 26 

Section 7.7 Holdover ....................................................................................................................... 26 

Section 7.8 Notices .......................................................................................................................... 26 

Section 7.9 Rights or Remedies .................................................................................................. 27 

Section 7.10 Successors in Interest .......................................................................................... 27 

Section 7.11 Applicable Law and Forum .................................................................................. 27 

Section 7.12 Recordation of Lease ............................................................................................ 27 

Section 7.13 Severability ............................................................................................................... 27 

Section 7.14 Construction ............................................................................................................. 27 

Section 7.15 Gender and Plurality ............................................................................................. 27 

Section 7.16 Joint and Several Liability ................................................................................... 27 

Section 7.17 Entire Agreement ................................................................................................... 27 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

100



 

4 
 

City of Palmer 

231 West Evergreen Avenue 
Palmer, AK 99645 

907-745-3271 
 

PALMER MUNICIPAL AIPORT 
LEASE AGREEMENT No. 22-001 

 
 This LEASE AGREEMENT is made and entered into this 1st day of January 2022, by and 
between the City of Palmer, a municipal corporation organized and existing under its charter and 
the laws of the State of Alaska, hereinafter referred to as the “Lessor”, and Lazy Mountain Hangar, 
LLC, hereinafter referred to as the “Lessee”. 
  

This lease agreement is not effective unless it is accompanied by signed and attached 
Exhibit A providing specific information for the following sections: 1., 1A, 1.1B, 1.2A, 1.2B, 1.3A, 
2.1, 2.2, 2.7 and 2.8. 
  

In consideration of the mutual covenants and promises contained herein, the parties agree 
as follows: 

 
ARTICLE I - PREMISES, TERM AND RENTALS 

 
Section 1.1 Premises and Purpose 
A. Lessor does hereby lease, demise and let unto Lessee, and Lessee does hereby lease from 

Lessor, real property more particularly described as a parcel of land located within Tract 
B, Palmer Municipal Airport recorded as Plat No. 2006-15 in the Palmer Recording District, 
Third Judicial District, State of Alaska and further described as follows: 

 
Palmer Municipal Airport, Block 3, Lease Lot 21 
Containing 0.55 acres or 24,048 square feet, more or less 
A.K.A. 811 S. Airport Road, Palmer, AK. 99645 
 
See Attached “Exhibit A”   

 
Parcel may be subject to additional easements and/or encumbrances not shown or 
depicted hereon. 

B.  Lessee shall use the Premises for the following Aeronautical uses only, and for no other:  
Aircraft Storage (including Aircraft Rental Space), Aircraft Maintenance, and other 
approved aeronautical activities. 

C. Any use of the premises for Non-Aeronautical activity is strictly prohibited, unless an 
approved amendment to this lease is adopted and fair market value rates for Non-
aeronautical areas are applied. 
 

Section 1.2 Term and Renewal 
A. The term of the lease shall be for a period of 25 years, commencing on the 1st day of 

January 2022 (the “Commencement Date”) and ending on the 31st day of December of 
2047, subject to the terms of provisions hereof. 

B. Provided Lessee fully and faithfully performs all of the covenants and conditions contained 
herein for the term of the Lease, Lessor may approve an additional period of 20 years at 

101



 

5 
 

the expiration of this Lease so that the total number of years available to Lessee is 45 
years. As with the initial term at the start of and continuing through the renewal period,  
1. The rental rate will continue to be subject to changes as provided in Section 1.4 

“Rent Adjustment,”; 
2. The renewal insurance provision as provided in Section 4.3 will apply along with 

any other changes made in accordance with Section 4.3; 
3. The Lease will be subject to such other and further changes as are deemed 

necessary by Lessor for the reasonable protection of Lessor;  
4. In addition, if this Lease is renewed, it shall be subject to all provisions of the 

Palmer Municipal Code and to the City’s Regulations that pertain to the Airport in 
effect at the time of the renewal or amended thereafter. Including but not limited 
to the current airport regulations. 

C. To renew this Lease, Lessee must comply strictly with the following:  
1. Not more than 24 months nor less than 12 months before the end of the term of 

this Lease, the Lessee must indicate in a signed writing delivered to the Palmer 
City Manager, the Lessee’s request to exercise the option to renew this Lease.  

2. If Lessee fails to notify Lessor within said time period, this Lease shall be deemed 
terminated at the scheduled expiration date. 

 
Section 1.3 Rent 
A. Lessee shall pay to the Lessor as rent during the term hereof the sum $2,284.56 per year, 

payable annually in advance without demand, beginning July 1, 2022, and continuing on 
the same day of each and every year thereafter during the term of the lease at the office 
of the Lessor set forth in Section 7.8 or at such other place as the Lessor may designate 
in writing.  (Rent is derived as follows: (24,048 square feet X $0.095 cents per square 
foot)    
1. In addition, Lessee shall pay the prorated amount from execution of lease to June 

30, 2022 for $1,133.06 ($6.26  X  181 days), Less the $500.00 lease application 
fee received on November 29, 2021 to be applied to the prorated portion due 
January 1, 2022 or initial prorated sum of $633.06.  ($1,133.06 - $500.00 = 
$633.06) 

2. Failure to pay rent by the thirtieth day after the due date shall obligate the Lessee 
to pay a late charge of $100.00, which sum is agreed to a reasonable estimate of 
the Lessor’s damages for late rental payments and shall not be construed as a 
penalty or a limitation on Lessor’s remedies.  

3. This late charge is in addition to a 12 percent daily interest rate.  
(0.12% / 365 = .00033 X $2,284.56 = $0.75 cents per day)                                                                    

B. All rent shall be payable in current legal tender of the United States. Payment may be 
tendered by check, but payment shall not be made in fact until such check has been 
honored by the drawee bank. The tender of payment by check within the time provided 
shall be deemed sufficient to meet any due date only if the check is subsequently honored 
by the drawee bank and the Lessor subsequently receives the legal tender required by 
this Lease. Any subsequent dishonor and non-receipt of rent payment shall constitute a 
default of this Lease. 

C. The extension of time for the payment of any installment of rent, or the acceptance by 
the Lessor of any money other than of the kind herein specified, shall not be a waiver of 
the right Lessor to insist on all other payments of rent to be made in the manner and at 
the time herein specified. The acceptance by the Lessor of a past due installment payment 
shall not waive the Lessor’s right as to any other default or breach of the Lease. 

102



 

6 
 

D. The rent herein specified shall be net to the Lessor and such payment shall not be subject 
to any abatement, deduction or off set (except as otherwise provided in this Lease). 

E. All taxes, charges, costs, expenses, utilities and assessments which the Lessee is required 
to pay hereunder, and all damages, costs and expenses which the Lessor may incur by 
reason of any default of the Lessee or failure on the Lessee’s part to comply with the 
terms of the Lease, shall be deemed to be additional rent and in the event of nonpayment 
by the Lessee, the Lessor shall have all the rights and remedies with respect thereto that 
the Lessor has for the nonpayment of the basic rent. 
 

Section 1.4 Rent Adjustment 
A. It is the intent of the parties that the Palmer Municipal Airport be a self-sustaining facility 

and operate without any support from the general fund of the Lessor. 
B. The rent shall be subject to adjustment at five (5) year intervals to achieve fair market 

rent, the first adjustment date is five (5) years following the annual payment. The rent 
shall be adjusted as follows: 
1. Six (6) months prior to the termination of the initial five (5) year period and any 

subsequent five (5) year period, Lessor shall propose the rent for the next five (5) 
year period of the lease term and the parties hereto may, by mutual agreement, 
set the rent for the five (5) year period.  The basis of the initial proposed new rent 
for the next five (5) year term will be the accumulated increase or decrease in the 
Consumer Price Index for All Urban Consumers (CPI-U): Selected areas, 
semiannual averages, all items index for the Anchorage, AK. Local area, based 
upon 2020 as a base year.  Additional factors for the basis of the initial proposed 
new rent will include, but are not limited to; the comparative leasing rate of similar 
airports in the Alaskan marketplace, as well as local and state economic conditions 
and the airports’ vacancy rates.  
a. If an agreement is not reached ninety (90) days prior to the end of the 

current five (5) year period, the fair market rental value of the premises 
shall be determined by an appraiser selected by the lessor who shall (a) be 
a member of The American Institute of Real Estate Appraisers, and (b) 
have experiencing in appraising properties similar to the premises. (The 
“Qualified Appraiser”). The cost of the initial appraisal shall be born equally 
between Lessor and Lessee.  If either the Lessor or Lessee or both shall 
disapprove of the fair market rental of the premises as thus determined, 
the dissatisfied party(s) may then designate another Qualified Appraiser 
who shall conduct a second (or additional) independent appraisal(s) of the 
premises and the fair market rental of the premises shall be determined to 
be the average of the two appraisals.  The cost of the additional appraisal 
shall be borne by the dissatisfied party.  In the event that both the Lessor 
and the Lessee are both dissatisfied with the original appraisal than the 
cost of, the second appraisal shall be borne equally between the Lessor 
and Lessee.    

2. Lessor’s failure to timely start this rent adjustment procedure does not affect the 
rent adjustment, other than that the rent shall not be adjusted for the period 
before Lessor starts the procedure for each five-year period.  
a. If, for example, Lessor starts the rent-adjustment procedure for the first 

time on the first day of the seventh year of the lease term, then the rent 
shall remain unchanged for the previous six years.  

103



 

7 
 

b. Any adjustment in Section 1.4 would start as of the first day of the seventh 
year and remain in effect through year ten when Lessor could again start 
the rent-adjustment procedure. 

C. During the pendency of any determination of fair market rent, Lessee shall pay the rent 
last in effect for the Premises until such determination has been made. Any deficiency 
between the rent so paid and the adjusted rent retroactive to the beginning of the period 
for which it is due shall be paid within thirty (30) days of being billed to Lessee with 
interest from the original due date of such rent at the rate highest rate allowed by law for 
debts under $25,000 or twelve percent (12%) per annum, whichever rate is lower. 

 
Section 1.5 Determination of Fair Market Rent 
A. The fair market rent of the premises shall be based on the Consumer Price Index for the 

Municipality of Anchorage from the United States Department of Labor statistics as 
outlined in Section 1.4. 

B. Fair market rent shall not include any return on improvements placed on the Premises by 
the Lessee or its predecessors in interest, but shall include a return for improvements 
placed on the Premises by the Lessor or otherwise belonging to Lessor.  

C. The parties acknowledge that certain property at Palmer Municipal Airport may not 
currently and may not in the future be leased for a fair market rent.  

D. The returns received by Lessor from other aviation Leases at Palmer Municipal Airport, 
therefore, shall not be used exclusively by the appraiser to determine a fair market rent.  

E. Any appraisal of the Premises shall consider any limitation or restriction on use imposed 
under this Lease or pursuant to any patent, deed, lease or grant from or agreement with 
the United States to the Lessor, including but not limited to aviation restricted use. 

F. Lessor shall send written notice to Lessee of the amount determined to be the fair market 
rent together with a copy of the appraisal. 

 
ARTICLE II - IMPROVEMENTS 

 
Section 2.1 Improvements 
A. Promptly after the execution and delivery of this Lease, and as hereinafter more 

particularly provided, the Lessee at its own cost and expense shall cause plans and 
specifications to be prepared for the construction of the following building, structures and 
improvements to be placed on the leased Premises, hereinafter referred to as 
“Improvements”.  
1. Improvements consist of: 60’ x 83’ 4” Wood Framed Aircraft Hanger  
2. 4,800 square foot paved apron  
3. Utilities of: Water, Sewer, Electric, Natural Gas  

B. Failure to timely complete the improvements shall constitute a condition of default.  
C. The improvements shall fully comply with all applicable federal, state, and municipal laws 

and regulations, including but not limited to federal, state, and municipal building, fire, 
construction and safety codes and zoning regulations and requirements. 

 
Section 2.2 Plans and Specifications 
A. The Lessee at its own cost and expense shall have prepared conceptual plans for 

improvements and shall prepare and submit them to the Department of Community 
Development and the Airport Manager on or before March 15, 2022. The conceptual plans 
shall have a site plan, building floor plan, all four building elevations and the improvements 
to be constructed.  

104



 

8 
 

B. The Lessee shall submit the conceptual plans required (as outlined by this section) within 
the time specified, or the Lessor shall have the right and privilege to terminate this Lease 
on ten (10) days written notice and if such notice is given this Lease shall terminate and 
shall be of no further force and effect at the expiration of such ten-day period. 
 

Section 2.3 Conceptual Plans 
A. The Department of Community Development shall examine the conceptual plans and 

within thirty (30) days after submission, the Airport Manager shall inform the Lessee in 
writing of any objections to the conceptual plans.  
1. In event of objections, the Lessee shall have thirty (30) days to propose any 

corrective amendments which the Airport Manager shall accept or reject within the 
next twenty (20) days.  

2. Failure of the Airport Manager to inform the Lessee in writing of his or her 
objections within twenty (20) days shall constitute the Airport Manager’s and the 
Department of Community Development’s approval. 

B. The Airport Manager’s and Department of Community Development’s approval of the 
conceptual plans submitted by Lessee shall not constitute the assumption of any liability 
of Lessor for their compliance or conformity with applicable building codes, zoning 
regulations, and/or city, borough, state and federal laws, ordinances and/or regulations, 
or for their accuracy.  
1. Lessee shall be solely responsible for such plans.  
2. The Airport Manager’s and Department of Community Development approval of 

such plans shall not constitute a waiver of Lessor’s right to thereafter require 
Lessee to amend the same to provide for any corrections or omissions needed to 
comply with applicable building codes, zoning regulations, city, borough, state or 
federal laws, ordinances or regulations.  

3. The review and approval required by this section is in addition to any other review 
and approval needed for any required building permits or similar authorization. 

 
Section 2.4 Final Plans 
After the Airport Manager has notified the Lessee of his or her approval of the conceptual plans 
and specifications, the Lessee shall promptly apply to the appropriate municipal department for 
a building permit for any construction or building required to be erected by Lessee pursuant to 
this Article.  
A. The Lessee shall submit to the Airport Manager any plans and detailed drawings including 

copies which may be required for the permit before submitting the plans and drawings for 
a permit.  

B. Thereafter the Lessee at the Lessee’s own expense shall proceed promptly with 
preparation of complete and final plans and complete detailed specifications (such plans 
and specification hereafter termed “final plans”) for the Improvements and shall submit 
to the Airport Manager for the Airport Manager’s approval the final plans as soon as 
practicable.  

C. The failure of the Lessee to proceed promptly with the preparation of final plans or to 
submit final plans as required by this section shall constitute a default and breach of this 
Lease and shall enable the Lessor to terminate this Lease on ten days written notice. 

 

105



 

9 
 

Section 2.5 Airport Manager’s Approval 
The Airport Manager shall not unreasonably withhold his or her approval to any conceptual plans, 
specifications, any plans and detailed drawings, or any final plans or complete detailed 
specifications. 
 
Section 2.6 Compliance with part 77 FAR 
Lessee agrees to comply with the notification and review requirements covered in Part 77 of the 
Federal Aviation Regulations and any similar requirement prior to the construction of the 
Improvements and prior to the construction of any further structure or building upon the 
Premises, or in the event of any planned modification or alteration of any present or future 
building or structure situated on the Premises. 
 
Section 2.7 Commencement of Construction 
If the Lessee has not commenced construction of the Improvements by, on or before August 15, 
2022, the Lessor shall have the right at Lessor’s option to terminate this Lease on thirty (30) days 
written notice. 
 
Section 2.8 Completion of Construction 
A. The Lessee shall have completed construction of the Improvements by, on or before 

December 31, 2022.  
B. The construction shall be completed when the Improvements have been substantially 

completed and are capable of the use for which they were intended.  
C. If the Lessee has not completed the construction by the scheduled completion date the 

Lessor shall have the right, at Lessor’s option, to terminate the Lease on ten days written 
notice. 

 
Section 2.9 Liens 
A. Lessee hereby warrants to Lessor that the Premises and all such other Improvements, 

shall be free and clear of all liens, claims and encumbrances and agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold Lessor harmless from and against any and all losses, damages and costs, 
including reasonable attorney’s fees and appellate attorneys’ fees, with respect thereto.  

B. If any lien or notice of lien on account of the alleged debt of Lessee or lien or notice of 
lien by any party engaged by Lessee or Lessee’s contractor to work on the Premises shall 
be filed against the Premises or Improvements, Lessee shall cause the same to be 
discharged of record by payment, deposit, bond, order of court or competent jurisdiction 
or otherwise. 

 
Section 2.11 Performance Guarantee 
A. The work, of $100,000, as described in this lease document shall not begin until the  

Lessee or Lessee’s contractor has provided to the Lessor a performance guarantee in the 
form of a performance bond, escrow, an irrevocable letter of credit, or deed of trust in an 
amount equal to 110% of the estimated cost of the Improvements to be accomplished, 
which guarantees the completion of the work by Lessee or Lessee’s contractor in 
accordance with the plans and specifications approved by Lessor and  guarantees the 
payment by Lessee or Lessee’s contactor of all subcontractors’ charges and all other 
persons and firms supplying services, labor, materials or supplies in connection with the 
work. 

B. The work, if funded by an Alaskan Financial Institution on behalf of the Lessee of 
$100,000, as  described in this lease document shall not begin until the  Lessee’s Financial 

106



 

10 
 

Institution has provided to the Lessor a “Letter of Guarantee” in an amount equal to 100% 
of the cost of improvements in a “Construction Escrow Account” and guarantees the 
payment by Lessee, Lessee’s Contactor or Lessee’s Financial Institution of all 
subcontractors’ charges and all other persons and firms supplying services, labor, 
materials or supplies in connection with the work, in a form approved by the City.    

C. Bonds shall be a performance bond from a company qualified by law to act as a surety in 
the State of Alaska. The bond shall be in a form approved by the City. The bond shall 
name the City as the sole obligee and the Lessee as the principal. The surety must be 
rated by A.M. Best as an A or B surety. 

D. The Lessee may deposit cash in an escrow with a bank qualified by law to do business in 
the State of Alaska. The disbursement of the escrowed funds shall be governed by an 
escrow agreement in a form approved by the City. 

E. The Lessee may provide to the City, an irrevocable letter of credit or loan commitment by 
a bank qualified by law to do business in the State of Alaska naming the City as beneficiary. 
The letter of credit or loan commitment agreement shall be in a form approved by the 
City. 

F. The Lessee may grant the City a first deed of trust on real property located in the 
Matanuska-Susitna Borough to secure the estimated cost of all improvements. The City 
will accept the first deed of trust if:  
1. The Matanuska- Susitna Borough’s assessed value for the tax purposes equals or 

exceeds the amount to be secured by the deed of trust; and 
2. The City obtains at the Lessee’s expense, a policy of title insurance from a 

recognized Title Company doing business in the Matanuska Susitna Borough 
naming the City as the insured beneficiary of the first deed of trust in the amount 
of the estimated cost of all improvements. 

 
Section 2.12 Inspection 
During construction, the Lessor shall have the right, from time to time, to inspect the 
Improvements and in the event that during the construction or at any time prior to the issuance 
of a final certificate of occupancy, the Lessor determines that the Improvements are not being 
constructed in accordance with the plans and specifications specified in this lease, Lessor may 
give notice in writing to the Lessee specifying in detail the particular deficiency, omission or other 
respect in which the Lessor claims construction does not meet the plans and specifications. Upon 
receipt of any such notice the Lessee shall take steps necessary to correct any deficiencies, 
omissions or otherwise. 
 
Section 2.13 Non-Responsibility 
The Lessor may at the time enter upon the Premises for the purpose of posting notices of non-
responsibility for any work, labor or materials supplied or furnished to these Premises and the 
Lessee shall notify, in writing, and in advance of any construction, the Lessor of any construction 
in order that the Lessor may post such notices of non-responsibility. It is the understanding of 
the parties hereto that any such work, labor, or materials are supplied only to further the purposes 
of the Lessee and that work, labor and materials have been contracted for solely by the Lessee 
for Lessee’s own benefit and not as agent of Lessor. 
 
Section 2.14 As Built Plans 
Within sixty (60) days after the project’s completion date, the Lessee shall deliver to the Lessor 
a surveyed plot plan of the leased Premises showing the completed Improvements as built in 
relation to the property lines of the leased Premises. 

107



 

11 
 

 
Section 2.15 Improvements Subject to Reversion or Removal 
All alterations, buildings, structures or other Improvements placed on the Premises by Lessee 
shall be subject to Section 7.6 of this Lease. 
 
Section 2.16 Alterations and Other Improvements 
The Lessee shall have the right, from time to time, to make such alterations and improvements 
and decoration to the Premises. Any alterations, improvements and decorations shall be 
reasonably necessary or appropriate in the Lessor’s judgment for the conduct Lessee’s business. 
Lessee shall obtain Lessor’s written approval before any such alterations are made. Approval shall 
not be reasonably withheld as long as Lessee complies with provisions of this article.  
 
Section 2.17 Pavement/Utility Services 
Any pavement or utility services to be constructed by the Lessee shall be constructed in 
accordance with design and specifications approved by the Lessor and the construction shall be 
subject to inspection by the Lessor. Such improvements shall not be constructed without the prior 
consent of the Lessor in writing. 
 

ARTICLE III - USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES 
 
Section 3.1 Airport Purposes 
A. Lessee shall have the right to conduct on the premises those activities stated in Section 

1.1 B only, and Lessee shall not use the Premises for any other purpose or activity without 
first obtaining the written consent of the Airport Manager to do so.  

B. In addition, Lessees’ activities are to be aeronautical related activities as defined in the 
Federal Aviation Administration’s (FAA’s) Airport Compliance Handbook, FAA order 
5190.6B and the FAA Revenue Diversion Policy and all planned development shall be 
consistent with the Palmer Municipal Airport Layout Plan and Master Plan.  

C. It is the purpose of this Lease to foster and abet air commerce at Palmer Municipal Airport 
and it is not the intent of this Lease to provide premises for uses which do not promote 
the development and use of Palmer Municipal Airport.  

D. All uses normally incidental to an airport such as car rental agencies, limousine service, 
restaurants, insurance sales, and other such incidental services not directly related to the 
maintenance and operation of aircraft are prohibited except when the Airport and the FAA 
have established that a specific facility is not currently needed for aeronautical purposes.  

E. Any non-aeronautical use must be limited and incidental.  
F. Any non-aeronautical use must be approved by the Airport Manager and the FAA in writing 

prior to its commencement.  
G. Any approved non-aeronautical use will be allowed only on an interim basis and will be 

phased out if aeronautical demand increases. 
H. If a non-aeronautical use is approved, the rent provided in section 1.3 shall be increased 

to reflect the fair market value of the portion of the Premises used for non-aeronautical 
uses.  

I. Requests for non-aeronautical uses will be made first to the Airport Manager and if 
approved by the Airport Manager and FAA, the non-aeronautical use and the conditions 
associated therewith will be detailed in an addendum to this Lease. 

J. Lessee shall not use or permit any part of the Premises to be used for any unlawful 
purpose of or for any purpose or use that may constitute a nuisance or hazard to health, 
safety, or property.  

108



 

12 
 

K. Lessee shall not use or allow the Premises or any part thereof to be used or occupied for 
any purpose in violation of any law, lawful order, or rule or regulation concerning the 
operation or use of Palmer Municipal Airport. 

 
Section 3.2 Compliance with Laws 
Lessee shall comply with all laws now or hereinafter in effect affecting the Premises or Lessee’s 
use or occupancy thereof, including but not limited to Palmer Municipal Airport Regulations; PMC 
12.08; and PMC 17 all as may be amended from time to time. 
 
Section 3.3 Hazardous Materials 
A. Neither Lessee nor Lessee’s agents shall cause or permit any Hazardous Materials or 

Substances to be brought upon, generated, stored, disposed of, or used in or about the 
Premises by Lessee, its agents, employees, contractors, or invitees without the prior 
written consent of Lessor.  

B. Lessee shall demonstrate to Lessor’s reasonable satisfaction that such Hazardous 
Materials or Substances are necessary to Lessee’s business and will be used, generated, 
disposed of, and stored in a manner that complies with all laws regulating any such 
Hazardous Materials or Substance so brought upon, generated, stored, disposed of or 
used in or about the Premises.  

C. Lessor may, at its option require Lessee to provide annual reports, submitted with the 
annual rent payment.  

D. The Lessee will report the kinds and quantities of Hazardous Materials or Substance on 
the Premises and how the Lessee complies with applicable laws regarding disposal. 

E. If Hazardous Material or Substances have been used, generated, disposed of or stored in 
or about the Premises during the term of this Lease, Lessor may, at its election, have any 
environmental assessment performed of the Premises, at the Lessee’s expense, at the 
termination of this Lease or termination of Lessee’s right to possession under this Lease. 

F. If any of the following occur; 
1. Lessee breaches the obligations in this section; 
2. The presence of Hazardous Material or Substance on the Premises caused or 

permitted by Lessee results in contamination of the Premises or contamination of 
any other property at the Palmer Municipal Airport; or 

3. Contamination of the Premises or any other property at Palmer Municipal Airport 
by Hazardous Material or Substance otherwise occurs for which Lessee is legally 
liable to Lessor for damage resulting therefrom; 
a. Then Lessee shall indemnify, defend, and hold Lessor harmless from any 

and all claims, judgments, damages, penalties, fines, costs, liabilities, or 
losses including, without limitation, diminution in value of the Premises, 
damages for the loss or restriction on use of rentable or usable space or of 
any amenity of the Premises, damages arising from any adverse impact on 
marketing of space, sums paid in settlement of claims, attorneys’ fees, 
appellate attorney’s fees, consultant fees, expert fees, costs incurred in 
connection with any investigation of site conditions or any clean-up, 
remedial, removal, or restoration work required by any federal, state, or 
local governmental agency or political subdivision because of Hazardous 
Material or substance present in the soil or groundwater on or under the 
Premises which arise during or after the Lease term as a result of such 
contamination. 

109



 

13 
 

G. Without Limiting the foregoing, if the presence of any Hazardous Material or Substance 
on the Premises caused or permitted by Lessee results in any contamination of the 
Premises or any other property at the Palmer Municipal Airport, Lessee shall promptly take 
all actions at its sole expense as are necessary to return the Premises and/or other 
property to the condition existing prior to the introduction of any such Hazardous Material 
or Substance; provided that Lessor’s approval of such actions shall first be obtained, which 
approval shall not be unreasonably withheld so long as such actions would not potentially 
have any material adverse long-term or short-term effect on the Premises or other 
property. 

H. As used herein, the term “Hazardous Material or Substance” shall be interpreted broadly 
to include, but not limited to, substances designated as hazardous under the Resource 
Conservation and Recovery Act, 42 USC Section 6901 et seq., the Federal Water Pollution 
Control Act, 33 USC Section 1257 et seq. the Clean Air Act, 42 USC Section 2001 et seq 
the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, 42 
USC Section 9601 et seq., Title 46 of the Alaska Statutes, or by any applicable federal, 
state, or local stature, regulation or ordinance now or hereafter in effect and as they may 
be amended or interpreted from time to time. 

I. The provisions of this Section 3.3 shall survive any termination of Lessee’s right to 
possession of the Premises and/or termination of this Lease. 
 

Section 3.4 Americans with Disabilities Act 
Lessor and Lessee agree that as allowed by 28 C. F. R. S. 36.201(b), Lessee shall be responsible 
for all compliance responsibility under the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. S 12101 et. 
Seq.) related to Lessee’s use and occupancy of the Premises. Lessee agrees to defend, indemnify 
and hold Lessee harmless from any claim, demand, or action, either by a private person or a 
governmental entity, under said Act due to failure to comply with the terms of said Act. The 
provisions of this Section 3.4 shall survive termination of Lessee’s right to possession of the 
Premises and/or termination of this Lease. 
 
Section 3.5 Reservations and Exceptions 
This Lease is made by the Lessor and accepted by the Lessee conditioned upon and subject to 
any conditions, reservations, limitations, provisions or terms imposed upon the Premises of 
Palmer Municipal Airport, as contained in any grant (including any monetary grant or loan), lease, 
permit, patent, deed, or any other conveyance to the Lessor of the Premises, or of Palmer 
Municipal Airport, from the United States, or the State of Alaska, including their agencies. In the 
event that any such condition, reservation, limitation, provision or term shall prevent, without 
fault of the Lessor, this Lease from continuing in full force and effect, the Lessor shall have the 
option to terminate this Lease immediately (and at any time) without liability to the Lessee 
therefor. 
 
Section 3.6 Subordination of Lease to Requirements of the Federal Aviation 
Administration 
A. This Lease shall be subordinated to the provisions of any existing or future agreements 

between the Lessor and the United States, relative to the operation or maintenance of 
Palmer Municipal Airport, the execution of which has been or may be required as a 
condition precedent to the expenditure of federal funds for the development or operation 
of Palmer Municipal Airport. 

B. In connection therewith, the Lessor has undertaken and may in the future undertake 
certain obligations respecting its operation of Palmer Municipal Airport and activities of its 

110



 

14 
 

contractors, Lessees and permitted thereon. The performance by Lessee of the covenants, 
promises and obligations contained in this Lease is therefore a special consideration and 
inducement to this Lease. Lessee further covenants and agrees that if the administrator 
of the Federal Aviation Administration, or any  other governmental official or body having 
jurisdiction over the enforcement and the obligations of the City in connection with the 
Federal or State aid, shall make any orders, recommendations or suggestions respecting 
the performances by Lessee of its obligations under this Lease, Lessee shall promptly 
comply therewith, at the time or times when and to the extent that the Lessor may direct. 

 
Section 3.7 Aircraft on Premises 
The Lessee shall provide the Airport Manager a list showing all aircraft on the Premises for any 
purpose, together with the aircraft type, model and number, the name and address of the owner, 
the purpose of the aircraft being on the Premises, and such other information concerning its 
identification thereof as the Airport Manager shall deem necessary. 
 
Section 3.8 Discriminatory Acts Prohibited 
A. The Lessee shall furnish any service to be rendered by the Lessee in connection with or 

upon the Premises on a fair, equal and not unjustly discriminatory basis to all users 
thereof. In performing such services Lessee shall charge fair, reasonable and not unjustly 
discriminatory prices or rates for each unit of service furnished, provided the Lessee may 
take reasonable and nondiscriminatory discounts, rebates or other similar types of price 
reductions to volume users or purchasers. 

B. The Lessee, in its use and occupancy of the Premises, shall not discriminate against any 
person or class of persons by reason of race, color, creed or national origin, or by reason 
of any other basis that is illegal or becomes illegal during the term of this Lease, any 
extension, or any holdover period. 

C. The Lessor upon ten (10) days’ notice to the Lessee of any violation of this section shall 
request that the Lessee either correct or justify any practice or charge alleged as a 
violation.  

D. In any proceeding whatsoever the burden of justification shall be on the Lessee to show 
that the practice or charge does comply with the requirements of this section. The Lessee, 
within ten (10) days after receipt of the notice, shall comply with the request or submit to 
the Lessor its justification in writing. The Lessor shall submit its findings and decision as 
to any alleged violation within fifteen (15) days after the receipt of the Lessee’s 
justification, and such findings and decision of the Lessor shall be final. Unless the Lessee 
shall notify in writing the Lessor within ten (10) days of its objections to any request for 
compliance or to any adverse findings and decision, the Lessee shall waive any defense 
that the alleged violation is justified. 

E. The Lessor, at its option, may forthwith terminate this Lease without any liability to Lessee 
thereunder for failure by Lessee without justification to comply with Lessor’s request for 
compliance within the time set forth in the request or the findings and decision to correct 
the alleged violation. 

 
Section 3.9 Affirmative Action 
A. The Lessee assures that it will undertake an affirmative action program as required by 14 

CFR Part 152, Subpart E, to insure that no person shall on the grounds of race, creed, 
color, national origin, or sex be excluded from participating in any employment activities 
covered in 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E. The Lessee assures that no person shall be 
excluded on these grounds from participating in or receiving the services or benefits of 

111



 

15 
 

any program or activity covered in this subpart. The Lessee assures that it will require 
that its covered sub-organizations provide assurances to the Lessor that any similarity will 
undertake affirmative action programs and that they will require assurances from their 
sub-organizations, as required by 14 CFR Part 152, Subpart E, to the same effect. 

B. The Lessor upon ten (10) days’ notice to the Lessee of any violation of subsection A shall 
request that the Lessee either correct or justify any practice or charge alleged as a 
violation. In any proceeding whatsoever, the burden of justification requirement of 
subsection A. The Lessee within ten (10) days after receipt of the notice, shall comply 
with the request or submit to the Lessor its justification in writing. The Lessor shall submit 
its findings and decision as to any alleged violation within fifteen (15) days after receipt 
of the Lessee’s justification, and such findings and decision of the days of its objections 
to any request for compliance or to any adverse findings and decision, the Lessee shall 
waive any defense that the alleged violation is justified. 

C. The Lessor, at its option, may forthwith terminate this Lease without any liability to Lessee 
thereunder for any failure by Lessee without justification to comply with Lessor’s request 
for compliance within the time set forth in the request of the findings and decision to 
correct the alleged violation. 

 
Section 3.10 Maintenance of Premises 
A. Lessee shall repair and maintain the Improvements in good order and repair and keep the 

Premises in a neat, safe, clean and orderly condition. Such obligation shall include, but 
not be limited to, the prevention of the accumulation of any refuse or waste materials 
which might be or constitute a fire hazard or a public or private nuisance. 

B. In the event that Lessee does not properly repair and/or maintain the Improvements or 
Premises, the Airport Manager shall notify the Lessee in writing of those areas that are 
not being properly repaired and/or maintained.  

C. If, however, after 60 days, Lessee fails to make such repair and/or maintenance, Lessor 
may cause to have such repair and maintenance made and invoice the Lessee for the 
repair and maintenance completed.  

D. If said costs are not paid promptly by Lessee, the lease shall be deemed to be in default, 
and Lessor shall be entitled to all legal remedies provided hereunder. 

E. Lessee shall neither cause nor allow any waste of the Premises or Improvements. In 
addition, Lessee shall be strictly liable for any waste of the Premises or Improvements and 
for any damage to reversion. 

 
Section 3.11 Signs 
A. Lessee shall not, without Lessor’s written consent, place or erect any sign of any nature 

on any part of the Premises, but such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld to one 
flat sign of reasonable size bearing the Lessee’s trade name, providing such sign meets 
all city zoning and sign requirements.  

B. At the termination of this Lease, any such sign shall be removed by Lessee at Lessee’s 
own expense.  

C. Lessee shall apply for a sign permit from the Department of Community Development and 
shall comply with Palmer Municipal Code. 

 
Section 3.12 Improvements and Alterations 
After the initial improvements set forth in Article II have been completed, and if the Lessee desires 
to construct further improvements: 

112



 

16 
 

A. Prior to commencing construction, renovation, enlargement, demolition, or modification 
of leasehold improvements now or hereafter existing on the Premises, Lessee shall submit 
to the Airport Manager plans and specifications for such work (including plans for 
landscaping and irrigation, if any) and Timeline for various phases of work.  

B. The Airport Manager shall approve or disapprove such plans and specifications and 
accompanying Timeline at his or her sole discretion.  

C. Upon Lessee’s receipt of the Airport Manager’s written approval of such plans and 
specifications, Lessee agrees to construct the proposed leasehold improvements in strict 
accordance with such plans and specifications and Timeline.  

D. The Airport Manager’s approval of submitted plans and specifications shall not constitute 
the assumption of any liability by Lessor for their compliance or conformity with applicable 
building codes, zoning regulations, and city borough, state and federal laws, ordinances 
and regulations, or for their accuracy, and Lessee shall be solely responsible for such plans 
and specifications.  

E. The Airport Manager’s approval of plans and specifications shall not constitute a waiver of 
Lessor’s right to therefore require Lessee to amend the same to provide for any corrections 
or omissions needed to comply with applicable building codes, zoning regulations, city, 
borough, state or federal laws, ordinances or regulations.  

F. The review and approval required by Section 3.12 is in addition to any other review and 
approval needed for any required building permits or similar authorizations. 

G. Lessee shall obtain all necessary licenses and permits to accomplish any of the work 
described in Section 3.12. Nothing in this Lease is intended to limit or restrict the City of 
Palmer in the exercise of its police power, authority to enforce building, fire and other 
safety codes, laws, ordinances, or regulations. 

H. Lessee agrees to comply with the notification and review requirements covered in part 77 
of the Federal Aviation Regulations prior to the construction of the Improvements and 
prior to the construction of any future building or structure situated on the Premises. 

I. Any contract or agreement for labor, services, materials or supplies furnished in 
connection with construction or alteration of any improvement to the Premises shall 
provide that no lien, claim or other encumbrance shall thereby be created, or arise, or be 
filed by anyone thereunder upon or against the Premises or the improvements.  

J. Before the commencement of any such work, Lessee shall deliver to Lessor either an 
executed duplicate original of such contract or a written waiver by the architect, engineer, 
contractor, material man, mechanic, person or corporation named in such contract of all 
right of lien which he or it might otherwise have upon or against the Premises, or the 
improvements to be constructed or altered, or the interest of Lessor therein.  

K. Lessee hereby warrants to Lessor that the Premises and all such other improvements 
thereto, shall be free and clear of all liens, claims and encumbrances and agrees to 
indemnity, defend and hold Lessor harmless from and against any and all losses, damages 
and costs, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and appellate attorneys’ fees, with respect 
thereto.  

L. If any lien or notice of lien on account of the alleged debt of Lessee or lien or notice of 
lien by any party engaged by Lessee or Lessee’s contractor to work on the Premises shall 
be filed against the Premises or improvements, Lessee shall cause the same to be 
discharged of record by payment, deposit, bond, order of court or competent jurisdiction 
or otherwise.       

M. The work, in excess of $100,000, as described in this lease document shall not begin until 
the Lessee or Lessee’s contractor has provided to the Lessor a performance guarantee in 
the form of a performance bond, escrow, an irrevocable letter of credit, or deed of trust 

113



 

17 
 

in an amount equal to 100% of the estimated cost of the Improvements greater than 
$100,000 to be accomplished, which guarantees the completion of the work by Lessee or 
Lessee’s contractor in accordance with the plans and specifications approved by Lessor 
and  guarantees the payment by Lessee or Lessee’s contactor of all subcontractors’ 
charges and all other persons and firms supplying services, labor, materials or supplies in 
connection with the work. 

N. All alterations, buildings, structures or other improvements placed on the Premises by 
Lessee shall be subject to section 7.6 of this Lease. 
 

Section 3.13 Quiet Possession 
The Lessee, upon paying rent and observing the conditions and terms of this Lease, shall and 
may have at all times during the term of this Lease peaceful and quiet enjoyment and possession 
of the Premises, except as otherwise set forth in this Lease. 
 
Section 3.14 Lessee’s option to Terminate 
A. Should any government body, agency, or official, other than Lessor, prohibit or otherwise 

prevent the use of Palmer Municipal Airport in its present condition as a public airport for 
one year or more, or should the continued use of Palmer Municipal Airport as an airport 
become impossible or unlawful without the fault of the Lessee, the Lessee shall have the 
option to terminate this Lease on thirty (30) days written notice to the Lessor.  

B. Upon such termination, this Lease shall be at an end, and neither party shall have any 
liability for such termination.  

C. The Lessor shall notify the Lessee in writing, of the prohibition, or intended prohibition, 
and the failure of the Lessee to exercise the option to terminate within thirty (30) days 
shall extinguish the Lessee’s option to terminate. 

 
Section 3.15 Lessor’s Option to Terminate 
A. Lessee hereby grants to Lessor should it require the Premises in connection with the future 

expansion and/or operation of the Airport prior to the expiration or termination of the 
Lease, Lessor may, upon ninety (90) days written notice, cancel this Lease. 

B. In the event that this Lease is canceled under the provisions of this Section, Lessor shall 
pay to Lessee the fair market value of Lessee’s remaining leasehold interest and the fair 
market value of Lessee owned buildings, structures, alterations and/or improvements 
placed by Lessee upon the Premises during the term of this Lease.  

C. The fair market value shall be determined by following the appraisal procedure set forth 
determination of the fair market rental of the Premises in Section 1.4 of this Lease.  

D. After payment therefore as provided herein, all buildings, structures, alterations and/or 
improvements shall be subject to the provisions of section 7.6 of this Lease. 

 
Section 3.16 Right of Entry and Access 
A. Lessee hereby grants to Lessor, its contractors, employees, agents and assigns, the 

irrevocable right, permission and authority to enter into and upon all or part of the 
Premises for the purpose of:  
1. Inspecting the Premises; 
2. Cleaning, repairing, maintaining, altering or improving the Premises as Lessor may 

deem necessary; 
3. Abating any nuisance or hazardous condition on the Premises, and/or 
4. Preserving and/or protecting the Premises. 

114



 

18 
 

B. It is understood and agreed that the entry and access may affect the use of the Premises 
from time to time. Lessor shall use reasonable efforts to coordinate any anticipated access 
or utility or other interruptions with Lessee in an attempt to reasonably reduce the effect 
of any disruption of Lessee’s enjoyment and use of the Premises. 

C. The right of access and entry reserved herein does not impose, nor does Lessor assume 
by reason thereof, any responsibility for the care, maintenance or supervision of the 
Premises. Lessee shall not be entitled to any abatement or reduction in rent by reason of 
Lessors access and/or entry nor shall such access or entry be deemed an actual or 
constructive eviction. 

 
Section 3.17 Lessor’s Improvements 
A. Lessor shall have a permanent right of access over, under, around and across the Premises 

for the purposes of maintaining, servicing, upgrading, replacing or removing any Lessor- 
installed improvements including, but not limited to, light poles, utilities, and fencing.  

B. This section does not require Lessor to provide any improvements.  
C. Lessor’s maintenance shall not include paving, aircraft tie downs, snow removal or 

sanding. 
D. All improvements constructed by the Lessor shall at all times remain the property of Lessor 

and may be maintained, upgraded, serviced or removed at Lessor’s convenience and 
discretion. 

E. Lessor agrees to use reasonable efforts to notify of any upgrading, replacing or repair 
work with Lessee and to reasonably reduce disrupting Lessee’s use of the Premises when 
practicable. 

F. In the event of abandonment or default, any Lessee improvement will become the 
property of the Lessor. 

 
Section 3.18 Aviation Easement 
Lessee’s right to use the Premises for the purposes as set forth in this Lease shall be secondary 
to and subordinate to the operation of the airport. Lessor specifically reserves for itself, other 
Palmer Municipal Airport leaseholders, and for the public, an easement for the passage of aircraft 
in the air space above the surface of the described property together with the right to cause in 
said air space or on adjacent property such noise as may be inherent in the present or future 
operation of aircraft. Without in any way limiting Lessor’s rights under Section 3.12, Lessee shall 
not construct any building or facility to a height which in Lessor’s discretion will interfere with the 
operations of the airport. 
 
Section 3.19 Right-of-Way and Easement 
Lessor shall have the right to designate or grant rights-of-way or utility easements across the 
Premises without compensation to Lessee, provided that Lessee shall be entitled to compensation 
for the taking or destruction of any of Lessee’s improvements and provided further that Lessee 
may terminate the Lease or demand a rental adjustment to reflect any reduction in value of the 
Premises.  
 

ARTICLE IV - TAXES, INDEMNIFICATION, AND INSURANCE 
 
Section 4.1 Taxes, Assessments, and Utilities 
A. Lessee, in addition to the rentals provided for herein, shall pay when due (and before 

delinquency) all taxes, utility fees, assessments, and charges upon the Premises, the 

115



 

19 
 

leasehold interest, and upon buildings, improvements and property thereon, which are 
assessed or charged at any time during the term.  

B. The Lessee shall furnish to the Lessor for Lessor’s inspection within thirty (30) days after 
the date any amount payable by the Lessee as required by this section, official receipts 
from the appropriate taxing authorities or other proof satisfactory to the Lessor evidencing 
payment.  

C. The Lessee shall have the right at all times to protest any assessment of taxes or other 
assessments or charges, but the Lessor may require the Lessee to deposit with the Lessor 
any sums in dispute to insure payment in the event that any contest is unsuccessful.  

D. Lessee shall pay and be responsible for all charges for gas, electricity, water, light, heat, 
power, garbage, solid waste, and other utility service used in or about or supplied to the 
Premises.  

E. Lessee shall timely pay all sales tax on the rent on the lease, utilities, sales, service, rents, 
etc., and shall comply with City and Borough sales tax laws. 

 
Section 4.2 Indemnification 
Lessee shall indemnify, defend and hold Lessor harmless from all liability or loss (including, but 
not limited to reasonable attorneys’ fees and appellate attorneys’ fees) arising from any injury to 
any person or persons (including without limitation Lessee, its agents or employees) or property 
of any kind whatsoever while in, upon, or in any way connected with the Premises during the 
term of this Lease, or any use or occupancy hereunder, however occurring, including any acts, 
negligent or otherwise, and any omissions (negligent or otherwise), by Lessee, its agents, 
independent contractors, or employees, unless caused by or resulting from the sole negligence 
of the Lessor or any of Lessor’s agents or employees. 
 
Section 4.3 Insurance 
A. Lessee, at its own expense, shall secure and maintain in full force at all times during the 

term of this Lease: 
1. Commercial general liability. Commercial general liability insurance with a single 

occurrence liability limit of $1,000,000 and an aggregate of $2,000,000 insuring 
against liability of Lessee, its officers, contractors, licensees, agents, employees, 
guests, invites and authorized representatives, arising out of and/or in connection 
with Lessee’s use or occupancy of the Premises; or 

2. Airport premises liability. Airport premises liability insurance on an occurrence basis 
with a single combined liability limit of not less than $1,000,000 occurrence and 
$2,000,000 aggregate limit for bodily injury and property damage. 

3. If applicable, third-party aircraft liability insurance with a single combined liability 
limit of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence; 

4. Commercial property insurance in the amount of replacement costs. 
5. The Lessor reserves the right to require Lessee to provide pollution insurance as 

warranted by the proposed use of the Premises. 
B.  This insurance required under this Section shall: 

1.  Name the Lessor as an “additional insured” 
2.  Contain a clause that the insurer will not cancel or change the insurance without 

first giving the Lessor thirty (30) days prior written notice; 
3.  Be with an insurance company qualified to do business in the State of Alaska with 

a financial rating of at least “A” as rated in current Best’s Insurance Reports; 
4.  Include a waiver of subrogation clause by which the insurer waives all rights of 

subrogation against the Lessor for payments made under the policy; and 

116



 

20 
 

5.  Not contain a damage deductible for each and every loss that exceeds $10,000. 
C.  Lessee shall provide Lessor with proof of insurance coverage in the form of a certificate 

of insurance, and if requested by the Lessor, Lessee shall provide Lessor with a copy of 
the policy(ies). Failure to maintain such insurance in effect shall constitute grounds for 
immediate termination of this lease. Lessor may at its option purchase said insurance and 
charge the expense thereof to Lessee, which expense Lessee shall assume and pay. 

D.   To reasonably protect itself, Lessor may adjust these minimum insurance requirements 
and add types of insurance or both by giving Lessee written notice of such adjustment 
ninety (90) days prior to the expiration of each five (5) year interval of the term of this 
Lease. Lessor may also adjust these minimum insurance requirements at any time if 
Lessee’s use of the Premises changes, and in such event, Lessor shall give Lessee thirty 
(30) days written notice of such adjustment. 

E.  The requirements of insurance coverage do not relieve Lessee from any other obligation 
under this Lease.  

 
ARTICLE V - ASSIGNMENT AND SECURITY INTERESTS 

 
Section 5.1 Assignment and Subletting 
A. Lessee shall not voluntarily assign or encumber its interest in this Lease or in the Premises 

or sublease all or any part of the Premises, or allow any other person or entity to occupy 
or use all or any part of the Premises without first obtaining Lessor’s prior written consent. 
Lessor will not unreasonably withhold its consent; provided, however, if Lessor does 
unreasonably withhold its consent, Lessor shall not be liable for any damages, costs or 
attorney’s fees arising therefrom.  
1. Lessor may condition its consent upon such terms as are in its best interest, 

including but not limited to matters regarding laws, insurance, risks, Lessee’s 
defaults or past practices, risks attributable to assignee, etc., but Lessor may not 
condition its consent upon raising the rent other than as already allowed under 
this Lease.  

2. Any assignment, encumbrance or sublease without Lessor’s consent shall be 
voidable and, at Lessor’s election, shall constitute a default.  

3. No consent to any assignment, encumbrance or sublease shall constitute a further 
waiver of the provisions of this section.  

B. If Lessee is a partnership or limited liability company, a withdrawal or change, voluntary, 
involuntary or by operation of law, of any partner or partners, member or members 
owning twenty-five percent (25%) or more of the partnership or LLC in one or more 
transactions, or the dissolution of the partnership or LLC, shall be deemed a voluntary 
assignment.  

C. If Lessee is a corporation any dissolution, merger, consolidation or other reorganization 
of Lessee, or the sale or other transfer of a controlling percentage of the capital stock of 
Lessee in one or more transactions, or the sale of twenty-five percent (25%) of the value 
of the assets of Lessee in one or more transactions without immediate replacement with 
assets of equal or greater worth, shall be deemed a voluntary assignment. 

D. Lessee hereby irrevocably assigns to Lessor, as security for Lessee’s obligations under this 
Lease, all rent from any subletting of all or a part of the Premises, and Lessor, as assignee 
and attorney-in-fact for Lease, may collect such rent and apply it toward Lessee’s 
obligations under this Lease, except that, until the occurrence of an act of default by 
Lessee, Lessee shall have the right to collect such rent as it becomes due, one payment 
period at a time, which payment period may never exceed one year.  

117



 

21 
 

E. Lessee may not charge a sub-lessee a rent rate that changes from year to year, other 
than changes that result directly from changes made by Lessor, and Lessee shall never 
have the right to collect or receive rent in advance of when it is due. If the sub-lessee 
pays Lessee in advance and Lessor collects rent hereunder, then the sub-lessee must pay 
the advanced rent to Lessor and sub lessee may retrieve the advanced rent from Lessee. 
Neither this section nor collection of any such rent by Lessor shall be deemed to be 
Lessor’s approval of any such sublease. 

F. If, as a result of an assignment or sublease, the Premises will be used for purposes other 
than as set forth in section 3.1 herein. The consent of the Palmer City Council and the 
FAA, if applicable, must be obtained. It is the policy of the city council to discourage non-
aviation related uses. Additionally, if incremental revenues over and above the Lessee’s 
Lease payments will be realized from the sublease or assignment pertaining to non-
aeronautical uses, Lessor may raise Lessee’s existing rent to fair market value at the time 
of the approval of the sublease. 

G. All assignment instruments shall include language whereby Assignee expressly assumes 
and agrees to pay the obligations of Lessee under this Lease.  
1. No assignment shall release or diminish the obligations of any Lessee or any 

Guarantor for performance of Lessee’s obligations hereunder and Lessee shall 
remain liable as if no assignment were made.  

2. Lessee and Assignee will be jointly and severally liable for such obligations.  
3. Neither this section nor any payment of rent by such Assignee shall be deemed to 

be Lessor’s approval of any such assignment. 
H. All sublease instruments shall provide that the sublease is subject to all of the terms, 

covenants and conditions of this Lease. 
I. Lessee agrees to pay to Lessor $500 for any request by Lessee for Lessor to consent to 

any assignment or subletting by Lessee. 
 

Section 5.2 Mortgage and Encumbrances 
A. Lessee shall not mortgage or otherwise encumber this Lease (including Lessee’s leasehold 

estate in the improvements thereon) without the prior written consent of Lessor.  
B. The Lessor’s consent to the mortgage or encumbrance shall not be unreasonably withheld, 

provided the mortgage or beneficiary shall agree to the attached form of Assignment of 
Lease for Security Purposes and Consent to Assignment of Lease attached hereto as 
Exhibit C.  

C. Lessee shall furnish the Lessor with a copy of any security transaction mortgaging or 
encumbrancing the Premises for the Lessor’s approval prior to any mortgaging or 
encumbrancing of the Premises, and shall further furnish a copy to the Lessor of any such 
executed security transactions. 

 
ARTICLE VI - DEFAULT AND ENFORCEMENT 

 
Section 6.1 Default Defined 
The occurrence of one or more of the following shall be deemed a default by the Lessee and a 
breach of this Lease: 
A. Failure to pay the rent provided herein, or any part thereof, or other charge due 

hereunder, for a period of ten (10) days after written notice of such failure is given by 
Lessor to Lessee; 

B. Failure to perform the obligations set forth in Sections 3.8, 3.9, and 3.10 hereof, after any 
notice required by those sections; 

118



 

22 
 

C. Failure to provide and maintain in effect insurance in compliance with Section 4.3 hereof 
(for which failure there is no notice time requirement); 

D. Failure to do, observe, keep and perform any other terms, covenants, conditions, 
agreements and provisions contained in this Lease for a period of thirty (30) days after 
written notice of such failure is given by Lessor to Lessee, or, in the case of a default not 
reasonably susceptible of being cured within thirty (30) days (which does not include any 
default which may be cured by the payment of money), failure to commence promptly 
and proceed diligently and in good faith to cure such default within the initial thirty (30) 
days and complete such cure within a total of sixty (60) days after the sending of the 
notice; 

E. The abandonment of the premises by the Lessee, the making by the Lessee of a general 
assignment for the benefit of creditors, or the appointment of a permanent or temporary 
receiver for the Lessee’s property, which is not vacated or set aside within thirty (30) days 
of sending of written notice of such event by Lessor; or 

F. The issuance of three (3) written notices for defaults or breaches within any consecutive 
twelve-month period, regardless of whether or not the default or breach was cured within 
the applicable time period. 

 
Section 6.2 Lessor Remedies on Default 
Upon the occurrence of any default of Lessee as described in Section 6.1 or elsewhere in this 
Lease, Lessor shall have the option to pursue any one or more of the following remedies without 
any notice or demand whatsoever: 
A. Lessor may, at its election, terminate this Lease or terminate Lessee’s right to possession 

only, without terminating this Lease. 
B. Upon termination of this Lease, whether by lapse of time or otherwise, or upon any 

termination of Lessee’s right to possession without termination of this Lease, Lessee shall 
surrender possession and vacate the Premises immediately, and deliver possession thereof 
to Lessor, and Lessee hereby grants to Lessor full and free license to enter into and upon 
the Premises in such event with or without process of law and to repossess Lessor of the 
Premises and to expel or remove Lessee and any others who may occupy or be within the 
Premises and to remove and all property therefrom, without being deemed in any manner 
guilty of trespass, eviction or forcible entry or detainer, and without incurring any liability 
for any damage resulting therefrom, Lessee hereby waiving any right to claim damage for 
such re-entry and expulsion and without relinquishing Lessors right to rent or any other 
right given to Lessor hereunder or by operation of law. 

C. Upon any termination of this Lease, whether by lapse of time or otherwise, Lessor shall 
be entitled to recover: 
1. The worth at the time of the award of the unpaid rent (including any amounts 

treated as additional rent) that had been earned at the time of termination; 
2. The worth at the time of the award of the amount by which the unpaid rent 

(including any amounts treated as additional rent) that would have been earned 
after the date of termination until the time of award exceeds the amount of the 
loss of rent for the same period that Lessee proves could have been reasonably 
avoided; 

3. The worth at the time of the award of the amount by which the unpaid rent 
(including a reasonable estimate of additional rent) for the balance of the term 
exceeds the amount of the loss of rent for the same period that Lessee proves 
could have been reasonably avoided; and 

119



 

23 
 

4. Any other amount, full reasonable attorney’s fees and court costs, necessary to 
compensate Lessor for all detriment proximately caused by Lessee’s default. 

D. “The worth at the time of the award,” used in this section, is to be computed by allowing 
interest as determined by the current bond rating from State of Alaska Municipal Bond 
Bank plus 5%. The “time of the award” is the date the Lessee is notified of the termination 
of the lease by the Lessor. Such notification shall be done by certified mail. 

E. Upon any termination of Lessee’s right to possession only without termination of this 
Lease, Lessor may, at the Lessor’s option enter into the Premises, remove Lessee’s signs 
and other evidences of tenancy, and take and hold possession thereof as provided in this 
section, without such entry and possession terminating this Lease or releasing Lessee, in 
whole or in part, from any obligation, including Lessee’s obligation to pay the rent, 
including any amounts treated as additional rent hereunder, for the full term. 

F. Upon termination of Lessee’s right to possession, Lessor may, but need not, relet the 
Premises or any part thereof for such rent and upon such terms as Lessor in its sole 
discretion shall determine (including, but not limited to, the right to relet the Premises for 
a greater or lesser term than that remaining under this Lease, the right to relet the 
Premises as a part of a larger area, and the right to change the character or use made of 
the Premises) and Lessor shall not be required to accept any tenant offered by Lessee or 
to observe any instructions given by Lessee about such reletting.  
a. In any such case, Lessor may make repairs, alterations and additions in or to the, 

Premises, and Lessee shall, upon demand, pay the cost thereof, together with 
Lessor’s expenses of reletting.  

b. If the consideration collected by Lessor upon any such reletting plus any sums 
previously collected from Lessee are not sufficient to pay the full amount of all 
rent, including any amounts treated as additional rent here under and other sums 
reserved in this Lease for the remaining term hereof, together with the costs of 
repairs, alterations, additions, and Lessor’s expenses of reletting and the collection 
of the rent accruing therefrom (including attorneys’ fees), Lessee shall pay to 
Lessor the amount of such deficiency upon demand and Lessee agrees that Lessor 
may file suit to recover any sums falling due under this subpart from time to time. 

E.   Lessor may, at Lessor’s option, enter into and upon the Premises, with or without process 
of law, if Lessor determines in its sole discretion that Lessee is not acting within a 
commercially reasonable time to maintain repair or replace anything for which Lessee is 
responsible hereunder and correct the same, without being deemed in any manner guilty 
of trespass, eviction or forcible entry and detainer and without incurring any liability for 
any damage resulting therefrom and Lessee agrees to reimburse Lessor, on demand, as 
additional rent, for any expenses which Lessor may incur in thus effecting compliance with 
Lessee’s obligations under this Lease. 

F.  Any and all property which may be removed from the Premises by Lessor pursuant to the 
authority of this Lease or of law or in equity, to which Lessee is or may be entitled, may 
be handled, removed and stored, as the case may be, by or in the direction of Lessor at 
the risk, cost and expense of Lessee, and Lessor shall in no event be responsible for the 
value, preservation or safekeeping thereof.  
1. Lessee shall pay to Lessor, upon demand, any and all expenses incurred in such 

removal and all storage charges against such property so long as the same shall 
be in Lessor’s possession or under Lessors control.  

2. Any such property of Lessee not retaken by Lessee from storage within thirty (30) 
days after removal from the Premises shall conclusively be presumed to have been 
conveyed by Lessee to Lessor under this Lease as a bill of sale without further 

120



 

24 
 

payment or credit by Lessor to Lessee; provided, however, Lessor may disclaim as 
to any item or items and the effect of such disclaimer will be that the item or items 
never became the property of Lessor.  

G. Pursuit of any of the foregoing remedies shall not preclude pursuit of any of the other 
remedies herein provided or any other remedies provided by law or equity (all such 
remedies being cumulative), nor shall pursuit of any remedy herein provided constitute a 
forfeiture or waiver of any rent, additional rent or other sum due to Lessor, hereunder or 
of any damages accruing to Lessor by reason of the terms, provisions and covenants 
herein contained.  

H. No act or thing done by Lessor or its agents during the term hereby granted shall be 
deemed a termination of this Lease or an acceptance of the surrender of the Premises, 
and no agreement to terminate this Lease or an acceptance of the surrender of the 
Premises shall be valid unless in writing signed by Lessor.  

I. No judicial action shall be necessary to terminate this Lease. 
J. No waiver by Lessor of any violation or breach of any of the terms, provisions, and 

covenants herein contained shall be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of any 
other violation or breach of any of the terms, provisions and covenants herein contained.  

K. Lessors acceptance of the payment of rental, including any amount treated as additional 
rental, or other sums hereunder after the occurrence of an event of default shall not be 
construed as a waiver of such default, unless Lessor so notifies Lessee in writing.  

L. Forbearance by Lessor to be deemed or construed to constitute a waiver of such default 
or of Lessor’s right to enforce any such remedies with respect to such default or any 
subsequent default.  

M. If, on account of any breach or default by Lessee in Lessee’s obligations under the terms 
and conditions of this lease, it shall become necessary or appropriate for Lessor to employ 
or consult with an attorney concerning this Lease or enforce or defend any of Lessor’s 
rights or remedies hereunder, Lessee agrees to pay any attorneys’ fees and appellate 
attorneys’ fees so incurred.  

N. Lessor shall not be responsible or liable for any failure to relet the Premises or any part 
thereof, or for any failure to collect any rent due upon such reletting. 

 
Section 6.3 Lessor’s Failure to Enforce and Nonwaiver 
A. Failure by the Lessor to insist the strict performance of any term, condition or covenant 

of this Lease or to exercise any right or remedy available on a breach thereof, and 
acceptance of full or partial rentals during the continuance of any such breach shall not 
constitute a waiver of any such breach or any such term, condition or covenant.  

B. Terms, conditions or covenants of this Lease required to be performed by the Lessee, and 
breach thereof, shall not be waived, altered or modified, except by written instrument 
executed by the Lessor.  

C. Waiver of any breach shall not affect or alter any term, condition or covenant of this Lease, 
and each such term, condition or covenant shall continue in full force and effect with 
respect to any other then existing or subsequent default or breach thereof, and any other 
or subsequent default or breach may be enforced by the Lessor as provided in this Lease. 

 
ARTICLE VII - GENERAL COVENANTS 

 
Section 7.1 Condition and Status of Premises 
A. Lessee acknowledges that Lessee has examined the Premises and accepts same in its 

present condition without any representation or warranty, express or implied in fact or by 

121



 

25 
 

law, by the Lessor as to the title, nature, condition or usability of the Premises for the 
purposes set forth in this Lease, all of said warranties being hereby expressly property 
as-is in its present condition, together with all faults. 

B. Lessee agrees to provide written notice to Lessor immediately upon Lessee becoming 
aware or having a reasonable belief: 
1. That the Premises or any adjacent property is being, may be, or has been 

contaminated with any Hazardous Materials, or 
2. Of the existence of any Hazardous Materials in, within, on or near the Premises or 

adjacent property. 
 

Section 7.2 Risk of Loss 
Destruction or damage to any building or improvement on the Premises by fire, rain, ice, snow, 
windstorm, earthquake, aircraft accident, or any other casualty or action of the elements shall 
not entitle the Lessee to surrender possession of the Premises, to terminate this Lease, to violate 
any of its provisions, or to cause any rebate or abatement in rent when due or thereafter 
becoming due under the terms hereof. 
 
Section 7.3 Repair or Rebuilding 
A. Upon the destruction or damage to any building or structure by fire or other casualty 

covered by insurance or that is supposed to be covered by Lessee’s insurance, Lessee 
may, with Lessor’s consent rebuild the building or structure.  

B. Upon the destruction or damage to any building or structure by casualty that is not 
covered by insurance and is not supposed to be covered by insurance, Lessee shall have 
the right to repair, restore or rebuild the building or structure within one (1) year after 
the date of such occurrence or as per written agreement with the Airport Manager. 

 
Section 7.4 Condemnation 
A. If all the Premises, or any part thereof required for the reasonable use of the Premises, is 

taken by eminent domain, this Lease shall expire on the date when the Lessee is required 
to vacate the Premises, and the rent shall be apportioned as of that date. 

B. If there is a taking of a part of the Premises not required for the reasonable use of the 
Premises, then this Lease shall continue in full force and effect and the rent shall be 
equitably reduced, based on the proportion by which the Premises is reduce, such rent 
reduction to be effective as of the date possession of such portion is delivered to the 
condemning authority. 

C. Except for improvements constructed and paid for by Lessee, Lessor reserves all rights to 
damages to the Premises for any taking by eminent domain and Lessee hereby assigns to 
Lessor any right Lessee may have to such damages or award.  

D. Lessee shall make no claim against Lessor for damages for termination of the leasehold 
interest or interference with Lessee’s business. Lessee shall have the right, however, to 
claim and recover from the condemning authority compensation for any loss to which 
Lessee may be put for Lessee’s moving expenses and for the interruption of or damages 
to Lessee’s business, provided that such damages may be claimed only if they are awarded 
separately in the eminent domain proceeding and not as part of the damages recoverable 
by Lessor. 
 

Section 7.5 Surrender of Premises 
At the expiration of any Lease term, upon termination of this Lease, upon reentry by Lessor or 
otherwise, the Lessee shall peacefully and quietly surrender the Premises in as good a condition 

122



 

26 
 

as it was at the beginning of the initial term, reasonable use and wear and damages by the 
elements excepted. 
 
Section 7.6 Reversion or Removal of Buildings and Improvements 
A. Any and all buildings, structures, alterations or improvements placed by the Lessee upon 

the Premises shall, at the option of the Lessor, revert to and become the property of the 
Lessor at and upon the expiration or termination of this Lease and/or the termination of 
Lessee’s right to possession of the Premises.  

B. Lessor, in its sole discretion, may require Lessee to remove part or all of said buildings, 
structures, alterations and/or improvements including, but not limited to, fuel tanks and 
lines, and partially or completely restore the Premises to the condition of the Premises at 
the inception of this Lease by sending written notice requesting such removal and 
restoration within sixty (60) days after such expiration or termination.  

C. Lessee shall then at its own expense complete such removal and restoration within ninety 
(90) days of the sending of such notice. 

D. At the conclusion of the current lease and extension period(s) the existing Lessee shall be 
given preference in executing a new lease on the same premises, provided that the 
proposed land use is compatible with the current Airport Layout Plan and the Lessee is 
otherwise in good standing with the City of Palmer and in substantial compliance with the 
existing lease.  

E. Section(s) 7.5 and 7.6 do not necessarily preclude a lessee from recovering value from 
Lessee’s leasehold improvements by selling to a third party at any time during the lease 
term, provided that all other conditions of the active lease have been met. At such time, 
the buying third party would request a new lease or an assignment of the existing lease, 
and such request would not be reasonably withheld.     

 
Section 7.7 Holdover 
A. In the event the Lessee shall hold over after the expiration or termination of this Lease 

for any cause whatsoever, Lessee shall pay Lessor monthly rent at double the annual 
rental rate divided by twelve for the entire time Lessee remains in possession, and in 
addition thereto, Lessee shall hold Lessor harmless from all damages resulting from 
Lessee’s failure to surrender the Premises, including, without limitation, claims made by a 
succeeding tenant resulting from Lessee’s failure to surrender the Premises. 

B. If Lessee remains in possession of the Premises after expiration of the term of the Lease, 
or after the date in any notice given by Lessor to Lease termination this Lease, such 
possession by Lessee shall be deemed to be a month-to-moth tenancy terminable on thirty 
(30) days’ notice given at any time by either party.  

C. The provisions of this section do not exclude Lessor’s rights of re-entry or any other right 
under this Lease. 

 
 
Section 7.8 Notices 
Any notices required to be sent in accordance with the terms of this Lease, including legal process, 
shall be sent in writing by registered or certified mail, to the parties at the following addresses 
unless otherwise notified in writing and deemed to be received when so sent: 
 
Lessor’s address: City Manager, City of Palmer 
   231W. Evergreen Ave.  

Palmer, AK 99645 

123



 

27 
 

Lessee’s address: Lazy Mountain Hangar, LLC 
C/O Dayton J. Madison 

   PO Box 2725  
   Palmer, AK. 99645 
 
Section 7.9 Rights or Remedies 
No right or remedy herein conferred upon or reserved to Lessor is intended to be exclusive or 
any other right or remedy, but is intended to be in addition to any right or remedy given 
hereunder, or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 
 
Section 7.10 Successors in Interest 
This Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the respective heirs, successors and 
assigns of the parties hereto. 
 
Section 7.11 Applicable Law and Forum 
This Lease and the respective rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and 
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Alaska. Any civil action concerning this 
Lease shall be brought in Alaska District or Superior Court in Palmer, Alaska, only. 
 
Section 7.12 Recordation of Lease 
The parties prefer to record a memorandum of this Lease rather than the Lease itself and 
contemporaneously with the execution hereof they have executed a memorandum of Lease in 
the form of Attachment A which is attached hereto and may be recorded by either party. In the 
event it should be so require by any title company insuring title for Lessee, or by any lending 
institution from which Lessee proposed to make a loan, then Lessee may cause this Lease to be 
placed of record. 
 
Section 7.13 Severability 
The invalidity or unenforceability of any particular provision of this Lease shall not affect any 
remaining provisions hereof, and, in any such event this Lease shall be construed and interpreted 
in all respects as if such invalid or unenforceable provision were omitted. 
 
Section 7.14 Construction 
Lessee and Guarantor have been advised to have this Lease and the Guaranty reviewed by their 
own attorney. The parties agree that this Lease and Guaranty shall not be construed more strictly 
against one party than the other nor shall this lease be construed against the lessor. 
 
7.15 Gender and Plurality 
Unless the context of this Lease clearly requires a different interpretation of construction, all 
references to masculine, feminine or neuter genders shall be construed to refer to all such 
genders; and all references to the singular shall also include the plural, and vice versa. 
 
Section 7.16 Joint and Several Liability 
The obligations of each Lessee are joint and several. 
 
Section 7.17 Entire Agreement 
This written Lease constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the 
subject matter hereof and supersedes all other prior or contemporaneous agreements, oral or 
written, between the parties not included herein. No modifications, amendments, deletions, 

124



 

28 
 

additions or alterations of this Lease shall be effective unless in writing and signed by all of the 
parties hereto or such representatives of the parties as have been duly authorized to make such 
change. 
 
LESSOR: CITY OF PALMER 
 
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _______________________ 
      John Moosey, City Manager 
 
 
LESSEE: LAZY MOUNTAIN HANGAR, LLC 
 
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _____________________ 
      Dayton J. Madison (Member) 
 
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _____________________ 
      Elizabeth A. Madison (Member) 
 
 
By: _____________________________    
     Jeffery D. Madison (Member)   Date: _____________________ 
 
 
By: _____________________________    
     Nancy E. Madison (Member)   Date: _____________________ 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on the ______day of ______________, 2022, before me the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, duly commissioned and sworn, 
personally appeared, to me known and known to me to be the identical individual described in 
and who executed the within and foregoing LEASE AGREEMENT as City Manager of the City of 
Palmer, freely and voluntarily on behalf of the City of Palmer for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND and official seal the day and year last above written. 
 
_________________________ 
Notary Public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 

125



 

29 
 

NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Dayton J. 
Madison, Member / Owner of Lazy Mountain Hangar, the limited liability company named in the 
forgoing instruments, acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is 
authorized by the limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act 
and deed of the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
_________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Elizabeth A. 
Madison, Member / Owner of Lazy Mountain Hangar, the limited liability company named in the 
forgoing instruments, acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is 
authorized by the limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act 
and deed of the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
_________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
 

126



 

30 
 

NOTARY 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
RIO BLANCO DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Colorado, personally appeared, Jeffery D. 
Madison, Member / Owner of Lazy Mountain Hangar, the limited liability company named in the 
forgoing instruments, acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is 
authorized by the limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act 
and deed of the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
___________________________ 
Notary public in and for Colorado 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
RIO BLANCO DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Colorado, personally appeared, Nancy E. 
Madison, Member / Owner of Lazy Mountain Hangar, the limited liability company named in the 
forgoing instruments, acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is 
authorized by the limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act 
and deed of the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
___________________________ 
Notary public in and for Colorado 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
 

127



 

31 
 

GUARANTOR(s): 
 
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _________________________ 
      Dayton J. Madison, (Individually) 
 
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _________________________ 
      Elizabeth A. Madison (Individually) 
 
 
By: __________________________    
     Jeffery D. Madison (Individually)   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
By: __________________________    
     Nancy E. Madison (Individually)   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of _______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Dayton J. 
Madison, known to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to 
me that he/she had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

128



 

32 
 

 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of _______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Elizabeth A. 
Madison, known to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to 
me that he/she had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
RIO BLANCO DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of _______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Colorado, personally appeared, Jeffery D. 
Madison, known to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to 
me that he/she had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Notary public in and for Colorado 
 
 
My commission expires: _________________ 
 
 
 

129



 

33 
 

 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
RIO BLANCO DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of _______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Colorado, personally appeared, Nancy E. 
Madison, known to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to 
me that he/she had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Notary public in and for Colorado 
 
 
My commission expires: _________________ 
 
 

130



131



132



133



134



 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

“Return To” 
City of Palmer 

231 West Evergreen Avenue 
Palmer, AK 99645 

907-745-3271 
 
 

PALMER MUNICIPAL AIPORT 
MEMORANDUM OF LEASE AGREEMENT No. 22-001 

 
This is a Memorandum of Lease Agreement No. 22-001 made and entered into as of this _____  

day of _____________, 2022, by and between the City of Palmer, a municipal corporation 
organized and existing under its charter and the laws of the State of Alaska, hereinafter referred 
to as the “Lessor”, and Lazy Mountain Hangar, LLC , hereinafter referred to as the “Lessee”.   
 
Agree upon the following terms: 
 

1. Lease. The provisions set forth in a written Lease Agreement No. 22-001 between the parties 

hereto dated the 1st day of January 2022, are hereby incorporated by reference into this 

Memorandum. 

2. Demised Premises. The Demised Premises, which are the subject of The Lease Agreement 

No. 22-001, are more particularly described as follows:  

A parcel of land located within Tract B, Palmer Municipal Airport recorded as Plat No. 2006-15 in 
the Palmer Recording District, Third Judicial District, State of Alaska and further described in an 
unrecorded plat dated June 27, 2005, as follows: 
 
Palmer Municipal Airport, Block 3, Lease Lot 21 
Containing 0.55 acres or 24,048 square feet, more or less 
A.K.A. 811 S. Airport Road, Palmer, AK. 99645 
 
See Attached “Exhibit A”   
 
Parcel may be subject to additional easements and/or encumbrances not shown or depicted 
hereon. 
 
3. Commencement Date of Lease.  The Lease Agreement shall be deemed to have commenced 

on January 1, 2022, as set forth within the terms of the Lease. The Term of the Lease Agreement 

shall be 25 years from the Commencement Date as stated in the written Lease. The initial term 

shall commence on the date hereof and terminate on December 31, 2047. Provided Lessee fully 

and faithfully performs all of the covenants and conditions contained herein for the term of the 

Lease, Lessor may approve an additional period of 20 years at the expiration of this Lease so that 

135



 

2 
 

the total number of years available to Lessee is 45 years. As with the initial term at the start of 

and continuing through the renewal period.  

4. Duplicate Copies of the originals of the Lease Agreement are in the possession of the Lessor 

and Lessee and reference should be made thereto for a more detailed description thereof and for 

resolution of any questions pertaining thereto. 

5. Notices.  Any notices required to be sent in accordance with the terms of this Lease Agreement 

No. 22-001, including legal process, shall be sent in writing by registered or certified mail, to the 

parties at the following addresses unless otherwise notified in writing and deemed to be received 

when so sent: 

Lessor’s address: City Manager 
   City of Palmer 
   231W. Evergreen Ave.  

Palmer, AK 99645 
 
Lessee’s address: Lazy Mountain Hangar, LLC 

C/O Dayton J. Madison 
   PO Box 2725  
   Palmer, AK. 99645 

 
6. Purpose.  It is expressly understood and agreed by all parties that the sole purpose of this 

Memorandum of Lease is to give record notice of the Lease Agreement No. 22-001; it being 

distinctly understood and agreed that said Lease Agreement  No. 22-001 constitutes the entire 

lease and agreement between Lessor and the Lessee with respect to the Demised Premises and 

is hereby incorporated by reference. The Lease Agreement No. 22-001 contains and sets forth 

additional rights, terms, conditions, duties, and obligations not enumerated within this instrument 

which govern the Lease and addendum. This Memorandum is for information purposes only and 

nothing contained herein may be deemed in any way to modify or vary any of the terms or 

conditions of the Lease Agreement No. 22-001. In the event of any inconsistency between the 

terms of the Lease Agreement No. 22-001 and this instrument, the terms of the Lease Agreement 

No. 22-001, shall control. The rights and obligations set forth herein shall be binding upon and 

inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their respective heirs, representatives, successors, 

and assigns. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Memorandum of Lease pursuant 

to due authorization on the dates herein acknowledged. 

 
 
LESSOR: CITY OF PALMER 
 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 
     John Moosey, City Manager    Date: _____________________ 
 
 
 
 

136



 

3 
 

 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on the ______day of ______________, 2022, before me the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, duly commissioned and sworn, 
personally appeared, to me known and known to me to be the identical individual described in 
and who executed the within and foregoing LEASE AGREEMENT as City Manager of the City of 
Palmer, freely and voluntarily on behalf of the City of Palmer for the uses and purposes therein 
mentioned. 
 
GIVEN UNDER MY HAND and official seal the day and year last above written. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Notary Public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: __________________ 
 
 
 
ASSIGNEE AND LESSEE:  LAZY MOUNTAIN HANGAR, LLC 
 
 
 
By: __________________________    
     Dayton J. Madison  (Member)   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
By: __________________________    
     Elizabeth A. Madison (Member)   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
By: __________________________    
     Jeffery D. Madison (Member)   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
By: __________________________    
     Nancy E. Madison (Member)   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
 

137



 

4 
 

 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Dayton J. 
Madison, Member / Owner of Lazy Mountain Hangar, the limited liability company named in the 
forgoing instruments, acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is 
authorized by the limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act 
and deed of the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Elizabeth A. 
Madison, Member / Owner of Lazy Mountain Hangar, the limited liability company named in the 
forgoing instruments, acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is 
authorized by the limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act 
and deed of the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 

138



 

5 
 

 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
RIO BLANCO DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Colorado, personally appeared, Jeffery D. 
Madison, Member / Owner of Lazy Mountain Hangar, the limited liability company named in the 
forgoing instruments, acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is 
authorized by the limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act 
and deed of the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Notary public in and for Colorado 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
RIO BLANCO DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the ______ day of ______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Colorado, personally appeared, Nancy E. 
Madison, Member / Owner of Lazy Mountain Hangar, the limited liability company named in the 
forgoing instruments, acknowledged to me that he/she had, in his/her official capacity is 
authorized by the limited liability company to execute the foregoing instruments as the free act 
and deed of the said limited liability company for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Notary public in and for Colorado 
 
 
My commission expires: _______________ 
 
 
 

139



 

6 
 

 
GUARANTOR(s): 
 
 
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _________________________ 
      Dayton J. Madison, (Individually) 
 
 
 
By: _____________________________  Date: _________________________ 
      Elizabeth A. Madison (Individually) 
 
 
 
By: __________________________    
     Jeffery D. Madison (Individually)   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
By: __________________________    
     Nancy E. Madison (Individually)   Date: _________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of _______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Dayton J. 
Madison, known to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to 
me that he/she had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _________________ 
 
 
 

140



 

7 
 

 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF ALASKA  ) 
     )ss. 
THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of _______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Alaska, personally appeared, Elizabeth A. 
Madison, known to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to 
me that he/she had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
_________________________ 
Notary public in and for Alaska 
 
 
My commission expires: _________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
RIO BLANCO DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of _______________, 2019, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Colorado, personally appeared, Jeffery D. 
Madison, known to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to 
me that he/she had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Notary public in and for Colorado 
 
 
My commission expires: _________________ 
 
 
 
 

141



 

8 
 

 
NOTARY 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 
     )ss. 
RIO BLANCO DISTRICT ) 
 
 This is to certify that on the _____ day of _______________, 2022, before me, the 
undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of Colorado, personally appeared, Nancy E. 
Madison, known to me to be the person named in the foregoing instruments, acknowledged to 
me that he/she had executed the same for the uses and purposes therein stated. 
 
WITNESS my hand and official seal the date and year first above written. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Notary public in and for Colorado 
 
 
My commission expires: _________________ 
 
 

142



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-072 Page 1 of 2 

City of Palmer 
Action Memorandum No. 21-072 

 
Subject:  Approving Mayor Steve Carrington’s Resignation from Council Seat, Term Ending October 2024, and 
Declaring the Seat Vacant Effective December 14, 2021, in Accordance with PMC 2.04.061 
 
Agenda of: December 14, 2021 
 
Council Action: ☐ Approved ☐ Amended: ____________________________________ 
 ☐ Defeated 
 

Originator Information: 

Originator: John Moosey, City Manager 
 

Department Review: 

Route to:  Department Director: 
 

Signature:  Date: 
  Community Development    
  Finance    
  Fire    
  Police     
  Public Works     

 

 

 
  

Certification of Funds: 

Total amount of funds listed in this legislation: $  
 

This legislation (√): 
 Creates revenue in the amount of: $  
 Creates expenditure in the amount of: $  
 Creates a saving in the amount of: $  
√ Has no fiscal impact   

 

Funds are (√): 
 Budgeted Line item(s):  
 Not budgeted   

 
 

 
Director of Finance Signature:  

Approved for Presentation By: 

  Signature:  Remarks: 

City Manager 
 

 
 

 
City Attorney   
City Clerk   

 

143



 
City of Palmer, Alaska: AM No. 21-072 Page 2 of 2 

Attachment(s):  
1.  Action Memorandum 21-072 

 
Summary Statement/Background:  
 
Mayor Steve Carrington submitted his resignation on December 2, 2021. Persons appointed to fill a vacancy 
shall serve until the next regular election, at which time a successor shall be elected to fulfill the remainder of 
the unexpired term of office.  
 
The clerk will follow the process for filling a vacancy on Council by following recently adopted Ordinance 21-018, 
which amended PMC 2.04.65. 
 
By approving Action Memorandum 21-072 as presented, the Council will approve the resignation of Council 
Member Steve Carrington, and begin the process of filling the vacant Council seat. 
 
Administration’s Recommendation:   
 
Approve Action Memorandum No. 21-072 
 
 
 
 
 
  

144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152


	01 2021-1214 Agenda Regular
	02 AM 20-067 Cancel Dec 28 CC mtg
	03 AM 21-069 AAC Appointment Confirmation
	04 AM 21-070 Park and Rec Advisory Board Appointment Confirmation
	05 AM 21-071 Planning and Zoning Commission Appointment Confirmation
	06a IM 21-006a Notice of Intent to Award General Counsel Legal Services
	07 2021 1109 Special Mtg Minutes
	08 2021 1109 Regular Meeting Minutes
	09 Reso 21-039 Authorized Signers
	10 Reso 21-040 Waive Late fees for BL Feb 2022 2021
	11a Reso 22-001 Pay Plan (1)
	12a Reso 22-002 Fee Schedule (1)
	13a Reso 22-003 Fine Schedule (1)
	14a Reso 22-004 5 Year CIP (1)
	15a Reso 22-005 2022 Budget
	16a AM 21-068 Lazy Mountain Hangar LLC LL 21
	17 AM 21-072 accept Mayor Steve  resignation
	18 for discussion, PMC, 2.052, BED



